
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting: Thursday, February 27, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 

Place of Meeting: Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 p.m. 
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*2. Roll Call Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment -  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 

Mr. Matt Smith 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda -
February 27, 2014 Meeting

Mr. Matt Smith 

5. Approval/Amendments/Additions/Deletions to Minutes -
A. November 21, 2013 Regular Meeting AMENDMENT
B. January 16, 2014 Special Meeting
C. January 23, 2014 Regular Meeting

Mr. Matt Smith 

*6. Recognitions –  
A. Introduction of New Employee(s) – 

1. Elena Varganova – Statistician – EPHP  (1/27/14)
2. Latricia Lord – Environmental Specialist Trainee II – EHS (2/24/14)

B. Promotions – 
1. Charlene Albee - Division Director – AQM (2/3/14)

Mr. Matt Smith 
Mr. Kevin Dick 

Ms. Christina Conti 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328.2400 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

Leslie Admirand 
Deputy District Attorney 

Matt Smith, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Denis Humphreys, OD 

Sharon Zadra 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

Julia Ratti 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

C. Achievements – 
1. Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) Presentation of Accomplishments
2. Introduction of District Board of Health Scholarship Endowment Recipients Tia

Rudd and Tiana Ross, students of the University of Nevada Division of Health
Sciences.

7. Proclamation -
A. World TB Day

Mr. Matt Smith 
Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Lisa Lottritz 

8. Consent Agenda –
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any
exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval.

A. Air Quality Management Cases:

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution
Control Hearing Board -

a. DAATA LLC – NOV 5212, Case No. 1143
1400 East 4th Street  Reno, NV  89502

b. Lobo Construction – NOV 5213, Case No. 1144
1400 East 4th Street, Reno, NV  89502

c. Rilite Aggregate Company – NOV 5404, Case No. 1150
9208 Western Skies Drive

2. Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution Control Hearing
Board -

a. Paul’s Handyman Service (Paul Duminie) – Case No. 1138; NOV
5389 

3. Recommendation for Variance –

None 

B. Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases:   Recommendation to Approve 
Variance Case(s) Presented to the Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing 
Board –  

None 

C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:  

1. Termination of Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada, Department
of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental
Protection and the Washoe County Health District with an effective date of
March 31, 2014 for the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO 10022.

2. Approval of Assistance Amendment B from the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) for the period of 4/1/2008 – 3/31/2014 in the total
amount of $646,496 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution
Control Program, PM 2.5 Program; approve amendments totaling an
increase of $47,917 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 Air Quality
Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 Program, IO
10021. 

3. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $61,951.96 in both revenue
and expense to the FY14 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary

Ms. Charlene Albee 

Ms. Erin Dixon 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 

4. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 through
July 31, 2014 in the total amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory
Capacity (ELC) Affordable Care Act Federal Carry Forward Grant Program,
IO TBA; Approve amendments totaling a net increase of $13,396 in both
revenue and expenses to the adopted FY 14 ELC – Carry Forward Grant
budget, IO TBA; and if approved, and if approved authorize the Chairman to
execute.

5. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and
Behavioral Health in the amount of $760,946 for the budget period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program; and if
approved authorize the Chairman to execute.

6. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Nevada Department of
Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for
the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014, in the amount of
$317,061 (reduced from $389,206), in support of the HIV Prevention Grant
Program, IO 10013; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.

7. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and
Behavioral Health in the amount of $438,693.00  for the budget period July
1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Assistant Secretary
for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; and
if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.

8. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health
and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the
period January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 in the amount of
$111,685 for the Immunization Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029); and if
approved authorize the Chairman to execute.

Ms. Patsy Buxton 

9. Air Pollution Control Hearing Board Cases appealed to the District Board of
Health -
None.

Ms. Charlene Albee 

10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority -

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for January, 2014

*B.  Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since January, 2014

Mr. Jim Gubbels 

11. Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for January,
2014 

Ms. Eileen Stickney 

12. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Update with possible direction to staff. Ms. Eileen Stickney 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

13. Authorization to approve a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage, 
effective July 1, 2013; a 1% PERS contribution in lieu of a wage increase 
effective July 15, 2013; and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment effective January 1, 
2014, for the District Health Officer Position.  

Ms. Laurie Griffey 

14. Presentation, discussion, and possible direction to staff on the Fundamental 
Review of the Washoe County Health District conducted by the Public Health 
Foundation. 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Fundamental Review 

Team 

*15. Staff Reports and Program Updates 

A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness – 
Communicable Disease – Influenza & Pertussis, Public Health Preparedness & 
Continuity of Operations, Training, Community Collaboration and Grants 
Management. 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services - 
Divisional Update and Program Reports. 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services - 
Food Program, Vector-Borne Disease Program, General Environmental and EHS 
Inspection Totals. 

D. Director, Air Quality Management - 
Air Quality Management Division, Air Quality Monitoring Activity, Planning & 
Monitoring Activity, Permitting Activity, Compliance/Inspection Activity, 
Permitting & Enforcement Activity, Enforcement Activity. 

E. Administrative Health Services Officer – 
No report this month. 

F. District Health Officer - 
REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Permit Software Project, Quality 
Improvement Initiative, Healthy Community Conversation, Staffing, Other 
Events & Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 

Dr. Randall Todd 

Mr. Steve Kutz 

Mr. Robert Sack 

Ms. Charlene Albee 

Ms. Eileen Stickney 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*16. Board Comment -  
Limited to Announcements or Issues for Future Agendas 

Mr. Matt Smith 

17. Emergency Items Mr. Kevin Dick 

*18. Public Comment - 
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 

Mr. Matt Smith 

19. Adjournment Mr. Matt Smith 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 



designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


DBOH AGENDA ITEM 5.A.







PRESENT: Chair Matt Smith, Vice Chair Kitty Jung, David Silverman, Dr. George Hess, Denis Humphreys and 
Councilperson Julia Ratti (3:35 pm) 

ABSENT: Councilperson Sharon Zadra 

STAFF: 
Kevin Dick, Interim District Health Officer  
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Charlene Albee, Acting Division Director, AQM  
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS  
Robert Sack, Division Director, EHS  
Randall Todd, Dr. PH, Division Director, EPHP  
Steve Fisher, Department Computer Application Specialist, AHS 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, AHS 

Veronica Frenkel, Organizational Development Manager 
Washoe County Manager's Office 

Emily Brown, MPH, CPH 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1:00 
PM 
*1. 

Call to Order, Pledge of 
Allegiance Led by Invitation 

Chair Smith called the meeting to order. Dr. George Hess led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

*2. Roll Call Roll call was taken and a quorum noted.  Present: Chair Smith, Commissioner Jung (1:05 
pm), Dr. Hess, Mr. Silverman and Mr. Humphreys.  Councilperson Ratti arrived at 3:35 pm.  
Absent:  Councilperson Zadra.   

*3. Public Comment (3 minute 
time limit per person) 

None. 

4. Approval / Deletions to
Agenda for the January 16,
2014, meeting.

Chair Smith called for any deletions or corrections to the agenda of the January 16, 2014 
DBOH Meeting. 

Chair Smith suggested first names be used during the meeting rather than titles.  Board 
members agreed.   

Mr. Humphreys 
moved, seconded 
by Mr. Silverman, 
that the January 16, 
2014 agenda be 
approved as written. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Minutes of Special Meeting  

January 16, 2014 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.B.



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

5. Orientation to the National 
Public Health Performance 
Standards (NPHPS) Public 
Health Governing Entity 
Assessment Instrument 
Version 3.0 
 

Mr. Dick introduced Ms. Dawn Spinola, who will serve as his Administrative Secretary and 
Secretary to the District Board of Health (DBOH).   
 
Mr. Dick thanked the Board for being willing to do the self-assessment.  He noted the Washoe 
County Health District (WCHD) was working toward improving its performance and performance 
management and the Board’s participation sends a signal they are interested in working with staff 
to achieve the District’s goals.   
 
Mr. Dick explained they would provide an overview to the assessment tool, conduct the 
governance self-assessment and have a dialog after reviewing the results.  He noted the purpose 
of the meeting was to assess the Board’s perspective on public health services framed around 
the 10 Essential Services of Public Health (ES).  The exercise would help frame the Board’s role 
in relation to the public health system.  The assessment looked specifically at the Board’s 
engagement, support and activities.  Mr. Dick pointed out it was important to remember the focus 
was on the Board’s role in working with the Health District within a larger public health system 
that involves numerous community partners.   
 
Mr. Dick stated that, from the work completed today, they will identify areas for focus and quality 
improvement, potentially paying more attention to service areas that have not been substantially 
addressed in the past.  He felt the exercise would prepare them well for the Fundamental Review 
(FR) recommendations and to understand what the Board’s perspective is on areas of 
importance and focus and how those align with some of the FR recommendations.  He was 
hopeful it would be foundational for the strategic planning process.  He reminded the Board Self-
Assessment was suggested by the Fundamental Review Team and reiterated it would dovetail 
nicely with the upcoming FR report.   
 
Mr. Dick explained the assessment utilizes the national public health performance standards 
which were developed as a collaborative effort of seven national partners in the 1990s.  They are 
based around the mission and goals of providing performance standards for public health 
systems and encouraging their widespread use, engaging and leveraging national, state and 
local partners to build a stronger foundation for public health preparedness and promoting 
continuous quality improvement for public health systems.  Additionally, it strengthens the 
science base for the public health practice improvement.   
 
Mr. Dick went on to explain there were four concepts applied to the national public health 
performance standards that were based on the 10 ES.  The focus is on the overall public health 
system for the standards at a whole.  He reminded the Board the focus of the assessment is on 
the Board of Health.  The standards describe an optimal level of performance.  He noted that 
probably no Health District is performing optimally across all standards, but they provide a goal 
and are designed to support the process of quality improvement.   
 

 

           Page 2 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Dick reiterated the assessment is framed around the 10 ES, and they describe the public 
health activities that should be undertaken in all communities.  The activities are primarily carried 
out by the Health District and community partners, but it is important for the Board to support the 
various efforts that the Health District is involved in to fulfill these essential services.   
 
Mr. Dick explained the assessment also uses the six functions of public health governance.  The 
National Association of Local Boards of Health (NALBOH) worked with the Centers for Disease 
Control (CDC) and other partners and experts nationally to develop the six governance functions.  
They are policy development, resource stewardship, legal authority, partner engagement, 
continuous improvement and oversight.  Throughout the assessment exercise, Mr. Kutz will 
provide information about some of the things the Health District is doing that relates to each of 
the 10 essential services.  Within the assessment there is more information on how the public 
health governance functions may apply to each essential service.   
 
Mr. Dick pointed out what he called a “Jellybean Diagram,” which showed the WCHD at the 
center of a web of other organizations, entities and partners in the communities that make up the 
public health system.   He reiterated the assessment today was focused on the Board and the 
Board’s engagement in support of the Health District.  He requested they consider that support 
for the Health District as being framed in the context of the Board of Health and the Health District 
working together to move public health forward through the larger public health system.   
 
Mr. Dick noted that, within the assessment, there are model standards that present an optimal 
level of performance for Health Boards for each essential service.  He reiterated they were goals; 
it was not realistic that any Health District or Health Board is actually going to be performing at 
that level across all of the functions, so they should just consider it to be part of a continuous 
improvement process.  A goal of the assessment would be to identify some areas they all felt 
were important so they could work on some continuous improvement processes.  This would 
guide the Board, in conjunction with the Health District, to perform as well as they can together.   
 
Mr. Dick addressed a slide that displayed the Health District and the Board working within the 
overall public health system with community partners and the workforce to build the capacity to 
address the health needs of the community.   By investing in what the WCHD is doing, our 
partners and how we are working together in building that capacity, we will achieve optimal 
payback.  The impacts of all of those different programs and the health activities that they can 
support will lead us to the improved health outcomes that we all want to see.   
 
Mr. Dick introduced Veronica Frenkel, Washoe County Organizational Development Manager 
and Emily Brown from the State Division of Public and Behavioral Health.  Emily is with the 
Quality Improvement (QI) program and provided assistance in planning the assessment.  He 
expressed his gratitude she is here to help today and thanked them both.   
 

           Page 3 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Ms. Frenkel thanked everyone for inviting her to participate in the process.   
 
Dr. Hess noted the process was a paradigm shift for him.  When he thinks of essential services 
he thinks of vaccinations, Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs), epidemiology, statistics, etc.  
He thinks more in terms of the specialties, and traditionally the public health textbook table of 
contents do not contain information that mirrored the exercise they would be performing.  Upon 
reading through the materials to be utilized for the assessment, he could see how classic public 
health services were integrated.  It appeared to be more of a process for evaluation than of 
services to the community.  Many of the issues addressed to lead to the service.  Possibly due to 
his background, it is a totally unique framework.  He pointed that out because it may lead to 
further discussion. He opined if they were going to use that type of framework they should be 
educated by the various Divisions that provide reports so they could put the information into the 
framework, which would also be a new process.  Mr. Hess expounded on his thoughts, explaining 
he would need some redevelopment to incorporate the new framework.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated they all would.   
 
Ms. Frenkel stated her role was to provide a framework on the assessment process and the 
process they would be using today.  She explained they would be sharing interactive dialog and 
making decisions collectively.  She reiterated it was structured around the 10 essential services 
and the associated model standards for governing entities.  The process will be to address each 
one of the 10 services individually.   
 
Ms. Frenkel - First they will review what the essential public health service means, specifically 
focusing on the governing entity’s model standard.  Mr. Kutz will then provide information related 
to the Health District’s work on that particular essential service.  She walked them through the 
pages of the manual that specifically described how each step was to be handled and 
descriptions of ideal activities that the public health governing entity should be undertaking to 
support the work of the public health agency.  The next page listed the specific questions 
associated with that essential service or model standard.  The Board members would be given 
the opportunity to vote on each question.  The voting process would be in three steps; an initial 
vote, a discussion regarding items on which there was not a consensus and then a final vote.  
The discussions will focus on where a differentiation occurs.  She hoped to hear from each of 
them about areas where they disagree and what they think is important in terms of improvement 
activities and why they voted the way they did.  The goal was to achieve Board consensus, which 
was defined as 50 percent or more of the members voting the same way.  She pointed out 
everyone’s comments were valuable, regardless which way they voted.   
 
Ms. Frenkel summarized, explaining the information would be provided, they would take an initial 
vote, they would engage in discussion about the votes and then the final vote would be taken to 
establish Board consensus on the questions associated with that essential service area.   

           Page 4 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
Dr. Hess asked if they would be voting on their perception of how they have been doing or how 
they would ideally like to be doing.   
 
Ms. Frenkel told him they are voting on the District Board of Health’s (DBOH) current activity as 
they perceive it.  She reiterated the focus is on the governing entity’s role.  What they will notice 
from the way the questions are worded is that they use action words that describe activities that 
the Board would engage in in support of the essential service.  The focus is not on the public 
health providers in the community, including WCHD; it is on the Board’s role in supporting the 
District.   
 
Mr. Dick noted that the results of the exercise would provide them with an opportunity to decide 
where they would like to be doing more versus where they are now.   
 
Dr. Hess opined the process could be educational.  For example, the County does a great job at 
Epidemiology, but noted there was not much of a collaborative process.   
 
Mr. Dick acknowledged it was designed to be educational. 
 
Mr. Humphreys noted that often the Board establishes policy but there is an extension of the 
Board through staff, with the District Health Officer, (DHO), Public Information Officer (PIO) and 
Epidemiologist.  They are the faces out in the community learning what is occurring, so it may be 
difficult to differentiate between what the Board is doing versus what the team, meaning Board of 
Health and staff, are doing.  He suggested Ms. Frenkel assist them with that aspect if they need 
to draw some fine lines between the two.   
 
Ms. Frenkel explained that as each different ES area is discussed, the examples that Mr. Kutz 
brings may illustrate that difference.  Additionally, Mr. Dick, Mr. Kutz and other staff members are 
present to help clarify during the discussion portions of the assessment. 
 
Ms. Frenkel pointed out one challenge they faced was time.  There are 10 ES areas, so to have a 
discussion at the end and finish by 5:00 p.m., each ES would be 15 minutes.  Some of them have 
more questions than others and may take longer.  The first couple of rounds may go more slowly, 
but as they become more familiar with the process, they should be able to move through each 
one more quickly. 
 
Ms. Frenkel discussed scoring options.  Each Board member has colored cards which will be 
used to capture their votes.  Options include No Activity, defined as no participation by the Board 
in the activity, but the Board has the legal authority to do so.  Contrasting that is Not Applicable, 
to be used only when the Board does not have legal authority.  Minimal Activity indicates they 
participate in a limited way and there is opportunity for improvement.  Moderate Activity indicates 

           Page 5 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

participation and opportunity for improvement.  The last two categories were Significant and 
Optimal.   
 
Ms. Frenkel reiterated they should not expect to be optimal at everything.  They are using 
optimum performance as the standard that is being offered.  It would be rare for any Health Board 
to be optimal at everything.  She pointed out the other challenge had to do with not looking at the 
number ranges associated with each vote category as a grade.  She reiterated the assessment 
was informational, and was an opportunity to identify areas for improvement.  It may make sense 
that in some areas they are at a Minimal or Moderate level of activity, because that is what is 
appropriate.  It was important to view it not as critical or judgmental, but informational and 
educational.   
 
Ms. Frenkel explained that to vote, they would simply hold up a colored card long enough for all 
votes to be counted.  Ms. Spinola would enter the totals on a tally sheet that would calculate the 
results.  There will likely be consensus on some.  Discussion would be focused on the questions 
that did not have a consensus.  The next steps would be to discuss and then take a second vote.   
 
Ms. Frenkel – NALBOH had offered guidelines for success which included speaking one at a 
time, being open to new ideas, avoid repeating previous remarks and allowing facilitators to move 
conversation along.  All perspectives are welcome, use voting cards to vote and be prepared to 
provide examples of why you voted the way you did. 
 
Ms. Brown noted that the goal of voting was getting to a consensus, but capturing the reasons 
behind the vote is the important part.  At the end there will be consensus votes for each area that 
will create a score so that a report can be created.   
 
Ms. Brown explained she would quickly introduce each essential service and then Mr. Kutz would 
provide examples of how these services are provided at WCHD.  She will then give examples to 
bring it back to the governing entity’s role and then Ms. Frenkel will lead the voting process.   
 
 

6. Facilitated Board Discussion 
to the National Public Health 
Performance Standards 
(NPHPS) Public Health 
Governing Entity Assessment 
Instrument Version 3.0, 
Prioritization of Essential 
Activities, and Identification of 
Opportunities for 
Improvement. 

Essential Service 1 – Monitor health status and understand health issues facing the community, 
both under the core function of Assessment.   
 
Mr. Kutz introduced the item and provided examples for the Health District that he had compiled 
with the assistance of Dr. Todd.  They included communicable disease surveillance, investigation 
of food-borne illness complaints, STD/HIV surveillance, the investigation and surveillance of 
vaccine-preventable diseases, monitoring and reporting school BMI data, behavioral risk factors 
surveillance system, youth risk behavior survey and air quality monitoring data.  He noted this 
was not an all-inclusive list, but more of an overview of what WCHD is doing in this ES area.   
 

 

           Page 6 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Ms. Brown explained the ES is about monitoring health status to identify community health 
problems.  She summarized by saying it was about the district and governing entity supporting 
the process and collecting information about the health of the community.  She noted that doing a 
community health assessment was a key piece of the essential services, which includes 
gathering all data and working with community partners.  One way the governing entity can 
support this area is to support policies and advocate for activities that guide WCHD in working in 
collaboration with the community to do the assessments.  That may include policies around 
frequency or encouraging collaboration with different entities.  The Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) now regulates that non-profit hospitals are required to conduct community health needs 
assessments, so partnering with hospitals that are already doing assessments is a good role for 
the Board to support.  Additionally, they could encourage activities, either through budget or 
collaboration, support interaction with other health partners in the community. 
 
Ms. Frenkel reiterated they would take the initial vote, discuss, and then take the second vote.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 1.a.  At what level does the governing entity advocate for policies that define a 
community health assessment process? 3 Significant, 2 Moderate.  Ms. Frenkel pointed out the 
last column in the scoring sheet, which tallied the votes.  For Question 1.a, they were close to 
consensus.   
Question 1.b.  At what level does the governing entity encourage the public health department to 
actively collaborate with all public health system stakeholder organizations on a community 
health assessment?  4 Significant, 1 Moderate 
Question 1.c.  At what level does the governing entity budget for public health department 
resources to be used for a community health assessment?  Ms. Brown noted resources could be 
funding, allowing staff time or meeting space or other types of resources.  1 Significant, 4 
Moderate 
Question 1.d.  At what level does the governing entity set priorities for community health 
improvement based on information from the community health assessment? 1 Optimal, 2 
Significant, 1 Moderate, 1 Minimal.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted the results indicated they were fairly close to consensus on the first three 
questions, so they should start with the last question and discuss that in terms of the 
discrepancies among the way they voted.  She asked who would like to share their perspective, 
experience, thoughts, what led them to select the voting option they did. 
 
Commissioner Jung opined she had a different perspective than anyone on the Board.  At an 
annual NALBOH meeting, members had been informed that WCHD needed a community health 
assessment and did not have one at the time.  She brought that up to the Board and it just so 
happened they County had received an ACHIEVE health and fitness grant.  The ACHIEVE Grant 
Committee (AGC) did do a community assessment and they then used that information to decide 

           Page 7 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

what area required the most focus.  The AGC determined that area was childhood obesity.  
Because of that the AGC moved forward with setting priorities.  We even went to the Regional 
Planning Governing Board (RPGB) and are hoping to change the approach to residential 
development that encourages more walking, biking and living closer to work.  Commissioner Jung 
noted that when she had joined the Board, none of that type of activity was happening and she 
had not known about community health assessments.   
 
Dr. Hess stated his vote was one of the other outliers and he attributed that to not clearly 
understanding what they were doing.  He noted that during other retreats they had not identified 
specific areas for prioritization.   
 
Ms. Frenkel pointed out that not knowing was an indicator of performance that could help with the 
assessment.  There may be questions that Dr. Hess has or information that, based on the 
discussion, they realize they would like to know more.  That can be captured in the record and 
used going forward in terms of getting information directly from Health District staff.   
 
Mr. Humphreys opined staff does a good job of informing the Board of community health issues.  
The Board should take the opportunity to discuss the assessment more in detail so they can set 
policies that could be directing staff to be able to score higher in the area currently under 
consideration.   
 
Ms. Brown invited staff to provide their perspectives regarding where they are with the community 
health assessment and how active the process is.   
 
Commissioner Jung reiterated a major issue was childhood obesity.  Adult obesity is also an 
issue but the thought was to start with kids because the County had more control over their 
environment.  Also identified were food deserts, areas where people use 7-11 as their grocery 
store because they do not have transportation.  Additionally the AGC discovered ways they could 
teach child care providers about healthy options.  Finally, the AGC implemented a Food Security 
Council to make recommendations to address issues such as the food deserts and how to 
improve cafeteria food for children in public schools.   
 
Chair Smith opined the Board was very proactive.  When they hear of things they can improve 
on, they act on them.  He felt they were doing a good job and noted they had previously 
discussed bringing in outside sources.   
 
Mr. Dick, speaking from his perspective and from discussions with the Fundamental Review 
Team, opined that assessment work had been done in a number of different areas.  WCHD does 
a good job with surveillance, as explained by Mr. Kutz.  Commissioner Jung had provided a good 
example of a project that had a community health assessment component.  He opined all of the 
work they were doing was somewhat siloed.  Something to consider was how to move forward 

           Page 8 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

with a more comprehensive assessment process so they are not setting priorities around specific 
issues from siloed assessments but looking at the entire community and setting priorities looking 
at all of the different information.  That is one of the reasons he is working with Renown to see if 
they can participate with them in an ongoing project.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted that the discussion regarding Item 1.d. had highlighted it is not so much the 
work of the staff but how the Board uses that information and the priority-setting processes that 
occur.  She offered opportunity for discussion on Questions 1.a. through 1.c. 
 
Dr. Hess asked if they had actually defined a community health assessment process and if that 
definition was contained in the material.   
 
Mr. Dick noted it was most likely not within the materials but he would forward the information, 
called MAPP (Mobilizing Actions through Planning and Partnerships) and it outlines the 
community assessment process.   
 
Dr. Hess asked if they had ever taken the time to advocate for policies that define a community 
health assessment.   
 
Mr. Dick did not know if the Board had taken formal action, but acknowledged Councilperson 
Ratti had brought up wanting to do a community health assessment several times.  He also 
acknowledged not having done a good job in educating the Board on the process.   
 
Dr. Todd explained there is a standard for community health assessment though the Public 
Health Accreditation Board.  It is not something this Board has reviewed.  He and Ms. Brown had 
reviewed the standards and considered what they may look like in Nevada if there were 
participation from all of the public health jurisdictions and some other system partners.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted one outlier for Question 1.c and requested comment. 
 
Commissioner Jung requested clarification of the results displayed on the tally sheet.  Ms. 
Frenkel explained it would read False until a the votes were entered and a consensus value is 
tallied.   
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 1.a.  3 Significant, 2 Moderate.   
Question 1.b.  4 Significant, 1 Moderate 
Question 1.c.  1 Significant, 4 Moderate 
Question 1.d.  4 Significant, 1 Moderate   
 
 

           Page 9 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Essential Service 2 - Diagnose and Investigate Health Problems & Health Hazards 
 
Ms. Brown reiterated the Board members should feel free to express why they feel the way they 
do, particularly if their vote is the outlier.   
 
Mr. Kutz provided examples that included the pandemic flu preparations, recommendations for 
school exclusions or closures based on monitoring and surveillance, Air Quality Management 
(AQM’s) Know the Code and restaurant closures.   
 
Ms. Brown explained this service identified how ready the WCHD to respond to problems and 
threats, how quickly we find out about the problems and how well we are responding once we 
know about them.  For the governing entity, a big part is to review the plans that are in place that 
guide how WCHD will respond during events.  Reviewing the plans on a regular basis and 
ensuring that the Health agency has the capacity to respond is another aspect.  Setting the 
policies and encouraging collaboration with other responders is another key piece. 
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 2.a.  At what level does the governing entity facilitate access to resources for the 
surveillance of public health threats?  3 Optimal, 2 Significant.   
Question 2.b.  At what level does the governing entity facilitate access to resources to respond to 
public health threats?  1 Optimal, 4 Significant 
Question 2.c.  At what level does the governing entity recommend policies that address the 
surveillance of public health threats?  1 Optimal, 2 Significant, 2 Moderate 
Question 2.d.  At what level does the governing entity encourage ongoing collaboration among 
public health system stakeholder organizations regarding issues of public health threats?  1 
Optimal, 3 Significant, 1 Moderate   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted there was not a consensus for 2.c.   
 
Mr. Humphreys commented on the voting itself, stating that when he picked up the green, 
indicating the Board was doing everything possible and there was no room for improvement, it 
would be difficult for him to vote that way on any question.  He felt they rated partially green on 
some of the questions but not to the definition.  That was why he had difficulty voting that way.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted that was an important clarification.  She pointed out it did say 76-100 percent.  
The definition had been taken straight from the material and one could argue there was room for 
improvement.  She clarified the question was whether or not they thought they were doing a great 
deal or almost everything they could do.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated she viewed the 76-100 percent as evidence that everybody can 
improve, there are no completely optimal health districts.  She opined the District did a great job 

           Page 10 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

at providing services when considering the effects of the budget cuts.  She stated she had told 
Chair Smith if he wants to be able to have higher scores, then taxes needed to be raised to be 
able to provide the services.  Commissioner Jung explained she was being realistic within the 
boundaries, confines and guidelines and that was why she did not enjoy some aspects of the 
assessments.  They presume the funding for public health is sufficient for the needs.  That is not 
the reality of Washoe County.  There were other programs that she would like to see in the 
County but the funding did not exist.  She opined the national organizations were focused on a 
utopian view which she felt was honorable but not obtainable for Washoe County. 
 
Ms. Frenkel noted that voting at a lower level did not make a statement regarding the level of 
service provided.  She reiterated that what they were assessing was their own role of 
participation in that.  It may or may not be a priority for the department or the community.   
Depending on location, some of the essential services would need to be performed at a higher 
level based on needs.  It does not make sense to be Optimal or even Significant at all of them.   
 
Dr. Hess agreed with Mr. Humphreys that Optimal was just too big of a statement, but it also says 
they are doing everything possible, which means, based on the taxes, they are doing everything 
they can.  He could rate a lot of them at 80 or better, so sometimes green (Optimal) was just too 
high and he was inclined more towards the blue (Significant).   
 
Ms. Frenkel encouraged them to look at 2.c., which focuses on their role in recommending 
policies to address surveillance of public health threats.  She asked if they had recommended 
policies that include reporting guidelines.  They may or may not have; there may be good reasons 
why they have not.  She encouraged them to discuss what the role has been in relation to that 
policy development.   
 
Mr. Humphreys stated he appreciated the comments and could overlook the statement that there 
was no room for improvement, because there is always room for improvement.  He noted he 
would refocus his thoughts from this point forward on the numerical values and also keep the 
budget restrictions in mind.  He suggested they should keep in mind that they were doing the best 
that they could do with the budget they have.   
 
Mr. Todd, speaking to Ms. Frenkel’s point and looking at the spread of votes on 2.c., stated it was 
important to remember that the Board exists within a larger context in the State.  When Ms. 
Frenkel asked if they had passed policies dealing with public health surveillance, he could not 
recall that this board ever had.  It was not a bad thing, they have not had to, because the State 
Board of Health has passed policies that say which diseases are reportable within which time 
frames, etc.  He felt staff did an excellent job on surveillance, and they have not had to ask the 
Board to pass policies, even though they have the legal authority to do so.   
 
Ms. Frenkel requested input regarding the results of 2.d.   

           Page 11 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
Mr. Humphreys noted they had been going through leadership transitions with the various DHOs, 
so thoughts could be split between what they were doing a year ago and what they were doing 
now.  This caused a bit of a conflict in his mind when considering his response to the question.   
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 2.a.  3 Optimal, 2 Significant 
Question 2.b.  3 Optimal, 2 Significant 
Question 2.c.  1 Optimal, 2 Significant, 2 Moderate 
 
Ms. Frenkel noted the absence of a consensus and said this may be one example of where it was 
appropriate that their activity had been minimal, or even non-existent in light of what Dr. Todd had 
described.  It was not about the quality of the activity but the activity itself.  If there has only been 
minimal or moderate activity it was not necessarily a reflection of a problem.   
 
Mr. Silverman noted that Dr. Todd had once explained to him that if he didn’t hear about a 
problem that was a good thing.  It is not as though there is a tremendous amount of activity they 
are responding to, that could mean they are doing a good job of responding or maybe there just 
is not a lot going on.   
 
Dr. Hess noted that the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Air Quality and the State, 
regarding infectious diseases, have set policies that the Board has accepted in the past.  To his 
knowledge they have not had to face any specific activity requiring action, so he had a problem 
with the interpretation.   
 
Mr. Dick pointed out a number of activities associated with air quality are driven by Federal 
requirements.  Several years ago the decision was made to move forward with an air quality 
station which is one of approximately 80 that monitor to that level of pollutants across the country.  
That was one example of a Board decision that supports the surveillance.   
 
Mr. Dick when on to say that when weighing Question 2 versus Question 1, he feels the scoring 
makes sense, as the District does a good job and the Board supports it in the surveillance area.   
 
Results of third vote: 
Question 2.c.  5 Significant 
Results of second vote (continued from previous discussion): 
Question 2.d.  1 Optimal, 3 Significant, 1 Moderate   
 
 
Essential Service 3 - Inform, Educate & Empower People About Health Issues 
 

           Page 12 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Kutz provided examples including the PIO who pushes out information as requested, press 
releases, community education, health care provider education, individual- and group-level 
interventions and education and health education and risk reduction for individuals and groups. 
 
Ms. Brown pointed out this service was about how they were keeping the community informed 
about health issues.  It was about designing and conducting programs at the agency level, and 
services and policies that support preventing disease and death.  It was also about having a 
health communication plan, to include tailoring it to appropriate audiences.  Additionally, it was 
also about being sure WCHD is communicating in different methods, meeting the needs of the 
targeted audience.  The governing entity’s role is to encourage the WCHD to complete activities 
that fit the goal of the essential service.  The Board may review the materials and provide 
feedback.  The Board may also encourage individuals to interact with them so they can relay 
concerns back to the Health District.   
 
Ms. Frenkel reminded the Board the focus of the questions was on their role, not evaluating staff 
efforts.   
 
Dr. Hess asked if there was a health communications plan in place.   
 
Mr. Kutz stated there had been a draft a few years ago but did not know if it had been formally 
adopted.   
 
Dr. Todd indicated this may be an area that is siloed.  Public Health Preparedness was required 
to have a public information plan in place.   
 
Mr. Dick stated WCHD does not have a robust communications plan.  Each Division and some 
programs were implementing campaigns.  One project being pursued was to have people get in 
touch with the PIO early on to achieve consistency in the communications and to have an overall 
understanding of all of the communication that is going on when there are reports going out. 
 
Dr. Hess opined the District did a good job of communication.  He suggested they scratch the 
question because communication may or may not get better if there was a centralized plan.   
 
Mr. Dick noted it was fine if they scored this service as Minimal or No Activity and the Board could 
decide that was acceptable.   
 
Ms. Frenkel re-emphasized the score was not a judgment.  It was informative and it may be very 
logical, given the circumstances.  She pointed out that when the question “Do we have this from 
staff?” is asked it is an indicator that there is potentially some interest in gaining more awareness 
about what is in place.   
 

           Page 13 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Results of initial vote: 
Question 3.a.  At what level does the governing entity recommend budget items for community 
health promotion programs? 
3 Significant, 1 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 3.b.  At what level does the governing entity ensure the public health department is 
using a health communications plan?  1 Significant, 2 Moderate, 2 Minimal   
Question 3.c.  At what level does the governing entity recommend policies that support culturally 
appropriate health promotion activities?  1 Significant, 3 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
 
Commissioner Jung opined they did a great job with the gay community but not so much with 
other cultures regarding outreach and education.  That may be due to lack of funding availability.   
 
Ms. Frenkel reiterated it was not about the activities but the Board’s role in recommending them 
and showing leadership.   
 
Question 3.d.  At what level does the governing entity encourage citizens to provide input on 
community health issues to the public health department governing entity?  2 Moderate, 2 
Minimal, 1 No Activity.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted a lack of consensus on Questions 3.b and 3.d and requested discussion on 
3.b.   
 
Mr. Silverman stated he reminded himself each time to answer the question from the Board 
perspective, not assessing staff roles.  He was asking himself two different questions.  He 
encouraged the members to say that to themselves before they answered the questions.  It is not 
an assessment of what staff is doing, it is an assessment of what the Board’s role is.   
 
Ms. Frenkel pointed out that not knowing if there was a communication plan may be an indicator 
of lower activity, because it means that it has not been an activity that the Board has undertaken.  
It does not mean that you may be criticizing a communication plan that the staff may have. 
 
Commissioner Jung reminded the members that staff needs to hear why they vote the way they 
do.   
 
Chair Smith agreed with Dr. Hess in that they do a good job but really do not have a plan.  He 
chose Moderate because there is opportunity for improvement.   
 
Ms. Frenkel then encouraged discussion regarding 3.d.   
 
Chair Smith noted few public comments were received during Board meetings.   
 

           Page 14 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Humphreys stated he had voted Moderate and he added they do not provide a lot of direction 
to staff to seek input from the public.   
 
Mr. Sack suggested they give themselves credit for receiving questions and requests from the 
public and forwarding them to staff for resolution.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated she would like to see more citizen participation with the Health District 
and does not believe the governing entity encourages it.  She opined they did not discourage it, 
but the regular meeting time was not optimal for the general public to attend.  She noted they did 
not get much public input for any of the policies they implement.  She suggested the community 
health assessment may provide an opportunity for the public to be queried as to how they would 
like to participate in public health or if they would even like to.  She suggested they could direct 
staff to agendize the issue.   
 
Chair Smith opined there was not much opportunity for the public to speak, three minutes at a 
meeting was not much.   
 
Ms. Brown noted there were numerous ways for people to contact the Board; they did not have to 
physically come to a meeting to present their comments. 
 
Commissioner Jung agreed with Chair Smith in that a three-minute comment period did not 
accomplish much.  She noted that anything brought up during the comment period could be 
agendized at the request of a Board member.   
 
Mr. Dick agreed, noting the community health assessment would provide an opportunity to 
develop forums and focus groups, as well as other avenues for public engagement. 
 
Ms. Frenkel requested input regarding items 3.a. and 3.c.  She noted they had both consensus 
and outliers on both and wanted to capture comments.   
 
Mr. Humphreys asked if the Board had discussed cultural diversity in the community and defined 
those groups.  He was aware they received reports from Community & Clinical Health Services 
(CCHS) but did not recall substantial Board discussion on the topic.   
 
Ms. Frenkel requested a second vote for 3.d., regarding encouragement of the citizens to provide 
input.   
 
Commissioner Jung opined the District does encourage public participation, but the public 
chooses not to participate.   
 
Dr. Hess noted people do report air pollution and contamination and he knows of many different 

           Page 15 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

ways the public can contact the department.   
 
Commissioner Jung requested that Ms. Frenkel use “…the District Board of Health…” rather than 
“… the governing entity…” when reading the questions.   
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 3.a.  3 Significant, 1 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 3.b.  3 Minimal, 2 No Activity (Second vote split - third vote taken after break upon 
return of Chair Smith.) 
Question 3.c.  1 Significant, 3 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 3.d.  3 Moderate, 1 Minimal (Chair Smith out of the room) 
 
[2:32 p.m. 10-minute break.  The meeting reconvened at 2:44 p.m.] 
 
Essential Service 4 - Mobilize Partnerships to Identify & Solve Health Problems 
 
Ms. Brown explained this question had to do with how well WCHD is getting people and other 
organizations engaged in health.  It was about engaging and sustaining partnerships.  The 
partnerships help support the agency and the system as a whole.  It is also about utilization of 
resources and avoiding duplication.  The entity’s role is related to collaborations and 
incorporating elements of other agency’s policies or practices and encouraging use of the Health 
District policies when appropriate.  
 
Dr. Todd noted examples of what the Health District has done include some community health 
assessments and compiling plans for additional ones.  Programs have conducted focus groups, 
community immunization assessments and planned development, food inspections and 
regulations, fees, community meetings, PHP programs in hospitals and dispensing planning. 
 
Commissioner Jung stated part of the challenge for her was to remember they were discussing 
the Board’s role when they were listing staff activities.  Dr. Todd asked if it would be helpful if they 
did not provide those examples and Commissioner Jung opined it would be but it was up to the 
Board.   
 
Ms. Brown explained they had discussed how much information to share but had decided the 
examples would help the members remember what had been done.   
 
Mr. Dick opined the purpose of providing examples was to provide clarification about each 
essential service.  He suggested they refrain from providing the examples unless a Board 
member requested clarification.   
 
Dr. Hess noted that because they were approving staff reports, they were essentially approving 

           Page 16 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

policies.  He did appreciate hearing the examples.  He opined if a member knew about it and 
could remember taking action on it, at least in that one area, they could answer more fully.  He 
asked if that was correct. 
 
Ms. Frenkel replied it was dependent on how the activity was defined and recommended they 
review the way the questions were worded.  She reviewed Question 4.a. and noted the keys 
were: 1) at what level does the Board support coordination of resources that the Health District 
may be doing, and: 2) what was the Board’s role in supporting that activity.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 4.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health support coordination of resources 
for strategic alliance building activities?  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
Question 4.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage the public health 
department to engage in strategic alliances with public health system stakeholder organizations 
to solve community health problems?  5 Significant   
Question 4.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health promote the inclusion of public 
health in policies developed by other governing entities?  3 Significant, 2 Minimal 
 
Ms. Frenkel requested discussion about 4.c. regarding the difference in perspective.    
 
Dr. Hess stated he did not recall taking any action although it was apparent there were other 
members that did remember some action.   
 
Chair Smith explained he understood “…other governing entities.” to mean State and Federally 
mandated policies and the Board does support those.  He felt they were in agreement with 
activities other entities are doing.  
 
Ms. Brown clarified that the public health department may not be the only community group or 
organization with a governing entity.  Other community departments, corporations, hospitals and 
non-profit organizations have governing boards as well and the Board could engage with them in 
a variety of ways.  The State Board of Health could fit into that category.  
 
Commissioner Jung stated she did not believe they participated as much as they probably 
should.  It was possible they were not allowed to legally.  New businesses are required to obtain 
various approvals but they do not review DBOH policies.  DBOH direct staff regarding the policies 
but the Regional Planning Governing Board (RPGB) governs two cities and the County and they 
are making policy recommendations without input from DBOH.  She is concerned that the Board 
rubber-stamps policies recommended by staff without considering the bigger picture.  The School 
District is not required to take their plans to RPGB for approval.  She reiterated she feels like 
DBOH serves an important role and does not have enough say.  They have valuable policies that 
could be used to help the school district and guide residential development.  The Board learns 

           Page 17 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

things through the community health assessments but they do not provide guidance to other 
entities on those areas of expertise.   
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 4.a.  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
Question 4.b.  5 Significant   
Question 4.c.  3 Significant, 1 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
 
 
Essential Service 5 - Develop Policies & Plans That Support Individual & Statewide Health Efforts 
 
Ms. Brown asked if the Board would like staff to present examples or if they would prefer to wait.   
 
Commissioner Jung requested they frame examples within the context of what had been done as 
a result of Board direction.   
 
Mr. Kutz noted that, based on direction, support and/or approval of the Board, staff had 
implemented public health preparedness plans that include fire vaccination trainings, fire hospital 
and business POD planning, multi-casual incident planning, mass illness plans, the 
communicable disease outbreak response plan, the STD outbreak response plan’  Various 
Federal, State and local laws or mandates allow the Health District to enact policies such as 
communicable disease investigations, food-borne illness investigations, immunization program 
and policies, STD/HIV programs and policies and air quality monitoring and enforcement.   
 
Ms. Brown pointed out this service was about what policies are used to promote health.  All the 
questions were related to having good governing entity practices. 
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 5.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health annually review documentation of 
its legal authority?  3 Significant, 2 Minimal 
Question 5.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health annually review the District Board of 
Health’s guiding documents?  2 Significant, 1 Moderate, 2 Minimal 
Question 5.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health budget appropriate public health 
department resources to implement a community health improvement plan?  2 Significant, 2 
Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 5.d.  At what level does the District Board of Health participate in the public health 
department’s strategic planning process (every 3-5 years)?  4 Significant, 1 Moderate 
Question 5.e.  At what level does the District Board of Health develop a District Board of Health 
strategic plan?  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
Question 5.f.  At what level does the District Board of Health recommend evidence-based policies 
to address identified health priorities?  4 Significant, 1 No Activity   

           Page 18 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Question 5.g.  At what level does the District Board of Health monitor the establishment of the 
public health department’s all-hazards emergency response plan?  4 Significant, 1 Minimal 
Question 5.h.  At what level does the District Board of Health support aligning jurisdiction 
resources with state-level plans for health improvement?  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
 
Ms. Brown suggested it would be easier to have a broad discussion than address each question.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated she had never seen the Board recommend evidence-based policies.  
Staff makes recommendations based on evidence-based policies.  She did not feel that was her 
role, goal or job.  Dr. Furman had occasionally brought in outside research and attempted to 
make recommendations.  Staff would review it and report back to the Board as to whether or not 
they felt it should be pursued.  She felt the question was non-applicable, as she was not aware 
she was supposed to be doing policy research.  Her view was that their job was to take the 
subject-matter expert’s recommendations, ask clarifying questions and potentially recommend 
the evidence-based approach.  She would not want a Board to take on that role.   
 
Mr. Humphreys agreed staff does a good job providing them with evidence-based information 
and he opined they could do one of two things.  One was to accept what staff tells them the other 
is to effect what is happening.  Acceptance of what staff tells the Board sends the message that 
the Board agrees with the policies and actions being taken.  If they do not agree, they have the 
opportunity and responsibility to try to effect what is happening.   
 
Dr. Hess opined policy was that the Board expected staff to make decisions based on evidence-
based material.   
 
Commissioner Jung suggested the question should have more to do with approving evidence-
based policy recommendations, rather than actively making the recommendations.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted 5.c. did not have consensus and Commissioner Jung had a decidedly different 
opinion than the rest of the Board about Question 5.f.  
 
Ms. Brown requested comments for 5.c. 
 
Mr. Humphreys pointed out a challenge was budget availability.  The funds are very limited in a 
lot of areas.  The Health District does a good job, and the Board does a good job directing staff, 
regarding using resources appropriately.   
 
Ms. Frenkel requested a second vote on 5.c. 
 
Commissioner Jung asked if there was a community health improvement plan.  Mr. Dick stated 
there was not.  Commissioner Jung asked aloud how anyone could vote Moderate if it did not 

           Page 19 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

exist.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted the lack of a plan would be a good reason to vote no.   
 
Chair Smith suggested the FR process represented activity in that area.  He noted there were 
funds budgeted for that purpose.  
 
Mr. Dick opined one of the recommendations that would come out of the Fundamental Review 
would be that they should be doing a community health review.   
 
Commissioner Jung pointed out the FR was designed to look at quality assurance and if they 
were doing everything they could to be leaner and meaner and fundamentally changing in 
response to lack of money.  That may be a recommendation but they cannot say they have been 
doing that.  She noted she had no recollection of ever having reviewed documentation of their 
legal authority or guiding documents and asked if they had guiding documents. 
 
Mr. Dick replied there were By-Laws.   
 
Ms. Frenkel asked if they reviewed them as a Board on an annual basis and Commissioner Jung 
stated they did not.   
 
Dr. Hess noted he had reviewed the guiding documentation when he started with the Board but 
that had not been done annually. 
 
Mr. Kutz noted that as part of the public health accreditation process, a community health 
assessment is done and that is what drives the community health improvement plan. WCHD is on 
the right track.    
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 5.a.  1 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
Question 5.b.  5 Minimal 
Question 5.c.  1 Minimal, 4 No Activity   
Question 5.d.  4 Significant, 1 Moderate   
Question 5.e.  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
Question 5.f.  5 Significant  
Question 5.g.  4 Significant, 1 Minimal   
Question 5.h.  3 Significant, 2 Moderate 
 
Ms. Brown opined the votes on 5.f. were disparate due to the fact that a few people feel that they 
are voting low because the governing entity should be recommending the policies and a few 
people feel like they are voting higher because they are recommending what staff is presenting.  

           Page 20 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

If they could come to a consensus on what they were voting on perhaps that would help.   
 
Commissioner Jung opined the question was poorly worded.  NALBOH would not want the Board 
to provide scientific-based evidence regarding a specific aspect of health care.  She was satisfied 
with an interpretation that the question was asking “At what level does the Board approve staff-
recommended evidence-based policies.”   
 
Mr. Silverman opined it was actually asking if they recommended evidence-based policies.  He 
agreed their job was not to do the research on the policies but they could make 
recommendations.  He did not see them making recommendations as the question was asking.  
 
Mr. Dick addressed the scoring.  To apply it that way, they would need to presume that the Board 
member is recommending evidence-based practices would be optimal.  He agreed with 
Commissioner Jung that that sounds sub-optimal, with the exception of a few highly-trained 
Board members potentially presenting scientific evidence.   
 
Ms. Frenkel wondered if the best word instead of approve or recommend would be support.  The 
Board agreed.   
 
Essential Service 6 - Enforce Laws & Regulations That Protect Health & Ensure Safety 
 
Mr. Kutz listed examples that included, via laws mandated via Nevada Revised Statutes or 
Nevada Administrative Code, exclusion of students from school for lack of immunizations, or from 
work related to a communicable disease.  A restaurant could be closed due to violations or air 
quality standard violations.   
 
Ms. Brown explained the service was about the fact they understand existing regulations and that 
there are methods to prosecute if appropriate.  DBOH’s role is to act as enforcement agent and to 
support the Health District to be sure all enforcing agents are aware of their roles and 
responsibilities.  It was also about educating those affected by the laws to be sure they 
understand how the regulations affect them and letting them know of educational opportunities.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 6.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health confirm legal authority exists for the 
enforcement of public health policies?  1 Optimal, 4 Significant 
Question 6.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health annually review its legal documents 
to ensure that they comply with other existing statutes?  1 Significant, 2 Moderate, 2 Minimal  
Question 6.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health budget for resources to be used for 
enforcement activities?  5 Significant 
Question 6.d.  At what level does the District Board of Health utilize legal counsel?  5 Significant  
Question 6.e.  At what level does the District Board of Health advocate that public health policies 

           Page 21 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

are appropriately enforced?  4 Significant, 1 Moderate 
Question 6.f.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage those impacted by public 
health policies to participate in programs developed to improve compliance?  5 Significant  
 
Ms. Frenkel requested discussion regarding Question 6.b. 
 
Mr. Dick noted a consideration when answering the question was that the Legislature convenes 
bi-annually.  The Board is engaged in tracking bills that are introduced and staff are reviewing.  
The Health District may be working to influence the outcome of those bills to see statutes 
changed and regulations adopted.  While they may not have a meeting item that reviews all of the 
documents to be sure they are still in compliance with statutes that have not changed, staff does 
watch for statutes that are changing and track them to see what impacts they may have on 
current requirements.   
 
Commissioner Jung opined the difference was, probably the best practice from the national public 
health standard, is that it should be done annually.  This is likely derived from areas that have full-
time Legislators.  She acknowledged the Board participated in the bi-annual review with the goal 
of taking a stance on certain bills.  The Board does utilize reviews from staff regarding what bills 
affect the Health District and what needs to be changed.   
 
Mr. Sack noted all mandates and legal authorities were included in the budget documents every 
year, along with any updated changes, which the Board reviews.  
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 6.a.  1 Optimal, 4 Significant 
Question 6.b.  5 Significant 
Question 6.c.  5 Significant 
Question 6.d.  5 Significant 
Question 6.e.  4 Significant, 1 Moderate 
Question 6.f.  5 Significant 
 
 
Essential Service 7 - Link People to Needed Personal Health Services & Assure the Provision of 
Health Care When Otherwise Unavailable 
 
Mr. Kutz listed examples including provision of resource and referral to community services.  Also 
the Health District may fill the gap to meet community demand to protect the health of the public 
through the various clinical services provided such as the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) 
program, immunizations, family planning, STD/HIV services and Tuberculosis (TB).   
 
Ms. Brown explained the service was about assuring that people were receiving the medical care 

           Page 22 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

they need.  It was also about providing the best services or directing people to organizations that 
can provide the services.  The governing entity’s role is about working with staff to identify if there 
are barriers to care, encouraging staff to partner with other agencies and assuring that staff is 
striving to communicate with different populations that may not be receiving care.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 7.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health advocate for services for all citizens 
in a jurisdiction?  2 Significant, 3 Moderate 
Question 7.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage linkages between the 
public health department and other public health system stakeholder organizations to reduce 
barriers to care?  3 Significant, 2 Moderate   
Question 7.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health assure the implementation of 
policies supporting outreach to all citizens in the jurisdiction?  2 Significant, 3 Moderate 
 
Ms. Brown suggested it would be useful for the record if the members would share a few 
examples of how they feel like the DBOH had achieved some of the goals.   
 
Commissioner Jung noted the Health District had utilized MPH interns from the University of 
Nevada, Reno (UNR) and the Board also provides scholarships.  WCHD also partnered with 
Planned Parenthood to try to provide them Title 10 funds.  She felt their involvement in looking for 
other shareholders and stakeholders was significant.   
 
The Board members agreed the original votes could stand. 
 
Question 7.a.  2 Significant, 3 Moderate 
Question 7.b.  3 Significant, 2 Moderate   
Question 7.c.  2 Significant, 3 Moderate 
 
 
Essential Service 8 -Assure a Competent Public & Personal Health Care Workforce  
 
Mr. Kutz noted there were several examples, including staff evaluations containing SMART goals, 
staff have opportunities for program-specific trainings and professional development through the 
Washoe County Learning Center, EPI-News is a tool used to educate staff and the medical 
community about public health issues, opportunities are provided for UNR students and interns to 
learn about public health, we provide invaluable public health experiences for future public health 
professionals, staff teaches at UNR and provide real-world experience to students, we also have 
MRC staff.   
 
Ms. Brown explained this service was about making sure there was a competent work health 
force.  The Board’s role is to budget for staff development and helping to be sure education and 

           Page 23 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

training opportunities are available to staff.  They should be appraising the performance of the 
public health executive.  Do they have input about how staff are evaluated?  Are they doing self-
assessments or are there opportunities for them to become more educated regarding public 
health? 
 
[Councilperson Ratti arrived at 3:35 p.m.] 
 
Dr. Hess asked if funds were available for continuing education.   
 
Mr. Dick replied there was grant funding available for professional development dependent upon 
what program people may be in.  Funds are not available to support tuition reimbursement for 
someone seeking an advanced degree.  Any funds available are targeted to course-specific 
expenditures such as registration and associated travel.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 8.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health conduct an annual self-
assessment?  2 Moderate, 4 No Activity 
Question 8.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health participate in board development 
opportunities (e.g., orientation, conference trainings, webinars, National Association of Local 
Boards of Health, etc.)?  3 Moderate, 3 Minimal 
Question 8.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health establish policies designed to 
ensure public health department job classification requirements are based on core competencies 
for public health professionals?  1 Moderate, 2 Minimal, 3 No Activity 
Question 8.d.  At what level does the District Board of Health review public health department job 
classifications?  3 Minimal, 3 No Activity 
Question 8.e.  At what level does the District Board of Health conduct annual performance review 
of the public health department executive?  2 Significant, 4 Moderate 
 
Ms. Frenkel requested input regarding 8.b. in an attempt to achieve consensus.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated she had voted Moderate, because the only opportunity she had been 
made aware of was a NALBOH meeting and the Board sends one member.  They have not been 
offered conference trainings, webinars or any other type of training.  There is opportunity for 
improvement but it is another constraint based on lack of funds.  She opined there were other, 
creative methods that could be shared with the Board to help them understand the different areas 
they are governing.   
 
Councilperson Ratti stated that was exactly her assessment of the facts, but she voted Minimal.  
There are free resources the Board members can take advantage of and they could be doing 
more individually.   
 

           Page 24 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Humphreys noted times that Mr. Dick had sent informational opportunities for their review.  
He agreed there was room for improvement  
 
Results of second vote for: 
Question 8.b.  2 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
 
Ms. Frenkel noted a lack of consensus regarding 8.c.  
 
Dr. Hess stated he did not believe they had ever discussed the topic.   
 
Mr. Dick opined that with 150 full-time employees in the District, it might not be a role the Board 
should be involved with.  He reiterated the assessment was designed for all Boards of Health 
across the country and there are some local Boards that have minimal staff and may have the 
ability to be much more engaged.   
 
Ms. Brown asked if job classifications could be edited to be specific to public health within the 
County framework.   
 
Mr. Dick pointed out a number of positions within the District were not specific to public health 
and some that are.  The classifications can be re-opened and edited from time to time but the 
District does not have full control over that process.  
 
Ms. Stickney noted that the different classifications and number of employees with the 
classifications had been presented to the Board in the past. 
 
Ms. Frenkel suggested they discuss 8.d. as it was a related topic.   
 
Councilperson Ratti asked if the organization published core competencies for public health 
professionals.  She opined it should be at a policy level that they align their job classifications as 
much as possible with national standards for core competencies.  She opined reviewing job 
classifications is not an applicable function for the Board to be conducting, but setting the policy 
stating they should be based on core competencies is.   
 
Mr. Dick noted national core competencies exist and are available for use.  He felt there are 
some places where they would fit in well and others they would not, based on the specific type of 
position.  He has not been involved in trying to apply them.  He opined there may be alignments 
within the class specifications but they have not been designed around the core competencies.   
 
Dr. Todd agreed with Mr. Dick’s comments.  He noted they have been using some core 
competencies because they are a grant requirement, but that is not exactly what the question is 
talking about.   

           Page 25 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
Ms. Brown said the guiding question was “What policies has the Board of Health developed for 
the District to ensure that all staff are held to certain levels of public health competency?”  To 
clarify, it was asking if there are policies in place to assure that there are levels of competency, 
not so much a review of class specifications.  
 
Mr. Dick noted there were positions that were established at different levels but they are not 
classified by the generic core competency levels that are in the standards.   
 
Ms. Frenkel requested discussion regarding 8.a.   
 
Mr. Humphreys noted he was one of the outliers on this vote.  He felt the Board did do that, but 
has not created a formal plan.  He changed his vote to No Activity.   
 
Results of second vote for: 
Question 8.a.  1 Moderate, 5 No Activity 
Question 8.c.  6 No Activity 
Question 8.d.  2 Minimal, 4 No Activity 
Question 8.e.  2 Significant, 4 Moderate 
 
 
Essential Service 9 -Evaluate Effectiveness, Accessibility & Quality of Personal & Population-
Based Health Services  
 
Mr. Kutz described examples including programs that have both formal and informal evaluation 
processes, some mandated by Grantors, many programs conduct ongoing evaluations to include 
surveys, website feedback, etc., qualitative and quantitative data is analyzed and used to improve 
programs and services, example: when conducting public health drills and exercises, after-action 
reports, improvement plans, AARIPs are written up to determine both strengths and areas for 
improvement. 
 
Ms. Brown elaborated by explaining the service was about making sure that, as the entity that is 
governing, but also as the Heath District, they are doing the best job they can and are working on 
any areas that need improvement.  The Board should provide access to resources that will allow 
staff to conduct evaluations.  It is also the Board’s role to encourage anyone who uses the 
evaluations to provide feedback and to use the evaluations to make improvements.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 9.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health establish policies supporting a 
quality improvement plan for public health services?  1 Moderate, 4 Minimal, 1 No Activity 
Question 9.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health advocate for appropriate resources 

           Page 26 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

to support quality improvement activities?  5 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 9.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage public health system 
stakeholder organizations to contribute to the quality improvement process?  1 Moderate, 3 
Minimal, 2 No Activity 
Question 9.d.  At what level does the District Board of Health use evaluation findings to allocate 
resources to effective programs?  1 Moderate, 1 Minimal, 4 No Activity 
Question 9.e.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage evaluation on the impact 
of public health policies?  2 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
 
Ms. Frenkel requested discussion on 9.c.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated that during her tenure there had never been a QI process until the one 
they were undergoing right now, which was the Fundamental Review.  She had no knowledge of 
the Board directing that other stakeholders be evaluated by the Fundamental Review Team.   
 
Councilperson Ratti opined what was missing was a comprehensive QI process.  She realized 
there was QI but it was all driven at staff and program level.  She provided the example of 
emergency preparedness planning.  There is rigorous, regular evaluation and improvement and 
staff invites stakeholders to be involved in that.  Since it was a governance question, she could 
not say that, as a governing member, she has ever been asked or thought to get more members 
of the community involved in QI.  There is not an absence of QI, just no governance participation.  
 
Mr. Humphreys noted they do receive, accept and approve staff reports and by doing so he feels 
they have somewhat participated in their QI work with the other organizations.    
 
Ms. Frenkel requested comment on 9.c.   
 
Mr. Dick noted the Board was pushing for the Health District to do the Fundamental Review and 
felt that was a significant QI activity.   
 
Results of second vote: 
Question 9.a.  1 Moderate, 4 Minimal, 1 No Activity 
Question 9.b.  5 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 9.c.  6 Minimal 
Question 9.d.  1 Moderate, 1 Minimal, 4 No Activity 
Question 9.e.  2 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
 
 
Essential Service 10 - Research for New Insights & Innovative Solutions to Health Problems 
 
Mr. Kutz provided examples to include programs that partner with UNR, the EPI program which 

           Page 27 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

routinely contributes to the body of knowledge of Epidemiology with Communicable Disease 
investigations and occasionally submits to peer-reviewed literature and/or CDC MMWR.   
 
Ms. Brown explained the research impacted the other nine services so this refers to research that 
is done for the workforce addressing monitoring, informing and educating.  It is about discovering 
and using new ways to get the job done.  The Board role is to be aware of benefits and the 
importance of public health research and advocate for it.   
 
Results of initial vote: 
Question 10.a.  At what level does the District Board of Health ensure the public health 
department implements evidence-based policies to support practices in its jurisdiction?  1 
Significant, 4 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 10.b.  At what level does the District Board of Health encourage collaboration between 
the public health department and academic institutions for community-based research?  3 
Significant, 3 Moderate   
Question 10.c.  At what level does the District Board of Health facilitate access to resources for 
research?  2 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
 
Ms. Frenkel requested comment on 10.b. 
 
Ms. Brown stated the guiding questions included asking what kinds of collaborations has the 
entity encouraged with educational facilities and how is the governing entity contributing to this.  
Also, do any of the members of the governing entity have connections to the institutions, i.e. are 
there any staff members from UNR on the Board.   
 
Commissioner Jung opined the vote should be Moderate, if not Minimal, because the Board has 
no relationship with UNR.  The Health District does interact with them, using interns and assisting 
with scholarships.  She agreed they should recruit someone from UNR for the Board when there 
was an opening.  That would help them with some of the questions regarding whether they are 
ensuring that they are recommending research-based solutions to public health issues.   
 
Mr. Dick noted that an individual from the UNR School of Medicine would be speaking at the 
February DBOH meeting regarding the Board’s public health scholarship.  Scholarship recipients 
will also attend and the Board will be invited to tour the Medical School.   
 
Mr. Humphreys opined staff and the Health District was doing a significant job and the Board had 
not done much encouragement to enhance what is already being done.   
 
Commissioner Jung asked if CCHS had any theories about why the teenage pregnancy rate was 
declining.  She referred to research conducted in correlation with a reality-based show about 
teenage pregnancy that indicated the show may be having a positive influence.   

           Page 28 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
Results of second vote: 
Question 10.a.  1 Significant, 4 Moderate, 1 Minimal 
Question 10.b.  1 Significant, 5 Moderate   
Question 10.c.  2 Moderate, 4 Minimal 
 
[4:07 p.m. break - reconvene at 4:15 p.m.] 
 
Ms. Frenkel initiated a discussion regarding what the Board perceives to be their priorities among 
the ten essential services.  From the dialog worksheet, she asked them to reflect on and identify 
which essential services are most important to them for the DBOH to do a good job on and why 
they think they are the most important.  She indicated a poster on the wall with the wheel 
representing the 10 essential services and asked them to place sticky dots on the four that they 
thought were the top priorities.  She encouraged them to consider their own priorities and not go 
with those of the other Board members.   
 
The number of dots on each of the essential services is as follows: 
#1, Monitor Health – 5 
#2, Diagnose & Investigate – 1 
#3, Inform, Educate, Empower – 4 
#4, Mobilize Community Partnerships – 3 
#5, Develop Policies – 5 
#6, Enforce Laws – 2 
#7, Link to/Provide Care – 1 
#8, Assure Competent Workforce – 2 
#9, Evaluate – 1 
#10, Research – 0 
 
Commissioner Jung noted the top realms selected were Assessment and Policy Development, 
not Assurance.   
 
Ms. Frenkel reiterated these seemed to be the most important priorities to the Board.   
 
The audience viewed the composite results of the voting.  Ms. Frenkel noted the essential 
services in which the Board scored the highest were Diagnose & Investigate, Mobilize 
Community Partnerships and Enforce Laws.  The lowest scores included Assure Competent 
Workforce, Evaluate and Research.   
 
Ms. Frenkel asked what they noticed regarding their prioritization and their scoring.  At least a few 
of the Board members opined they were doing well.   
 

           Page 29 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Commissioner Jung stated they were honest with themselves and the assessment, there was 
validity.   
 
Councilperson Ratti noted a gap with #3, Inform, Educate and Empower.  It was one of the 
highest priorities but the vote only reflected 50 percent.  Same with #5, Develop Policies.   
 
Ms. Frenkel suggested #3 and #5 might be opportunities for the Board to explore as they move 
forward.  She asked for initial ideas about how some of the areas could be improved and how 
they could support the essential service.   
 
Ms. Brown suggested that categories the Board had indicated were low priorities may not have 
been chosen as high priorities because the Board was already doing them well.   
 
Commissioner Jung opined it had to do with learning how to do the test.   
 
Dr. Hess noted some things had been artificially separated that were actually very closely related.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted that during the first two rounds of the assessment some of the members were 
focusing more on evaluating staff than the Board. 
 
Chair Smith pointed out they regularly receive status reports, they do not diagnose or investigate 
as a Board.   
 
Ms. Frenkel refreshed them regarding the language of the standard, which is that they facilitate 
access to appropriate resources for public health surveillance also for public health response, 
and recommend policies to ensure diagnosis and investigation of health threats and 
emergencies.  It notes they encourage collaboration between the Health District and stakeholder 
organizations to diagnose and investigate public health threats and emergencies.   
 
Mr. Humphreys stated they realize staff is doing a great job and the Board has accepted what 
they are doing because they haven’t seen the need to make any change.   
 
Councilperson Ratti, referring to the Diagnose & Investigate topic, opined that currently the way 
the Board is influential is by what it pays the most attention to.  If the Board is paying attention the 
staff knows they need to pay attention.  Her experience was that there was something related to 
Diagnose & Investigate on almost every agenda.  They spend a lot of time on it, even if they are 
not necessarily doing anything.  She noted they were doing some things well, but did not think 
they were a high priority.  Regarding Enforcement - they were subject to mandates that 
influenced how they did certain things, so the likelihood of them losing sight of those mandated 
items is less.   
 

           Page 30 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Councilperson Ratti went on to say a big piece for her was Monitoring, which comes along with a 
community-wide health assessment that turns into a strategic plan that turns into a certain 
evaluation that tells them how they are doing on the strategic plan.  It is easier to let that go than 
the more critical pieces.  They are so busy doing important work sometimes that they don’t take 
the time to step back, evaluate, plan, monitor and do the strategic thinking that she thinks is 
important.   
 
Chari Smith opined results of Question 2 indicated that the members in general were comfortable 
with what they are doing.   
 
Ms. Frenkel noted it was not uncommon to think in terms of what they needed to work harder on.  
She suggested the ones they might look at more closely would be Questions 1, 3 and 5.  They 
were not high-scoring but did get a lot of votes in terms of priorities.   
 
Chair Smith noted Monitoring was an ongoing item that was discussed at every meeting.  He 
opined that was why it received a high number of votes.   
 
Ms. Brown reiterated the Monitoring section was about the health assessment and Policies was 
about the health improvement plan and the strategic plan.  She noted the Board had ranked 
Strategic Processes as a high priority.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated the realization was that DBOH needs a fully robust community health 
assessment so that they can target what areas should be addressed while keeping the limited 
resources in mind.  After they have the community health assessment, it goes right into Policies, 
#5, which results in a community health improvement program.  She opined they were rated the 
way they were was because everyone was on the same Board now and sees the bigger picture 
of what is really lacking and why they have not been able to demonstrate how effective they have 
or have not been in terms of where they allocate resources and making the justification of how 
the budget looks.  It has never been attached to an assessment that never really happened.  
They had the ACHIEVE grant but that wasn’t attached to budget creation.  She felt it would help 
them make a plan and put their priorities and resources and then measuring that after the fact to 
see if Washoe County has become a healthier, safer and stronger community.   
 
Mr. Humphreys opined what the Board could do to help improve the process would be to give 
direction to staff to help them determine what an assessment plan should in fact be.  They are the 
experts on what happens with a policy so the Board should seek advice from staff so they can set 
the policy.   
 
Councilperson Ratti admitted to an initial defeatist thought that, if every Board and Commission 
went through this type of process and expected this level of performance, it would be impossible.  
After she put that behind her she realized it would be incredibly important for them to prioritize the 

           Page 31 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

things that are most important and will make the most impact in terms of making WCHD and 
community stronger.  At different phases within an organization, different facets of the 10 pieces 
will be more important.  We are coming out of a period of three DHOs and a recession.  Putting 
aside individual opinions about which pieces are important, which ones are most important for 
them to focus on at this point in the HDs history?  She had been through the recession and had 
been in the position to feel as though she did not have the tools to make the decisions about 
where the money should go.  The Board needs to get to a place where they have better 
information about what the overall health of the community is, what the overall strategy of the HD 
is to effect the health of the community, how it relates to other partners and what they are doing 
in the community and how they can get meaningful, regular evaluation of outcomes so that when 
they do have to make decisions they have the information they need.  She opined they were 
doing a good job of upholding the law.  She felt the partnerships with UNR and those types of 
things can be handled by staff.  She felt she needed more information as a tool to really govern.  
The FR should be more a routine process.  Assess, strategize, implement, evaluate and repeat.   
 
Mr. Humphreys noted the discussions they had had regarding the responsibilities and actions of 
the Board versus what staff is doing.  Sometimes it is a fine line and it can be challenging to 
make the separation.  He felt it was important for them as a Board to realize what their 
responsibility is and that is to set policy.   
 
Ms. Frenkel explained the information would be put into a report that summarizes the work done 
and the voting results chart.  It would include the comments, ideas and suggestions that came out 
of the discussion.   
 
Ms. Frenkel commended the Board and staff for agreeing to go through the process.  She noted it 
can be overwhelming but the prioritizing piece will continue as a part of important conversations 
for the Board to have.   
 
Ms. Brown felt it was well done and it spoke highly of DBOH to be willing to take on the process, 
because it is something a lot of national organizations are doing and now it can be said that 
WCHD is doing it too.  It is a big achievement.   
 
Mr. Dick thanked Ms. Frenkel and Ms. Brown for guiding the Board through the process, it was 
very helpful and they had done an excellent job.  He stated he was grateful for that and 
everybody’s participation and engagement and was delighted that it turned out to be a valuable 
exercise for everyone.  Based on the comments he had heard from the Board members and 
looking at the results and priorities he felt they had made good progress towards determining 
priorities and establishing a foundation for future success.  Starting in 2008 the question of what 
programs should be cut had come up repeatedly.  He had promised he would read the minutes 
from the meetings and what he saw were comments that they needed to conduct a community 
health assessment.  The mentality was that the resources did not exist to do that at the time.  He 

           Page 32 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 16, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

opined had the assessment been done then, the HD would be much better off now.  He did not 
think they could afford not to do a community health assessment with whatever resources they 
could scrape together.  He noted that was reflected as a high priority to the Board.  He reiterated 
the Community Health Improvement Plan will be built on that, which was also something that the 
Board scored highly.  From there, a Strategic Plan is developed which is instrumental for how 
they decide to allocate resources.  From the Strategic Planning process, they can decide how to 
inform, educate and empower and how to mobilize other organizations in the community to work 
with HD.  If they are working from the community health assessment on improvement planning 
processes with other community organizations, that begins to build relationships that can be used 
to engage the folks in the local public health system.  He was pleased that his views aligned with 
how the Board was thinking.  The FR report will arrive in February.  Mr. Dick anticipated it will 
contain recommendations that dovetail with the Board’s priorities so that they can use both tools 
to determine which ones are important and they feel they should move forward with.   
 
Chair Smith noted that the exercise had been very enlightening and they had gotten more out of it 
than many of the other strategic retreats the Board had convened during the 12 years he had 
been on the Board.  He thanked Mr. Dick, Ms. Frenkel and Ms. Brown for putting it together and 
reiterated it had been refreshing.  With the fundamental review coming up they had some exciting 
times coming.  He felt they had a bright future with real direction.  He thanked staff for doing a 
great job.   
 
 
 

7. Closing Comments Regarding 
District Board of Health 
Retreat by Board Members 
and Staff. 

None. Mr. Smith  
 

*8. 
 

Limited to Announcements or 
Issues for Future Agendas. 

Commissioner Jung requested an update on the Tribal Health issue regarding intervention of 
exposure to blood borne disease.  She requested that any GIS data being used be included in 
their meeting packets.  She requested more information about behavior/risk studies being 
conducted.  She stated she would like to see a composite of the results of the surveys for service 
that is provided to customers.  Commissioner Jung went on to say she felt the DBOH had a role 
to encourage and enlighten Physician’s offices that they should be more of a one-stop-shop, 
encouraging patients to get needed services like flu shots while they were in the office and 
delivering it to them.   

 
 

*9. 
 

Public Comment – (3 minute 
time limit per person) 

None.   

10. Adjournment  Commissioner 
Jung moved, 
seconded by Mr. 
Humphreys, that the 

           Page 33 





 



District Board of Health Public Health Governing Entity Assessment Results

1

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

3 2 Significant

3 2 Significant

4 1 Significant

4 1 Significant

1 4 Moderate

1 4 Moderate

1 2 1 1 FALSE

4 1 Significant

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

3 2 Optimal

3 2 Optimal

1 4 Significant

3 2 Optimal

1 2 2 FALSE

5 Significant

1 3 1 Significant

1 3 1 Significant

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

3 1 1 Significant

3 1 1 Significant

1 2 2 FALSE

3 2 Minimal

1 3 1 Moderate

1 3 1 Moderate

2 2 1 FALSE

3 1 Moderate

1.a At what level does the governing entity advocate for policies that define a community health 
assessment process?

At what level does the governing entity set priorities for community health improvement 
based on information from the community health assessment? 1.d

At what level does the governing entity budget for public health department resources to be 
used for a community health assessment?

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 1 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 2 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 3 

1.c

At what level does the governing entity encourage the public health department to actively 
collaborate with all public health system stakeholder organizations on a community health 
assessment? 

1.b

At what level does the governing entity encourage ongoing collaboration among public 
health system stakeholder organizations regarding issues of public health threats?2.d

At what level does the governing entity recommend policies that address the surveillance of 
public health threats? 2.c

At what level does the governing entity facilitate access to resources to respond to public 
health threats?2.b

At what level does the governing entity facilitate access to resources for the surveillance of 
public health threats?2.a

At what level does the governing entity recommend budget items for community health 
promotion programs?

At what level does the governing entity ensure the public health department is using a health 
communications plan?

At what level does the governing entity recommend policies that support culturally 
appropriate health promotion activities?

At what level does the governing entity encourage citizens to provide input on community 
health issues to the public health department governing entity?3.d

3.c

3.b

3.a



District Board of Health Public Health Governing Entity Assessment Results

2

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

3 2 Significant

3 2 Significant

5 Significant

5 Significant

3 2 Significant

3 1 1 Significant

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

3 2 Significant

1 4 Minimal

2 1 2 Minimal

5 Minimal

2 2 1 FALSE

1 4 No Activity

4 1 Significant

4 1 Significant

3 2 Significant

3 2 Significant

4 1 Significant

5 Significant

4 1 Significant

4 1 Significant

3 2 Significant

3 2 Significant

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 4 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 5 

At what level does the governing entity support coordination of resources for strategic 
alliance building activities?

At what level does the governing entity encourage the public health department to engage in 
strategic alliances with public health system stakeholder organizations to solve community 
health problems? 

At what level does the governing entity promote the inclusion of public health in policies 
developed by other governing entities?4.c

4.b

4.a

5.d

5.c

5.b

5.a

At what level does the governing entity monitor the establishment of the public health 
department’s all-hazards emergency response plan?

At what level does the governing entity support aligning jurisdiction resources with state-
level plans for health improvement?5.h

5.g

5.f

5.e

At what level does the governing entity annually review documentation of its legal authority?

At what level does the governing entity annually review the governing entity’s guiding 
documents?

At what level does the governing entity budget appropriate public health department 
resources to implement a community health improvement plan?

At what level does the governing entity participate in the public health department’s 
strategic planning process (every 3-5 years)?

At what level does the governing entity develop a governing entity strategic plan?

At what level does the governing entity recommend evidence-based policies to address 
identified health priorities?



District Board of Health Public Health Governing Entity Assessment Results

3

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

1 4 Significant

1 4 Significant

1 2 2 FALSE

5 Significant

5 Significant

5 Significant

5 Significant

5 Significant

4 1 Significant

4 1 Significant

5 Significant

5 Significant

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

2 3 Moderate

2 3 Moderate

3 2 Significant

3 2 Significant

2 3 Moderate

2 3 Moderate

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

2 4 No Activity
1 5 No Activity
3 3 FALSE

2 4 Minimal

1 2 3 FALSE

6 No Activity

3 3 FALSE

2 4 No Activity

2 4 Moderate

2 4 Moderate

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 8 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 6 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 7 

At what level does the governing entity confirm legal authority exists for the enforcement of 
public health policies?

At what level does the governing entity annually review its legal documents to ensure that 
they comply with other existing statutes?6.b

6.a

At what level does the governing entity assure the implementation of policies supporting 
outreach to all citizens in the jurisdiction?7.c

At what level does the governing entity encourage linkages between the public health 
department and other public health system stakeholder organizations to reduce barriers to 
care?

7.b

At what level does the governing entity advocate for services for all citizens in a jurisdiction?7.a

At what level does the governing entity budget for resources to be used for enforcement 
activities?

At what level does the governing entity utilize legal counsel?

At what level does the governing entity advocate that public health policies are appropriately 
enforced?

At what level does the governing entity encourage those impacted by public health policies 
to participate in programs developed to  improve compliance?6.f

6.e

6.d

6.c

At what level does the governing entity conduct an annual self-assessment?

At what level does the governing entity participate in board development opportunities (e.g., 
orientation, conference trainings, webinars, National Association of Local Boards of Health, 
etc.)?
At what level does the governing entity establish policies designed to ensure public health 
department job classification requirements are based on core competencies for public health 
professionals?

At what level does the governing entity review public health department job classifications?

At what level does the governing entity conduct annual performance review of the public 
health department executive?8.e

8.d

8.c

8.b

8.a



District Board of Health Public Health Governing Entity Assessment Results

4

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

1 4 1 Minimal

1 4 1 Minimal

5 1 Moderate

5 1 Moderate

1 3 2 FALSE

6 Minimal

1 1 4 No Activity

1 1 4 No Activity

2 4 Minimal

2 4 Minimal

Optimal Significant Moderate Minimal No Activity Not Applicable OVERALL

1 4 1 Moderate

1 4 1 Moderate

3 3 FALSE

1 5 Moderate

2 4 Minimal

2 4 Minimal

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 9 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE 10 

At what level does the governing entity facilitate access to resources for research? 10.c

10.b At what level does the governing entity encourage collaboration between the public health 
department and academic institutions for community-based research?

At what level does the governing entity ensure the public health department implements 
evidence-based policies to support practices in its jurisdiction?10.a

At what level does the governing entity establish policies supporting a quality improvement 
plan for public health services?

At what level does the governing entity advocate for appropriate resources to support 
quality improvement activities?

At what level does the governing entity encourage public health system stakeholder 
organizations to contribute to the quality improvement process?

At what level does the governing entity use evaluation findings to allocate resources to 
effective programs?

At what level does the governing entity encourage evaluation on the impact of public health 
policies?9.e

9.d

9.c

9.b

9.a



54% 

42% 

25% 

15% 

58% 

75% 

53% 

75% 

50% 

88% 

69% 

Overall score

Essential service 10

Essential service 9

Essential service 8

Essential service 7

Essential service 6

Essential service 5

Essential service 4

Essential service 3

Essential service 2

Essential service 1

Essential Service Chart: Your score for each essential service, and your 
overall score 



PRESENT: Chair Matt Smith, Vice Chair Kitty Jung, David Silverman, Dr. George Hess, Dr. Denis Humphreys, Councilperson Julia Ratti 
and Councilperson Sharon Zadra 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: 
Kevin Dick, Interim District Health Officer  
Herb Kaplan, Deputy District Attorney 
Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Charlene Albee, Acting Division Director, AQM  
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS  
Robert Sack, Division Director, EHS  
Jeff Whitesides, Manager, EPHP 
Steve Fisher, Department Computer Application Specialist, AHS 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, AHS 

Melissa Peek, Epidemiologist, EPHP 
Jim Gubbels, President, REMSA 
Christina Conti, Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator, EPHP 
Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director, AQM 

TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1:00 
PM 

*1, 2

Meeting Called to Order, Roll 
Call and Pledge of Allegiance 

Chair Smith called the meeting to order. Roll call was taken and 
quorum noted.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. John 
Slaughter.   

*3. Public Comment (limited to 
three (3) minutes per person).  
No action may be taken. 

None. 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda
for the January 23, 2014
Meeting

Chair Smith announced Item 14 would be heard immediately after 
Item 11.   

Councilperson Zadra 
moved, seconded by 
Councilperson Ratti, 
that the January 23, 
2014 agenda be 
approved as amended.  
MOTION CARRIED  

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 23, 2014 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.C.



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to 
the Minutes of the  
December 19, 2013 Regular 
Meeting 
 

Chair Smith called for any additions or corrections to the minutes of 
December 19, 2013 regular meeting. 

Councilperson Ratti 
moved, seconded by 
Mr. Silverman, that the 
minutes of the 
December 19, 2013 
regular meeting be 
approved as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

*6. 
 
 
 
 
 

Recognitions  Mr. Dick and Chair Smith announced the following recognitions: 
 
A.  Introduction of New Employee(s) –  

1. Dawn Spinola - Administrative Secretary –AHS – 1/13/14  
B.      Promotions –  

1. Theresa Goins – Permanent, Part-Time Advanced Practitioner 
of Nursing (APN) - CCHS 

C.     Years of Service –  
1. Christina Burton (Tina) – Plans/Permits Aid – AQM – 25 Years 

D.     Retirements/Departures –  
2. Wallace Prichard – Air Quality Specialist II – Retiring 1/31/14 

with 13+ Years of Service 
3. Mary Clauson – Office Assistant II – Leaving Nevada 1/31/14 

with 12+ Years of Service 
E.     Introduction of New Washoe County Manager –  

1. John Slaughter – 11/12/13 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Proclamations 
 

A. National Heart Month and National Wear Red Day - 
PROCLAIMED, by the Washoe County District Board of Health 
that February 7, 2014, is designated as National Wear Red Day 
and the month of February 2014 as American Heart Month. 

 
 

Mr. Silverman moved, 
seconded by 
Councilperson Zadra, 
that the Proclamation be 
approved as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

           
Page 2 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

B. National Radon Action Month in Washoe County - 
PROCLAIMED, by the Washoe County District Board of 
Health that the month of January is designated as National 
Radon Action Month in Washoe County.   

Susan Howe, from the University of Nevada Cooperative 
Extension Program, thanked the Health District and the 
American Lung Association for partnering with them in their 
efforts to reduce lung cancer in Washoe County.  She shared 
some statistics regarding Washoe County radon testing results 
and noted that the Cooperative Extension was offering free test 
kits through the end of February. 

 

 
 
 
 
Councilperson Ratti 
moved, seconded by 
Councilperson Zadra, 
that the Proclamation be 
approved as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

8. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consent Agenda   
 

A. Air Quality Management Cases: 
 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the 
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board: 

a. Whittlesea Checker Taxi – NOV 5396, Case 1142 
100 Sunshine Lane, Reno, NV 89502 

2. Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board. None. 

3. Recommendation for Variance: None. 

B. Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases:   Recommendation to 
Approve Variance Case(s) Presented to the Sewage, 
Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing Board.  None. 

C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:   

1. Approval of the Washoe County Smoke Management 
Program Memorandum of Understanding with Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District, North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District, The Nevada Department of Conservation 
and Natural Resources, Division of Forestry, Division of 
State Lands, Division of State Parks and Division of Wildlife; 
and the United States Department of the Interior, Bureau of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
Page 3 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Land Management and Fish & Wildlife Service 

D. Retroactive authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for 
non-County employee Harry “Bus” Sharman (District 1 
Commissioner from Churchill County) to attend the Robert Wood 
Johnson Foundation Learning Center Community meeting in 
San Diego, California in the approximate amount of $1,000, 
supported by the grant award (IO 20385). 

 

 
Councilperson Ratti 
moved, seconded by 
Mr. Humphreys, that 
the Consent Agenda be 
approved as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

9. Air Pollution Control Hearing 
Board Cases appealed to the 
District Board of Health. 

None.  

10. Regional Emergency Medical 
Services Authority  
    
A. Review and Acceptance of 

the REMSA Operations 
Reports for December, 
2013 
 

*B.  Update of REMSA’s 
Community Activities Since 
December, 2013 
 

Mr. Jim Gubbels, President of REMSA, reported that in December, 
2013 Priority 1 Compliance was 91%, and Priority 2 Compliance 
was 93%.  Average Care Flight bill for the month was $6,869, which 
brought the year-to-date average to $8,085.  The average Ground 
Service bill for the month was $1,075, which brought the year-to-
date ground average to $1,067. 
 
Mr. Gubbels noted our community has recently been highlighted due 
to active shooter cases and pointed out letters of thanks, included in 
the packet, for the utilization of REMSA’s Tactical EMS team.  He 
explained FEMA does make recommendations for EMS services 
and how they provide support during Active Shooter events.  
REMSA’s utilization of its Tactical EMS team had received national 
recognition.   
 
Mr. Gubbels discussed REMSA’s Running Red for Heart 5K run, 
benefitting the American Heart Association, to be held February 8, 
2014.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councilperson Ratti 
moved, seconded by 
Councilperson Zadra, 
to accept the REMSA 
Operations and 
Financial Report for 
December, 2013 as 
presented.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

11. Presentation, Discussion, and 
Possible Direction to Staff 
regarding Emergency Medical 
Services (“EMS”), Including 
Recommendations Contained 
in the TriData Report and 

Mr. Dick, in Dr. Todd’s absence, explained the EMS  
Working Group and REMSA were working towards Principles of 
Agreement for a renewed franchise agreement and were nearing a 
conclusion on that project.   
 
Mr. Dick told the Board that the EMS  

 
 
 
 
 
 

           
Page 4 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Various Other EMS Studies  
 

Working Group had been working on how to establish an oversight 
structure for the regional emergency medical services system.  
WCHD has been working with Mr. Slaughter, Mr. Gubbles and the 
managers from the cities of Reno and Sparks.  The staff report 
covering the Principles of Agreement as well as a Resolution for an 
Interlocal Agreement to establish an EMS oversight system will be 
presented to the jurisdictions and DBOH at a concurrent meeting on 
February 10, 2014 at 8:30 a.m. to be held at Reno City Hall in the 
Council Chambers.   
 
Councilperson Ratti requested Mr. Dick hold individual meetings 
with each of the Board members prior to February 10, 2014 to 
discuss the staff report and the proposed agreements.  Mr. Dick 
stated he would make time available for briefings on the work that 
has been done and the proposals that will be presented.   
 
Dr. Hess asked when the written report would be available and Mr. 
Dick estimated it would be sometime during the following week.  
 
Councilperson Zadra noted the Reno City Manager and Chief would 
be providing information on the matter to the Council members 
Monday of the following week.  She emphasized that the other 
Boards were experiencing the same informational time delays as 
DBOH.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report presented, no 
action taken. 
NO MOTION 
 

14. 
(Taken 
out of 
order.) 

Approval of proposed changes 
to the District Board of Health’s 
Suggested Guidelines for 
Emergency Medical Services 
(EMS) Coverage for Mass 
Gatherings 

Ms. Christina Conti, Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator, EPHP, presented the proposed guidelines, noting that 
during the last Legislative session the State had utilized the Health 
District’s guidelines as a tool to implement new legislation.  The 
changes to the guidelines were minimal; they incorporated specific 
language that is now State law.   

Commissioner Jung 
moved, seconded by Dr. 
Hess, to approve the 
proposed changes to 
the District Board of 
Health’s Suggested 
Guidelines for 
Emergency Medical 
Services (EMS) 
Coverage for Mass 
Gatherings. 
 

           
Page 5 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

12. Approval of the Health Fund 
Revenue and Expenditure 
Report for December, 2013 
 

Ms. Stickney recommended the DBOH accept the attached report of 
the revenues and expenditures for December, 2013.  She noted 
receipt of Medicaid revenue income and explained the steps that 
had been undertaken to cause that to occur.  She explained that 
atypical clinic activity had caused a variance of overstated third-
party reimbursements.    

Councilperson Zadra 
moved, seconded by 
Mr. Silverman, that the 
Health Fund Revenue 
and Expenditure Report 
for December, 2013 be 
approved as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

13. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Kick-
off, Calendar and Update with 
possible direction to staff. 
 

Ms. Stickney noted there would be a standing agenda item for Fiscal 
Year 15.  Review of line items, estimates to complete and forecasts 
for FY15 were currently being discussed.  Any resources that can be 
saved during FY14 can be reallocated and used as resources for 
FY15.   
 
Ms. Stickney reminded the Board of the budget presentation 
meeting to be held on March 6, 2014 at 1:00 p.m.  A budget meeting 
will be held with the City and County managers on March 5, 2014 
and Mr. Dick will pass along their comments to DBOH at their 
meeting.  Final budget approval is tentatively scheduled for April 15, 
2014. 
 
Dr. Hess remarked on a line item for Capital Improvement and Ms. 
Stickney noted that was not an annual occurrence.  The prior year 
had CI funds allocated for lobby remodel and an update to the 
phone system.  The current request would cover construction that 
would alleviate the dangers of a building entrance that is hazardous 
to employees during the winter.   
 
Councilperson Ratti asked if there was an extra meeting scheduled 
for budget and Ms. Stickney replied March 6, 2014 was the only 
special meeting scheduled.  The regularly-scheduled meeting on 
March 27, 2014 would also take place, so there will be two 
total meetings for the month of March. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report presented, no 
action taken. 
NO MOTION 
 

           
Page 6 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 

15. Recommendation to Approve 
an Employment Agreement 
Between the Washoe County 
District Board of Health and Mr. 
Kevin Dick for the Position of 
District Health Officer 
 

Chair Smith acknowledged the contract had taken some time to 
finalize as the County was working towards consistency among all 
of the department head’s contracts.   
 
Dr. Hess expressed concern that compensatory time may be earned 
by a salaried employee on an hour-for-hour basis for hours worked 
over 40 in a week.   
 
Commissioner Jung stated that clause was de rigeur at the County 
level.  She asked Mr. Dick if the clause had anything to do with a 
benefit that provided payout at time of separation of employment.  
Mr. Dick replied he was not entitled to a payout based on his point of 
entry into the position.  He clarified by saying that longer-term 
employees do receive a payout but he will not as he started after 
that benefit had been eliminated.   
 
Councilperson Ratti asked if the contract was consistent with the 
contracts of the other County department heads.  Chair Smith and 
Mr. Dick replied that it was.  Councilperson Ratti acknowledged Dr. 
Hess’ concern, but on the whole, considered it a fair agreement.  
She requested acknowledgement that the current contract had been 
agreed to by Mr. Dick, Chair Smith and the County, and Chair Smith 
stated it had.   
 
Dr. Hess expounded on his earlier concern, suggesting that if Mr. 
Dick earned a substantial amount of compensatory time he would 
be entitled, and may be tempted, to use it.  He reiterated he did not 
feel that executives should earn compensatory time.  
 
Commissioner Jung noted his concern but opined a professional 
does not have time to take compensatory time off, it is simply 
recognized that they have it available should they require flexibility 
in their schedule.  She acknowledged there was reason to be 
concerned as the past two District Health Officers had taken 
substantial amounts of time off.  Commissioner Jung stated she 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
Page 7 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

believed Mr. Dick could handle that type of professional 
responsibility and would not abuse the time.  She felt they had 
reason to keep an eye on the situation, but reiterated her confidence 
in Mr. Dick. 
 
Councilperson Ratti, for clarity and accuracy, requested verification 
that the maximum compensatory time that could be compiled was 
240 hours and was not cumulative from year to year.  Mr. Dick 
confirmed that was correct.   
 
Dr. Hess pointed out that 240 hours was 30 working days in addition 
to the other time off Mr. Dick was already entitled to.  Dr. Hess 
stated he was adamantly opposed to the compensatory time.   
 
Mr. Dick explained that after the 3.5 years he had been employed 
with the County, he held over 150 hours of compensatory time, so 
the initial exposure would be less than 90 hours when the 240-hour 
cap and his 150 existing hours were factored in.   
 
Chair Smith pointed out the contract was boilerplate.  He agreed 
with Commissioner Jung in that he had no concerns with Mr. Dick 
regarding this issue.  He hoped that if Mr. Dick’s presence was 
needed for an emergency that he would take some time off 
afterwards because the Board and Health District needs him.  Chair 
Smith opined the contract was in line with all of the other County 
contracts and he was fine with it. 
 
Councilperson Zadra had inquired with the City of Reno as to 
whether the contract for the Reno City Manager was similar to the 
County department head contracts.  She had yet to receive a 
response as she had only recently submitted the inquiry.  She noted 
the contract for the Reno-Sparks Convention and Visitor’s Authority 
management did contain compensatory time.  The CEO received 30 
hours and the executive staff is granted discretionary time subject to 
the determination of the CEO, not to exceed two weeks.   
 
Councilperson Ratti acknowledged the concern regarding the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councilperson Ratti 
moved, seconded by 
Commissioner Jung, 
to approve an 
Employment Agreement 
Between the Washoe 
County District Board of 

           
Page 8 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

compensatory time was legitimate but asked if the comparison to 
the Reno Manager’s contract was relevant, as the agreement under 
discussion was regarding County employment.  She was willing to 
state that, on the whole, she agreed with the package.  She agreed 
240 hours of compensatory time could become an issue if the 
position was held by someone who may be inclined to take 
advantage but reiterated that, on the whole, she felt it was a well-
balanced contract.   

Health and Mr. Kevin 
Dick, for the Position of 
District Health Officer as 
presented.  
 
Dr. Hess abstained.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

16. Discussion and possible 
direction to staff on results of 
the National Public Health 
Performance Standards Public 
Health Governing Entity 
Assessment Instrument from 
the January 16, 2014 Washoe 
County District Board of Health 
meeting 
 

Chair Smith requested comments from the Board members 
regarding the assessment exercise and stated he felt it had been 
very enlightening.   
 
Mr. Silverman stated it was informative, educational and personally 
eye-opening.  It had been a good challenge to think about and 
answer what the question was actually asking.  He suggested it 
should be done more often. 
 
Dr. Hess thought it was very useful and the only parts he had 
trouble with was separating what the Health Department is doing 
and achieving as opposed to what the Board is doing and achieving.   
 
Councilperson Zadra apologized for missing the assessment but 
she had reviewed the material.  She had found the concept and 
format to be enlightening.   
 
Chair Smith asked if they should be thinking about some of the 
things they scored badly on.  Staff provides the Board with 
information and the assessment was asking if the Board was 
completing tasks associated with that information.  This led him to 
ask himself if they should be participating more, or should they be 
leaving it to staff.  He felt some parts of the assessment inferred the 
Board may not be doing all that it was tasked to do.  He was unable 
to come up with specific assessment questions that clarified his 
point. 
 
Commissioner Jung asked if he was referring to the question 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
Page 9 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

regarding whether or not they read the Statutes and the mission 
each year.  She opined Ms. Frenkel was attempting to help them 
prioritize and to realize that a low score does not reflect a priority.  
There may be an underlying reason why the scores fell where they 
did.   
 
Commissioner Jung felt they were essentially in consensus with 
their prioritizations.  The exception was Dr. Hess, who is on the 
Board as a Physician and it is his job to point it out if he did not feel 
they were doing enough in certain areas.  Commissioner Jung 
opined it gave them a great foundation as a team on where to move 
forward and to have a plan for action, a vision and some guidelines.   
 
Councilperson Ratti said it was good to complete intellectual 
exercises, but it meant nothing unless some of it is made actionable.  
She felt the place where governing boards can fall off course 
afterwards is by trying to make too many things actionable.  She 
suggested when the summary came back they select one or two 
things where they can have early, simple wins in really changing the 
quality of the Board without taking everything on.  As always, they 
will rely on staff to set them up to do that well, which is the nature of 
a Governing Board with a CEO.   
 
Mr. Dick felt it was worthwhile and revealing for staff to better 
understand some of the Board’s perspectives and ways staff could 
provide better support to the Board.  Based on the discussion about 
the statutes and the mission, he thought staff could work to develop 
a better on-boarding manual that provides more information.  Mr. 
Dick opined the timing may be fortuitous as both the report from the 
retreat and the Fundamental Review Team report and 
recommendations would be presented at the next Board meeting.  
He felt it was an opportunity to see where the Board’s priorities 
aligned with the recommendations so they would be able to make 
decisions based on information from both sources.   
 
Chair Smith suggested the Fundamental Review Team should look 
at the results of the assessment and participate in that discussion.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
Page 10 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
Councilperson Ratti agreed and expressed her wish that some 
actionable items would come out of the Fundamental Review as well 
as the assessment.  She noted they needed to be respectful of staff 
time in deciding if the governance issues are the bigger priority or if 
some other part of the Fundamental Review has a higher priority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
No action taken. 
NO MOTION 
 

*17. Staff Reports and Program 
Updates 
 
A. Director, Epidemiology 

and Public Health 
Preparedness 
Communicable Disease - 
Influenza, Public Health 
Preparedness & Continuity 
of Operations, Training, 
Public Awareness and 
Medical Reserve Corps 

 

Mr. Jeff Whitesides, Manager of the Public Health Preparedness 
Program, speaking for Dr. Todd, invited Ms. Melissa Peek to the 
podium to provide an update to the Board regarding seasonal 
influenza.   
 
Ms. Peek, Epidemiologist for the Communicable Disease Program, 
stated there had been changes since the Board report had been 
submitted.  She reported influenza-like activity in Washoe County 
was beginning to decrease.  As of Week 3 which ends January 18, 
2014, the ILI percentage was down to 2.6%, which below the 
regional baseline of 2.9%.  She opined that was the first time the 
County had been below the baseline since Week 48 or 49.   
 
Ms. Peek stated that to date the County had 626 positive lab results 
reported.  Of those, 149 had been PCR confirmed as the 2009 
H1N1 and that is the predominant circulating strain in the community 
and nationally this flu season.  68 cases were hospitalized which is 
an 11% hospitalization rate for the season.  Of the 68, 45 had lab-
confirmed H1N1.  Of the 68, 19 were ICU admits, 16 of those were 
lab-confirmed H1N1.  Washoe County has had 7 influenza-caused 
deaths this year, all positive for 2009 H1N1.  5 of the 7 are between 
the ages of mid-30’s to mid-50’s.   
 
Ms. Peek stated that since the flu season has been more severe, 
the Division has been pushing prevention messages out to the 
community.  There have been 14 media interviews and Mr. Phil 
Ulibarri, the District PIO, has also sent out two press releases.   
 
Councilperson Zadra noted Nevada, but not California, appeared on 

 

           
Page 11 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

a national map as having a high rate of flu cases and asked Ms. 
Peek to comment.  Ms. Peek opined it had to do with the flu 
surveillance process.  Washoe County actively seeks out cases that 
are hospitalized or tested through a hospital and requests the 
medical records.  That was how staff located 6 of the 7 deaths, as 
none of them were required to be reported to the County.  She 
emphasized they were looking for information, not waiting for it to be 
reported.  
 

 B. Director, Community and 
Clinical Health Services  
Client Satisfaction Survey 
Results, Program Update – 
Sexual Health, Divisional 
Update and Program 
Reports  
 

Mr. Steve Kutz, Director, Community Clinical and Health Services, 
noted he was pleased Dr. Hess had enjoyed seeing the results of 
the CCHS satisfaction survey.  He was very proud of the exceptional 
service provided by staff to the community and opined the numbers 
reflected that.   
 
Mr. Kutz stated that there were approximately 18,000 individuals 
registered under the Affordable Care Act in Nevada.  The statistics 
were not broken down by County.  He met with Social Services staff 
and there were Certified Application Counselors in place that have 
logins into the Health Exchange.  Clients who are interested in 
signing up will be referred to them.  There are computer 
workstations for individuals needing access.  He stated Social 
Services staff had been very easy to work with.   
 
Mr. Kutz reported that, due the increase in influenza and its 
complications, a special clinic had been held in partnership with 
Immunize Nevada at the Boys and Girls Club, where they 
immunized 264 individuals.  There has been an increase in 
appointments, specifically for influenza vaccine, at the Health 
District.   
 
Mr. Kutz explained that Mr. Dick had connected TB staff with 
Renown’s Emergency Management staff, and Washoe County’s TB 
clinic will now be a part of Renown’s notification should there be an 
event on the Renown campus.  The County has an office on the 
campus so is appreciative of any notification.   
 

 

           
Page 12 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Kutz stated the County was using some of the funds from the 
Master Settlement Agreement and contracting with UNR on work 
towards the Tobacco-Free UNR campaign.   
 
Mr. Kutz discussed an inservice that was held regarding 
Methamphetamine-exposed babies.  CCHS and WIC staff attended 
as well as many individuals from the community.  A total of 80 were 
in attendance.   
 
Commissioner Jung complemented Mr. Kutz on the excellent survey 
results and asked that he share that with staff.  She emphasized the 
results were particularly commendable in light of the fact that some 
members of the community do not understand what services are 
available and what could be expected from them.   

 C. Director, Environmental 
Health Services  
Food Program, Vector-
Borne Disease Program, 
General Environmental and 
EHS Inspection Totals 

   

Mr. Robert Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services,  
had no additional information to report. 
 
Commissioner Jung noted Mr. Sack was working with the DA’s 
office regarding the Medical Marijuana bill and asked if he was 
aware of a resource named Rebecca Gaska, an employee of the 
ACLU who lobbied the bill through the State.  Commissioner Jung 
noted Ms. Gaska was working to find ways to dispose of the product 
and make it inert.  Commissioner Jung stated she would provide Ms. 
Gaska’s contact information to Mr. Sack. 
 
Mr. Sack noted one of the things that was glaringly apparent in the 
bill was that it gives no guidance on how to properly dispose of the 
substance.  Right now, the only disposal method is as an illegal 
drug.  The County would need to research how disposal would be 
handled.   
 
Commissioner Jung explained Ms. Gaska researched how other 
states were handling this subject and has policy recommendations.  
Commissioner Jung stated she was a self-appointed liaison for the 
Board of County Commissioners working with staff to be prepared 
when medical marijuana becomes legal in April and the County can 
begin licensing it.  She pointed out the County needed the revenue 

 

           
Page 13 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

and she had the votes at the BCC, so this was going to happen.  
The BCC has never declared a moratorium; they simply have not 
permitted its use or accepted business licenses.  She pointed out 
staff has been directed to review ordinances and land uses for 
potential conflicts.   
 
Mr. Sack stated his Division had already made the determination 
that there were no changes required at the regulatory level to 
effectively regulate it.  It would be necessary to determine what 
would be a Federally-acceptable method of disposal.   
 
Dr. Hess asked if the Pembroke Wetlands Mr. Sack referred to in his 
report was the golf course.  Mr. Sack explained it was the whole 
area on both sides.  Dr. Hess asked if part of that belonged to the 
University.  Mr. Sack reiterated any discussion about Pembroke 
Wetlands included the whole stretch.  Dr. Hess asked what the 
Health Districts’s recommendation was regarding the Connector.  
Mr. Sack replied the Health District was only concerned with 
minimization of standing water, which was associated with storm 
runoff.   
 

 D. Acting Director, Air 
Quality Management  
Air Quality, Monitoring and 
Planning Activity, Permitting 
Activity, Compliance & 
Inspection Activity and 
Permitting & Enforcement 
Activity  
 

Mr. Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director, Air Quality Management, 
explained that last year had been challenging in terms of fine 
particulate matter (PM2.5).  Creating problems were wildfires in 
August and September, and then stagnant weather conditions in 
December leading to additional PM2.5 episodes.  EPA has criteria 
for determining attainment with the National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards.  For PM2.5, the criteria is the 3-year average in the 98th 
percentile.  He emphasized that meant one bad year did not lead to 
non-attainment.  He did state that if another season occurred that 
was similar or worse than 2013, Washoe County could become a 
non-attainment area for fine particulate matter. 
 
Mr. Inouye went on to say that if we did become a non-attainment 
area, many of our currently voluntary measures would become 
mandatory.  The County would be required to develop a Federally-
enforceable state implementation plan that would need to be 

 

           
Page 14 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

approved by the EPA.  The Division engages in outreach efforts 
which help encourage voluntary efforts and behavioral changes.   
 
Mr. Inouye stated air quality will be summarized in an air quality 
trends report which will be presented to the Board in May.   
 
Commissioner Jung asked if the Division had received calls 
regarding an individual advising people that the interiors of their 
homes were ruined due to the fine particulate matter and offer 
cleaning services.  This individual cleans the property, then submits 
a claim to the homeowner’s insurance and retains a portion of 
whatever the claim pays out.  Mr. Inouye had not been made aware 
of this situation but stated that newer heating devices emitted less 
pollution inside the house than previous models.  He noted that any 
disaster involving insurance claims brings out people who try to take 
advantage.   

 E. Administrative Health 
Services Officer  
Updates previously 
provided during Agenda 
Items Nos. 13 & 14 

Ms. Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, 
Administrative Health Services, had no additional information. 
 

 

 F. District Health Officer  
REMSA/EMS, Fundamental 
Review, Permit Software 
Project, Quality 
Improvement Initiative, 
Healthy Community 
Conversation, Staffing, 
Other Events & Activities 
and Health District Media 
Contacts  

 

Mr. Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, reported that the efforts to 
replace the permit and business license software regionally were 
still in progress.  Mr. Sack, Ms. Albee and Mr. Fisher were working 
with him and it was anticipated that there would likely be an 
Interlocal Agreement item coming before the Board requesting 
approval to move forward with the project within the next couple of 
months.   
 
Mr. Dick stated that as of January 21, 2014, the WIC program had 
transitioned from AHS to CCHS.  It was decided that the WIC 
program could deliver better services to their clients if they were 
working in conjunction with the other CCHS programs as there were 
opportunities for additional services to be provided when clients 
come in for WIC appointments.  The Fundamental Review team had 
been very supportive of the change and had encouraged Mr. Dick to 
move ahead prior to receipt of their report.  There may also be 

 

           
Page 15 



Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes January 23, 2014 
TIME/ 
ITEM AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

additional opportunities to bill under Medicaid and receive revenue 
through reimbursement for services.   
 
Mr. Dick went on to explain that another reason for the transition 
was to free up Ms. Stickney from AHS to focus on administrative 
support for the Health District and not on direct program delivery.  
He noted the transition had been well-received and staff was 
already envisioning potential new opportunities. 
 
Mr. Dick noted the recent shootings at Sparks Middle School and 
Renown, and advised the Board he has mandated Active Shooter 
Awareness training for all Health District staff.  He thanked Mr. 
Whitesides and his staff for getting the trainings set up.  For staff 
members unable to attend the scheduled trainings in person, there 
is an online course, FEMA 907, which may be of interest to the 
Board members.   

*18. Limited to Announcements or 
Issues for Future Agendas 
 

Councilperson Ratti requested confirmation the County was in the 
process of merging most of the functions that have to do with Health 
and Human Services.  Commissioner Jung stated that was correct.   
 
Councilperson Ratti opined it should be a priority to get Health’s 
house in order, particularly in light of the numerous large projects in 
process.  She felt as though there were opportunities for a different 
type of working relationship with the other HHS departments in the 
County and Health should be engaged in a dialog with them as they 
transition.  She suggested it may be a bit early to be in that 
discussion but stated she would like to see any viable opportunities 
pursued as part of future direction.  Her focus is finding ways to 
provide better outcomes for clients.   
 
Mr. Dick stated he had not had a chance to meet with Messer’s. 
Slaughter and Schiller to discuss the topic but that was only due to 
his and Mr. Slaughter’s engagement with the REMSA/EMS 
negotiations that were approaching deadline.  He stated he would 
be pursuing the suggested interaction and reporting back to the 
Board.   
 

 

           
Page 16 





IHCC 
Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council 

DATE: January 10, 2014 

TO: IHCC Members 

FROM:   Rob Mclaughlin., IHCC Chairman 
Michael Munda, IHCC Vice Chairman 

SUBJECT: IHCC Accomplishments for calendar year 2013 

In preparation for our January 2014 meeting, Christina Conti reviewed the IHCC 2013 meeting minutes and 
compiled a list of IHCC’s major accomplishments.  Rob McLaughlin and Michael Munda fine-tuned the list of 
accomplishments.  It is very important that we take the time to recognize the strides the group has made and the 
impact it has on the community.  The IHCC achieved and/or began working on all of the annual goals and trainings 
established for 2013.  The goals for this year were quite ambitious and require multi-month and multi-agency 
coordination which is why several have not been fully completed.  The District Health Officer and the District Board 
of Health along with the leaders of IHCC appreciate the hard work you do to prepare our community to provide the 
best health care possible at all times, and especially during times of disaster.   

I. REAL WORLD RESPONSES 

Poor Air Quality within Region – September 2013.  For close to a two week period of time, Washoe County was 
under poor air quality and had heavy smoke from wildfires to content with.  Hospitals within the region employed 
various tactics to help keep the smoke out of their facilities and ensure patient care was continued without 
complications.   

Barton Memorial Hospital – September 16, 2013.  A Code Orange (HAZ-MAT) event within the facility’s indoor 
therapy pool occurred at midnight.  Muriatic acid was added to the Chlorine vat.  The mixture created a chemical 
smoke cloud.  Three employees treated for exposure.   

II. ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Multi-Casualty Incident Plan (MCIP) Revision: The IHCC and regional partners participated in the revision and 
updating of the MCIP.  This process began in December 2012 and continued throughout the year.  The MCIP was 
approved by the District Board of Health on December 19, 2013. 

Updating of the Bylaws: The IHCC updated the bylaws to be more reflective of the makeup of the coalition 
membership that has been in existence for over 10 years within Washoe County.  All members are now voting 
members and have an equal contribution to the goals and objectives of the IHCC.     

Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex (MAEA) Update: The IHCC began the process for expanding the MAEA to include 
the process for what would occur within the region if multiple facilities would be evacuating.  This process will 
include regional, State and Federal response information.   

Special Events Pre-Planning: Based on lessons learned, the IHCC expanded the annual Summer Hot August 
Nights pre-planning discussion to a monthly discussion.  Each month the IHCC reviews the upcoming events 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.E.1.



within the region and the potential impact on pre-hospital and hospital care. Additionally, an IHCC representative 
is now on the City of Reno Special Events Committee that meets monthly.  This information is disseminated to the 
group to continue to improve preparedness efforts.   

 
Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex Trainings: Held two different times throughout the year.  This was an opportunity 

for REMSA and hospital personnel to train side-by-side on the MAEA procedures and evacuation paperwork.  
 
Updating of the Annual Calendar:  The IHCC has an annual calendar that details the points of interest to be 

discussed on an annual basis.  This includes annual trainings, annual Joint Commission requirements and annual 
Health District requirements.  The IHCC reviewed the annual calendar, implemented in 2011, and made some 
updates and revisions based on the past two years of data.   

 
Regional Situation Awareness Document: The IHCC participated in the development of a regional medical 

situational awareness document to be utilized by the REOC Planning Section during a regional emergency.  This 
document will allow the REOC a glimpse at the entire medical response and have potential needs identified the 
Incident Action Plan can address possible items to be worked on to support the medical efforts and needs.   

 
III. EXERCISES 

 
Operation Urgent Solidarity Tabletop Exercise:  Held January 9, 2013 and was a partnership between 
Washoe County School District and regional emergency responders.  The tabletop drill tested initial impact and 
initial response within the hospital setting for the earthquake. 
 
Northern Nevada Medical Center Active Shooter Drill: Held January 9, 2013 and was a partnership between 
NNMC and Sparks Police Department.  This full scale drill tested the response of hospital staff and police officers 
during an emergency and provided learning opportunities for emergency planning. 
 
Operation Urgent Solidarity Functional Exercise: Held March 19, 2013.  The functional drill tested 
sustainability 96-hour hold, damage assessment, medical examiner coordination for resources, HAMLink 
communication system (only CVMC, NNMC, Saints, Renown, and VA), and Family Assistance Center (Renown).   
 
Business Continuity Tabletop Exercise: Held May 16, 2013 and was a partnership with Washoe County 
Emergency Management & Homeland Security, Microsoft Office and regional partners.   
 
Operation Urgent Solidarity Full Scale Exercise: Held May 23, 2013.  The full scale drill tested medical surge 
within the receiving hospitals and mental health support from the NNAMHS disaster mental health team.  In 
addition, a HAZMAT drill was conducted but did not result in patient transport.  
 
Reno Air Races Tabletop Exercise: Held June 6, 2013.  This tabletop drill tested response to a bomb from the 
initial response to subsequent secondary responding organizations.   
 
Great Shake Out Exercise: Held October 17, 2013.  This regional drill tested earthquake response within 
facilities and the use of WebEOC during an emergency.   
 
 

IV. TRAINING 
 

MAEA Training: January 22, 2013 
ICS 300: May 20-22, 2013 
Family Assistance Center Training: April 17, 2013 
Atmospheric River Storm Training: April 18, 2013 
Regional Collaboration Workshop: May 30, 2013 



Private POD Training: June 13, 2013 
Advanced Crisis Emergency Response Training: June 25-27, 2013 
MAEA Training: July 23, 2013 
ICS 400: August 13-14, 2013 
TEPW: August 20, 2013 
VA Dual Use Vehicle training: August 20, 2013 
Atmospheric River Storm Training: September 12, 2013 
Great Shake Out: October 17, 2013 
Statewide Medical Surge Workshop: November 8, 2013 
Atmospheric River Storm Training: December 5, 2013 
Multi-Casualty Incident Plan Workshop: December 12, 2013 
 
 

V. GRANT ACTIVITIES 
 

Through the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) grant, the Washoe County Health 
District has been able to begin developing an Emergency Water Restoration plan for the region.  This plan will 
specifically address potable water and will have planning guidelines for hospitals to utilize within their facilities.  
Work on this plan began on the fiscal calendar and will be completed during 2014.   
 

 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

Proclamation 

WHEREAS, each year, the United States and other countries recognize World TB Day on 
March 24 to commemorate the date in 1882 when Dr. Robert Koch announced his discovery 
of Mycobacterium tuberculosis, the bacillus that causes tuberculosis (TB); and  

WHEREAS, this day is utilized to increase public awareness that TB continues to pose a 
health threat and if not treated properly, TB disease can be fatal; and   

WHEREAS, United States reported 9,945 cases in 2012; and 

WHEREAS, Nevada reports approximately 100 newly diagnosed cases of TB disease each 
year, and consistently ranks among the top twenty states with the highest rates of TB; and   

WHEREAS, Washoe County reported 9 cases of TB in 2013; and 

WHEREAS, TB bacteria usually attack the lungs, but TB bacteria can attack any part of the 
body such as the kidney, spine, and brain; and   

WHEREAS, the goal of eliminating TB can be reached by working together and 
strengthening partnerships.   

PROCLAIMED, by the Washoe County District Board of Health that March 24, 2014 
is designated as World TB Day in Washoe County. 

ADOPTED, this 27th day of February, 2014. 

__________________________________ 
A. M. Smith III, Chairman 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 7.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

DATE: February 27, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 

SUBJECT: DAATA LLC - Mr. Balwinder Singh – Case No. 1143 
Unappealed Citation No. 5212 

Recommendation 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5212 be upheld and a fine of $3,000.00 be 
levied against DAATA LLC for failure to have an asbestos survey performed by a qualified person and submitted to 
Air Quality Management for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment prior to the 
demolition/renovation of a commercial facility.  Conducting demolition/renovation activities without submitting an 
asbestos survey for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major violation of the District 
Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National 
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through 
Section 030.107, Hazardous Air Pollutants.  This is a negotiated settlement.  

Recommended Fine: $7,000.00 Negotiated Fine: $3,000.00 

Background 

On December 19, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a citizen complaint of possible 
illegal removal and disposal of asbestos containing materials at the former Ponderosa Lodge located at 1400 East 
Fourth Street in Reno, Nevada.  A review of the Air Quality Management records determined an Asbestos 
Acknowledgement Form had been completed on November 13, 2014 for renovation activities at that location.  The 
Acknowledgement form stated there was to be no demolition associated with the project.  The vinyl flooring would be 
covered over with no removal of existing flooring allowed and minor patching of holes in walls would be allowed.  No 
asbestos sampling was required based on the description of proposed renovation activities.  The use of best 
management practices for dust control and proper disposal of all waste was required.  On November 21, 2013 an 
amended Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment was issued for the same project reflecting a change of 
contractor with the same scope of work. 

Air Quality Specialist II Joshua Restori was dispatched to the above address and found considerable weather 
damage, fire damage and vagrant vandalism/theft had left much of the interior construction materials disturbed in all 
seven of the buildings.  Many of these construction materials are considered suspect asbestos containing materials 
and were in a friable condition in the rooms, including, but not limited to, ceiling texture, drywall, joint compound, and 
a white powdery material present in what appeared to be a former boiler room.  Specialist Restori noted that debris 
containing suspect materials had been removed from the buildings and placed in an open dumpster located on site. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.1.a.



 
February 27, 2014 
DBOH/DAATA LLC/Case 1143 
Page 2 
 
Specialist Restori then met with Mr. Balwinder Singh, owner of the property, to make him aware of the complaint filed 
and the problems that were found during the investigation.  Mr. Singh produced a copy of an asbestos survey that 
had been performed on the property on September 27, 2013.  The survey identified asbestos present in a number of 
building materials.  Specialist Restori determined that information about the asbestos known to be on the property 
had been withheld from the Air Quality Management Division, and therefor issued an immediate Stop Work Order.   
 
After reviewing the Asbestos Renovation Survey prepared by Environmental Testing and Consulting and the activity 
occurring at the facility, Specialist Restori issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 5212 for a major violation of Section 
030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification, (B) Asbestos Control Work Practice, and (C) Asbestos 
Contamination and Abatement.   
 
Settlement 

On January 3, 2014, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by 
AQ Specialist Joshua Restori and Mr. Balwinder Singh owner of the property at 1400 East Fourth Street in Reno.  
The determination was made during the meeting that Mr. Singh was responsible for failing to provide a copy of the 
asbestos survey and allowing asbestos contaminated materials to be removed from the facility without acceptable 
work practices.  Since the materials in the waste container were abated prior to disposal, it was determined there was 
not a violation of Section 030.107(C) Asbestos Contamination and Abatement.  After careful consideration of all the 
facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio recommended that Citation No. 5212 be upheld for violation of Section 
030.107 (A) and (B) with a fine of $3,000.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 
 
Alternatives 
 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5212. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5212 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per 
day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that 
representatives of DAATA LLC may be properly noticed. 

 

 

 /s/     
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
 CA/DC: js                    



3 of 63



4 of 63



5 of 63



6 of 63



7 of 63



8 of 63



9 of 63



10 of 63



11 of 63



12 of 63



13 of 63



14 of 63



15 of 63



16 of 63



17 of 63



18 of 63



19 of 63



20 of 63



21 of 63



22 of 63



23 of 63



24 of 63



25 of 63



26 of 63



27 of 63



28 of 63



29 of 63



30 of 63



31 of 63



32 of 63



33 of 63



34 of 63



35 of 63



36 of 63



37 of 63



38 of 63



39 of 63



40 of 63



41 of 63



42 of 63



43 of 63



44 of 63



45 of 63



46 of 63



47 of 63



48 of 63



49 of 63



50 of 63



51 of 63



52 of 63



53 of 63



54 of 63



55 of 63



56 of 63



57 of 63



58 of 63



59 of 63



60 of 63



61 of 63



62 of 63



63 of 63



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

DATE: February 27, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 

SUBJECT: Lobo Construction-Case No. 1144 
Unappealed Citation No. 5213 

Recommendation 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5213 be upheld and a fine of $1,250.00 be 
levied against Lobo Construction for failure to implement acceptable work practices associated with 
demolition/renovation activities at a commercial facility.  Conducting demolition/renovation activities prior to the 
abatement of asbestos containing materials is a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing 
Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air 
Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through Section 030.107, Hazardous Air 
Pollutants.  This is a negotiated settlement.   

Recommended Fine:  $2,500.00 Negotiated Fine:  $1,250.00 

Background 

On December 19, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a citizen complaint of possible 
illegal removal and disposal of asbestos-containing-materials at the former Ponderosa Lodge located at 1400 East 
Fourth Street in Reno, Nevada.  A review of the Air Quality Management records determined an Asbestos 
Acknowledgement Form had been completed on November 13, 2014, for renovation activities at that location.  The 
Acknowledgement form stipulated there was to be no demolition associated with this project; that the vinyl flooring 
would be covered over with no removal of existing flooring allowed; and that minor patching of holes in walls would 
be allowed.  No asbestos sampling was required based on the description of proposed renovation activities.  The use 
of best management practices for dust control and proper disposal of all waste was required.  On November 21, 2013 
an amended Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment was issued for the same project noting a change of 
contractor with the same scope of work. 

Air Quality Specialist II Joshua Restori was dispatched to the above address and noted considerable weather 
damage, fire damage and vagrant vandalism/theft had resulted in disturbance of the interior construction materials in 
all seven of the buildings.  Many of these construction materials are considered suspect for asbestos-containing 
materials and were in a friable condition in the rooms, including, but not limited to, ceiling texture, drywall, joint 
compound, and a white powdery material present in what appeared to be a former boiler room.  Specialist Restori 
noted that debris containing suspect materials had been removed from the buildings and placed in an open dumpster 
located on site. 

Specialist Restori met with the contractor on site Mr. Julian Alvarez from Lobo Construction.  Specialist Restori noted 
there was a dumpster on the property that contained materials which had been removed from the vandalized rooms.   

Specialist Restori was able to ascertain that Mr. Jorge Cruz, Superintendent for Lobo Construction, was aware the 
debris placed in the dumpster by his employees was potentially asbestos-containing material(s).  Mr. Cruz did have a 
copy of an Asbestos Renovation Survey dated September 27, 2013, prepared by Environmental Testing and 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.1.b.



February 27, 2014 
DBOH/Lobo Construction/Case 1144 
Page 2 
 
Consulting Inc., for 1400 East Fourth Street in his possession.  Specialist Restori determined information about the 
asbestos known to be on the property had been withheld from the Air Quality Management Division, and therefore 
issued an immediate Stop Work Order.   
 
After reviewing the Asbestos Renovation Survey supplied by Mr. Cruz and the activity occurring at the facility, 
Specialist Restori issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 5213 for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos 
Sampling and Notification, (B) Asbestos Control Work Practice, and (C) Asbestos Contamination and Abatement.   
 
Settlement 
 
On January 3, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement attended by 
AQ Specialist Joshua Restori and Mr. Jorge Cruz, Superintendent for Lobo Construction.  The resulting 
determination of the meeting was the owner of the facility, Mr. Baldwinder Singh, had been responsible for the 
submittal of the asbestos survey when the Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment was obtained.  Additionally, 
as the materials in the waste container were abated prior to disposal, it was determined there was not a violation of 
Section 030.107(C) Asbestos Contamination and Abatement.  After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, 
AQ Specialist Cerfoglio recommended Citation No. 5213 be upheld for violation of Section 030.107 (B) with a fine of 
$1,250.  Additionally, it was further agreed upon that Mr. Cruz will successfully complete a 16 Hour Asbestos 
Awareness Class.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 
 
Alternatives 
 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and 
dismiss Citation No. 5213. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5213 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 
per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that 
Lobo Construction may be properly noticed. 

 
 
 
 /s/    
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
 
CA/DC:jbs 



3 of 62



4 of 62



5 of 62



6 of 62



7 of 62



8 of 62



9 of 62



10 of 62



11 of 62



12 of 62



13 of 62



14 of 62



15 of 62



16 of 62



17 of 62



18 of 62



19 of 62



20 of 62



21 of 62



22 of 62



23 of 62



24 of 62



25 of 62



26 of 62



27 of 62



28 of 62



29 of 62



30 of 62



31 of 62



32 of 62



33 of 62



34 of 62



35 of 62



36 of 62



37 of 62



38 of 62



39 of 62



40 of 62



41 of 62



42 of 62



43 of 62



44 of 62



45 of 62



46 of 62



47 of 62



48 of 62



49 of 62



50 of 62



51 of 62



52 of 62



53 of 62



54 of 62



55 of 62



56 of 62



57 of 62



58 of 62



59 of 62



60 of 62



61 of 62



62 of 62



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

DATE: February 27, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 

SUBJECT: Rilite Aggregate Company Case No. 1150 
Unappealed Citation No. 5404 

Recommendation 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5404 be upheld and a fine of $2,500 be levied 
against Rilite Aggregate Company for operating a portable screening plant and four conveyors without an air quality 
permit to operate.  Operating without a permit constitutes a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations 
Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.000 Source Permitting and Operation.  This is a 
negotiated settlement. 

Recommended Fine:  $5,583.00 Negotiated Fine:  $2,500.00 

Background 

On January 28, 2014, Air Quality Specialist II Suzanne Dugger performed a routine annual source inspection of the 
Rilite Aggregate Pit located at 9208 Western Skies Drive in Reno.  AQS Dugger met with Mr. Gary Roma, site 
manager for Rilite Aggregate Company, to conduct the inspection of the aggregate crushing and screening 
equipment included on Permit to Operate No. D93A.  The evaluation of the permitted equipment (two crushers, one 
screen and various conveyors) determined no violations of the permit conditions.  However, during the inspection, 
AQS Dugger observed a portable three deck screen with four attached conveyors that were also operating on site. 
When questioned about the portable equipment, Mr. Roma stated the equipment was being used to mix sand and 
horse manure to make an amended soil.  AQS Dugger advised Mr. Roma the equipment would require a Permit to 
Operate; that she would contact the office to confirm the status.  Upon her return to the office, AQS Dugger 
confirmed with Ms. Charlene Albee, Permitting & Enforcement Branch Chief, that the equipment would require a 
permit to operate and there was no record of the submittal of an application for an Authority to Construct/Permit to 
Operate.   

On January 29, 2014, AQS Dugger and Mr. Mike Wolf, Environmental Engineer II, met with Mr. Chris Benna, 
President of Rilite Aggregate Company, and Mr. Roma at the Rilite Aggregate Facility.  Mr. Benna was informed of 
the compliance issue involving the operation of the screening plant without a permit.  Mr. Benna stated he was 
unaware of the requirement for a permit and that the equipment was brought on site to process ¾” rock for an 
upcoming job scheduled to start on Monday, February 3, 2014.  Mr. Benna indicated the equipment was critical for 
the upcoming job and Rilite would need to get a permit immediately.  Mr. Wolf explained the application review 
process typically takes two to four weeks.  Mr. Wolf committed to completing the review process as quickly as 
possible, following the submittal of the required application, to allow Mr. Benna to meet the project schedule.   

Based on the results of the inspection and records review, AQS Dugger issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 5404 
for a major violation of Section 030.000 Source Permitting and Operation.  Following the issuance of the citation, an 
application for an Authority to Construct/Permit to Operate was immediately submitted.  Mr. Wolf was able to 
expedite the application review and issued the Authority to Construct on January 30th.     

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.1.c.



February 27, 2014 
DBOH / Rilite Aggregate Company / Case 1150 
Page 2 
 
 
Settlement 
 
On February 3, 2014 Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting 
attended by AQ Specialist Dugger with Mr. Benna and Mr. Roma representing Rilite Aggregate Company.  During the 
meeting, the determination was made that Rilite Aggregate Company should have known the portable equipment 
required a Permit to Operate.  After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio 
proposed that Citation No. 5404 be upheld with a fine of $2,500.00.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed 
by all parties.  
 
Alternatives 
 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and 
dismiss Citation No. 5404. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5404 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 
per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow Rilite 
Aggregate Company to be properly notified. 

 
 
 
 
 
 /s/     
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
CA/DC:js 



3 of 14



4 of 14



5 of 14



6 of 14



7 of 14



8 of 14



9 of 14



10 of 14



11 of 14



12 of 14



13 of 14



14 of 14



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

DATE: February 27, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management 

SUBJECT: Paul’s Handyman Service Case No. 1138 
Citation No. 5389 

Recommendation 
The Air Pollution Control Hearing Board recommends Citation No. 5389 be upheld and a fine of $150 be levied 
against Paul’s Handyman Service for failure to provide notification to the Air Quality Management Division prior to the 
removal of asbestos-containing linoleum flooring in a multi-family residential facility which is a commercially regulated 
facility.  Conducting demolition/renovation activities in a commercially regulated facility without providing notification 
and obtaining an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major violation of the District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B), (10) National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through Section 030.107(A) 
Asbestos Sampling and Notification. 
APCHB Recommended Fine: $150.00 
Background 
On November 5, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received an application for an Asbestos 
Acknowledgement Form from a local contractor who was hired to complete the build-back of a condominium 
following the cleanup of water damage materials located at 3917 Clear Acre Lane, Unit #158, in Reno.  The 
contractor provided an air clearance report that was completed following the abatement of asbestos-containing 
linoleum flooring in the kitchen and bathroom.  A review of the records determined the Air Quality Management 
Division had not received an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment or an abatement notification for the 
renovation/abatement activities at that location.   
Air Quality Specialist II Wallace Prichard and Air Quality Specialist II Joshua Restori were dispatched to the above 
address and determined that several areas in the condominium had the linoleum sheet flooring and mastic removed. 
Areas disturbed included the entry way, kitchen and bathroom.  During the investigation, AQ Specialists Prichard and 
Restori were able to determine the work had been completed by Mr. Paul Duminie, owner of Paul’s Handyman 
Service. Specialist Prichard contacted the Nevada Contractors Board and requested information on whether Paul’s 
Handyman Service possessed a State Contractors License and what type of work the license allowed the company 
to perform.   Specialist Prichard was informed Paul’s Handyman Service did not have a State Contractors License 
but that Mr. Duminie did have a Washoe County and City of Reno Business License limiting him to charging no more 
than $1,000 per job.   
Following their inquiry, Specialists Prichard and Restori were contacted by Mr. John Rosa, Criminal Investigator for 
the Special Investigation Unit of the State Contractors Board.  Specialist Restori worked with Investigator Rosa to 
interview all of the parties involved with the abatement and established a timeline of events.  
During the investigation it was determined that between March 4, 2013 and October 14, 2013, Unit #158 suffered 
water damage from a leaking toilet and the remediation of the water damage was initiated.  The sequence of events 
which followed regarding the cleanup is detailed in the attached staff report.  The determination was made that Mr. 

DBOH ITEM NO. 8.A.2.a.



February 27, 2014 
DBOH/Paul’s Handyman Service /Case 1138 
Page 2 
 
Duminie was the responsible party hired to remove the asbestos-containing linoleum sheet flooring.  The removal of 
asbestos containing materials by someone other than a licensed asbestos abatement contractor is a major violation 
of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.        
Based on the results of the file review and investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard issued Notice of Violation Citation 
No. 5389 for a major violation of Section 030.105 (B) (10) and 030.107 (A), (B) and (C) Asbestos Sampling and 
Notification.   
Settlement 
On November 14, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting via 
telephone, attended by AQ Specialist Wallace Prichard and Air Quality Specialist Joshua Restori with Mr. Duminie. 
After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio recommended that Citation No. 5389 
be upheld with a fine of $12,000 for a major violation of District Health Department Regulations Governing air Quality 
Management.  At that time Mr. Duminie stated that he would like to appeal his case to the Air Pollution Control 
Hearing Board at their next scheduled meeting.  Specialist Cerfoglio advised Mr. Duminie the next meeting would be 
January 7, 2014.  An appeal form was delivered to Mr. Duminie for him to complete and return to formally request an 
appeal to the Air Pollution Control Hearing Board.  
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board 
On January 7, 2014, the Air Pollution Control Hearing Board convened for the consideration of Case No. 1138, 
Citation No. 5389.  The case was presented by Air Quality Management staff with testimony from Mr. Paul Duminie, 
representing Paul’s Handyman Service. After consideration of all of the facts and testimony, a motion was made and 
unanimously approved to uphold Notice of Violation Citation No. 5389 for a violation of Section 030.107 (A) only with 
a fine in the amount of $150.  A copy of the APCHB meeting minutes are enclosed for reference.   
Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5389. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5389 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per 
day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow representatives of 
Paul’s Handyman Service to be properly noticed. 

 

 

 

      
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
CA/DC: js                    



 
 
 
 

CASE NO.  1138 – AS REVIEWED BEFORE THE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
 
 
 
In Re:  Appeal of PAUL DUMINIE   ) 
dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN   ) 
SERVICE, for violation of Section   ) 
030.105 (National Emission Standards  )                   
for Hazardous Air Pollutants – NESHAP),  )                                CASE NO. 1138 
Subsection (B) (10); and Section 030.107 )           PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE (PAUL DUMINIE) 
(Hazardous Air Pollutants), Subsections (A) )                                 
Subsections (A), (B), and (C) of the  )            
Washoe County District Board of Health  ) 
Regulations Governing Air Quality  ) 
Management.     ) 
 
 
 

At a hearing of the Air Pollution Control Hearing 
Board at Wells Avenue and Ninth Street,               
Reno, Nevada                                                      
January 7, 2014 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Chairman David Rinaldi 
  Vice Chairman Jon Greene 
  Member Cathleen Fitzgerald, DEnv, PE 
  Member Jim Kenney 
  Charlene Albee, Chief, Permitting & Enforcement 
  Wallace Prichard, Air Quality Specialist II 
  Joshua Restori, Air Quality Specialist, II 
  Janet Smith, CAP-OM, Recording Secretary 
 
 
ABSENT: Member Joe Serpa 
  Member Richard Harris, Esquire 
  Member Jeanne Rucker, REHS 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
STATEMENT OF THE FACTUAL QUESTION 
 
SECTION 030.105 NATIONAL EMISSION STANDARDS FOR HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANTS 
 

B.  The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for those   
      subparts of 40CFR61 listed below, along with all the duly promulgated  
      revisions are herewith adopted by reference. 
 
     10.  Subpart M – Asbestos 

 
 
SECTION 030.107 Hazardous Air Pollutants 
 

A.  No permit for demolition or for the renovation of any NESHAP regulated 
facility may be issued by any public agency within the Health District until 
such time as an asbestos survey, conducted by a person qualified to make 
such a survey is made on the premises.  No potential asbestos containing 
materials may be disturbed until such a survey is performed.  The person 
performing the survey must possess US EPA AHERA certification.  The survey 
must be completed to the satisfaction of the Control Officer or additional 
samples may be required.  A complete, signed copy of an asbestos survey 
report must be filed at the Washoe County District Health Department and 
an “Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement Form” obtained before any 
permit for demolition or renovation, as noted above, is issued.   Failure to 
conduct an asbestos survey, or obtain a completed “Asbestos Assessment 
Acknowledgement Form”, may result in a citation or other enforcement 
action, including the issuance of a Stop Work Order if a reasonable 
possibility for the release of asbestos fibers exists.  If the survey indicates 
the presence of asbestos, the permit applicant must adhere to the 
requirements of Sections 030.105 and this section prior to and during the 
removal of any asbestos.  The owner, operator or his representative shall 
submit to the Control Officer notice of intent in compliance with 
40CFR61.145.  Such notice shall be required for the following operations. 
 
 
1. All renovations disturbing regulated asbestos containing materials 

(RACM), which exceed, in aggregate, more than 160 feet square, 260 
lineal feet or 35 cubic feet whichever is most restrictive. 
 

2. Notice shall be required for any building demolitions, including single 
residential dwellings. 

 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 

This notification shall contain all information as requested by the Control 
Officer, including a plan of action as to the methods of techniques to be 
used for removal.  Standard fees as set by the Board of Health must be 
submitted with all such notifications before they can be considered valid.  

 
B. Asbestos Control Work Practice 

 
For the purpose of this regulation, in addition to the requirements of the 
NESHAP, acceptable work practices for RACM removal shall include, but are 
not limited to, adequate wetting, containment of materials in glove bags or 
containment areas, negative air systems, decontamination areas, double 
bag disposal or other methods as required by the Control Officer.  
Acceptable work practices for commercial ACM roofing removal shall 
include adequate wetting of the material and removal in covered chutes.  As 
an alternative, ACM roofing materials may be removed by bagging or careful 
wrapping and lowering.  The Control Officer may require separate removal 
of friable roofing materials prior to demolition.  All asbestos removal work 
which is done with barriers isolating the work area shall include transparent 
viewing ports which allow observation of stripping and removal of ACM 
from outside the barrier.  Sufficient view ports shall be installed to make at 
least 90 percent of the work area visible from outside the barrier, except in 
unusual situations as approved by the Control Officer.  Air clearance testing 
after removal work is complete may be required by the Control Officer for 
the protection of public health. 
 
 

C. Asbestos Containment and Abatement 
 

Under no condition may any person store, remove, transport or destroy any 
asbestos containing materials in a manner which is likely to release asbestos 
fibers into the atmosphere.  Safe asbestos removal work practices, sufficient 
to prevent a danger to public health as defined below, shall be required for 
any remodeling or demolition of NESHAP regulated facilities which disturbs 
any quantity of RACM.  The Control Officer may require cleanup or 
abatement of damaged or degraded asbestos containing materials where 
their storage, handling, or continued presence represents a danger to public 
health.  Unsafe work practices or danger to public health as noted above 
shall be concluded only when testing results demonstrate asbestos levels 
exceeding one of the following limits:  1) 0.01 asbestos fibers per cubic 
centimeter as determined by any method of air sampling as specified by the 
Control Officer; or  2) greater than one percent asbestos as determined by 
vacuum, bulk or wipe sampling of surfaces.  The Control Officer may require 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 

such sampling to be performed at the owner’s expense by a qualified 
person when unsafe work practices or a danger to public health are 
suspected.  The Control Officer shall approve procedures for sample 
collection, including the type of sampling as listed above, sample duration 
and volume, or analytical methods, such as the use of TEM or PCM 
depending on the type of suspected contamination and building materials 
present.  Failure to use acceptable work practices during RACM removal or 
disturbance may result in the issuance of a Stop Work Order, a citation, or 
both. 

 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS 
 
On January 7, 2014, the Hearing Board for the referenced Regulations held a public hearing to consider 
all evidence and testimony concerning the appeal of PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVE (PAUL DUMINIE), 
Citation No. 5389, Case No. 1138, for violation of Section 030.105 (National Emission Standards for 
Hazardous Air Pollutants – NESHAP), Subsection (B) (10) – (Subpart M – Asbestos); and Section 030.107 
(Hazardous Air Pollutants), Subsections( A),( B) and( C) (Asbestos Sampling and Notification), of the 
Washoe County District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management. 
 
 
Ms. Charlene Albee, Acting Director, Air Quality Management, being duly sworn, noted a typographical 
error on the ‘Recommended Fine Worksheet’, advising the “Violation of Section” should indicate the 
Section of the Regulation as: Section 030.107 (Hazardous Air Pollutants), Subsections A, B, and C.  Ms. 
Albee advised Mr. Paul Duminie, owner of Paul’s Handyman Service, was cited for failure to adhere to 
the asbestos control work practices, including containment and abatement requires.  Ms. Albee advised 
Staff recommends the appeal of Paul’s Handyman Service be denied and a fine in the amount of 
$12,000 be levied.   
 
 
Mr. Joshua Restori, Air Quality Specialist II, being duly sworn, advised on November 5, 2013, the Air 
Quality Management Division received an application for an Asbestos Acknowledgement Form from 
Bison Construction, a local contractor hired to complete build-back work at a condominium located at 
3917 Clear Acre Lane, Unit #158.  Mr. Restori advised the repair work was the result of a cleanup of 
water-damaged materials due to a water leak from the toilet in a bathroom. 
 
 
Mr. Restori advised prior to the application request, Air Quality Management Staff was not aware 
construction work had been performed in the condominium unit, nor was Staff aware there was an 
asbestos-abatement issue.  Mr. Restori advised based on the information provided by Bison 
Construction; and in conjunction with Mr. Wallace Prichard, Air Quality Specialist, he initiated an 
investigation.  Mr. Restori advised it was determined Mr. Daniel Pearson, owner of the property (and a 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 
resident of San Diego), hired Mr. Roy Michael Uhl, the former tenant of the unit to serve as a Property 
Manager, to assist in the repair work. 
 
 
Mr. Restori advised Servpro was initially hired to begin the drying out process, removing the carpet, 
particle board subfloor and affected baseboard from the hall, living room, entry and master bedroom; 
that in other affected areas only the baseboard was removed to facilitate in the drying-out.  Mr. Restori 
advised Servpro had Adaptive Environmental Consulting take samples from those areas, which were to 
be demolished, including the drywall and linoleum testing for asbestos.  Mr. Restori stated Servpro was 
advised of the presence of crysotile asbestos in the linoleum/vinyl flooring and mastic.  Mr. Restori 
advised Servpro provided Mr. Pearson with several names of licensed asbestos-abatement contractors; 
that Mr. Pearson received bids from the contractors. 
 
 
Mr. Restori stated Mr. Pearson directed Mr. Uhl to “get a better price on the removal of the asbestos”; 
that Mr. Uhl indicated he hired Mr. Paul Duminie, Paul’s Handyman Service, to perform the removal of 
the asbestos-containing materials.  Mr. Restori advised during the investigation he conducted interviews 
of those involved I the project, requested work reports, testing results, receipts, etc. for the project. 
 
 
Mr. Restori stated during the investigation it was determined Mr. Paul Duminie, Paul’s Handyman 
Service, did conduct the removal of the asbestos-containing materials from the unit without the proper 
notification of Air Quality Management, in violation of Section 030.107 (Hazardous Air Pollutants).  In 
response to Mr. Rinaldi regarding those areas of the unit involved in the removal, Mr. Restori advised it 
was “the bathroom and kitchen” areas.   
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald regarding the recommended fine, Ms. Albee advised the recommended fine 
is $12,000. 
 
 
In response to Mr. Rinaldi regarding the amount of asbestos-containing materials, which were removed, 
Mr. Restori stated “Advanced Installation had advised Mr. Pearson there was approximately 125 square 
feet total” of asbestos-containing material to be removed.   
 
 
Mr. Rinaldi questioned if Bison Construction was contracted to perform the demolition  
 
 
In response to Mr. Rinaldi, Mr. Restori advised Bison Construction had been hired to complete the build-
back of the condominium unit.  Mr. Restori advised Bison Construction presented Air Quality 
Management with a copy of the “air clearance report” completed following the removal of the asbestos 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 
containing linoleum flooring.  Mr. Restori stated the air clearance report verifies asbestos-containing 
materials are no longer present; that the air clearance report is necessary to obtain “a pink slip” from Air 
Quality.   
 
 
Mr. Kenney advised he knows Mr. John Marten of Bison Construction; and questioned if it would be 
necessary to recuse himself from the proceedings. 
 
 
In response to Mr. Kenney, Mr. Rinaldi advised the case being reviewed is not Bison Construction; 
therefore, there should be no conflict. 
 
 
Ms. Albee advised Bison Construction Company is not the complainant; that Air Quality Management is 
the complainant based on the results of the investigation initiated when Bison Construction applied for 
the Asbestos-Acknowledgement form.   
 
 
Dr. Fitzgerald questioned if there was “a difference in the flooring as only the linoleum/vinyl flooring 
was positive for crysotile asbestos.” 
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald, Mr. Restori advised all asbestos containing materials had been removed 
and disposed of prior to Air Quality Management becoming involved; therefore, it is not known if there 
was any difference in the flooring. 
 
 
Mr. Rinaldi questioned the citing of Section 030.107 in the Notice of Violation when the estimate, noted 
by Advance Installations, was 125 square feet, which is less than the 160 square feet specified in the 
Regulations (Section 030.107, Subsection A.1.).  Mr. Rinaldi stated he would question “if the amount of 
materials removed reached the 160 square foot threshold.” 
 
 
In response to Mr. Rinaldi, Ms. Albee advised “although Staff could hope” Advance Installation’s 
estimate was accurate, as the work had already been performed, “Staff did not have a definitive amount 
of asbestos containing materials; and was unable to verify the estimation of 125 feet; therefore, it was 
the consensus of Staff “to be conservative” in the determination. 
 
 
Mr. Paul Duminie, owner of Paul’s Handyman Service, being duly sworn, stated he was contacted by Mr. 
Uhl regarding removing the flooring from the kitchen and bathroom areas and cabinets in the kitchen.  
Mr. Duminie stated Mr. Uhl “didn’t say anything about asbestos removal”; that had Mr. Uhl indicated 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 7 
 
 
 
 
there was asbestos-containing materials to be removed in the unit, he (Mr. Duminie) would not have 
accepted the job.  Mr. Duminie stated his ‘handyman’ contractor’s license limits him to payment of “no 
more than $1,000; that the Contractor’s Board is very tight about that, so he works within the law.”  Mr. 
Duminie stated the signature on the two (2) receipts indicating payments to him in the amount of $1600 
each “is not his signature.”  Mr. Duminie stated the receipts indicate he was paid $3200 total; however, 
he was only paid $700 for the work; and reiterated “he had no idea it was asbestos.” 
 
 
Mr. Restori advised (in reference to Mr. John Rosa); Mr. Rosa is an Investigator with the State of Nevada 
Contractor’s Board; that Mr. Rosa participated in the investigation, which is required “should it be 
determined a handyman is conducting work practices beyond the scope of the individual’s contractor’s 
license.”  Mr. Restori stated he and Mr. Rosa conducted coordinated investigations with Mr. Rosa 
contacting the same individuals involved in this case.  Mr. Restori stated Mr. Rosa did confirm there 
were signatures on the receipts that did match Mr. Duminie’s signature on his license.”    
 
 
Mr. Duminie stated Mr. Uhl had two (2) other individuals working at the unit at the same time he (Mr. 
Duminie) was performing the removal of the flooring.  Mr. Duminie reiterated the signatures on the 
receipts are not his; that his wife manages “the paperwork for the business; and they write their own 
receipts.”  Mr. Duminie sated “he has no idea where those receipt came from, as he has never seen 
them before; that he would not have signed someone else’s receipt.”  Mr. Duminie stated he has 
worked with Mr. Rosa from the State Contractor’s Board previously; that “Mr. Rosa should know the 
signature on the receipt wasn’t him.”    
 
 
Ms. Albee advised Mr. Pearson, Mr. Uhl., and Mr. Rosa were contacted regarding tonight’s hearing; 
however, none were able to attend.  Ms. Albee stated Staff received a copy of the receipts from Mr. 
Pearson through Mr. Uhl.  Ms. Albee stated Mr. Rosa does have the authority “to pull” a copy of Mr. 
Duminie’s Drivers and Contractor’s License; that Mr. Rosa did indicate to Mr. Restori that the signatures 
did match those on the receipt.  
 
Mr. Rinaldi stated although Mr. Rosa “may have testified there wasn’t a difference in the signatures, Mr. 
Rosa is not present to do so.”  In response to Mr. Rinaldi regarding Mr. Duminie’s signature, Mr. 
Duminie presented his Nevada Driver’s License to the Hearing Board.  Mr. Rinaldi stated, on behalf of 
the record, he would note, “there are obvious differences in the signatures” on Mr. Duminie’s Driver’s 
License and the one noted on the receipt “Statement from Dan Pearson c/o Roy Uhl to Paul’s Handyman 
Service.”   
 
 
In response to Mr. Kenney regarding the form of payment, Mr. Duminie advised he was paid in cash.    
 
 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 8 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Duminie stated Mr. Rosa is aware “of his (Mr. Duminie’s) paperwork; and knows that is all he has 
and that is all he uses.”  Mr. Duminie stated “he has nothing to hide.”   
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald regarding the “mention of the threshold in the amount of asbestos-
containing materials removed”, Mr. Rinaldi advised Section 030.107, Subsection A. 1., specifies the 
aggregate amount of asbestos “…more than 160 feet square, 260 lineal feet or 35 cubic feet…”, as the 
threshold.  Mr. Rinaldi stated any asbestos abatement removal of more than 160 square feet requires 
notification. 
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald regarding “no notification being required for less than 160 square feet”, 
Ms. Albee advised “any disturbance of asbestos-containing materials requires an Asbestos 
Acknowledgement form, which is a locally required notification form.  Ms. Albee advised the NESHAP 
notification form “is a higher level of notification.”  Ms. Albee advised Section 030.105 of the 
Regulations is the adoption of the Federal NESHAP standards/requirements by reference; that Section 
030.107 is the implementation of those Regulations.  Ms. Albee advised that should there be a violation 
of Section 030.105 (NESHAP), the Federal US EPA would have oversight of the notification.  Ms. Albee 
advised Section 030.105 was referenced as the Federal NESHAP requirements; that Mr. Duminie was 
cited for violation of Section 030.107.   
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald regarding the itemized billing denoting “Paul’s Handyman Service” 
specifically referencing “…asbestos abatement subfloor disposal…”, Mr. Duminie reiterated that is not 
his; that he “has never seen it before.”  Mr. Duminie reiterated he was paid $700 in cash for the removal 
of the flooring; that it was not until Mr. Restori advised him of the receipt and provided him a copy that 
he became aware of it.  Mr. Duminie stated he has his customers obtain “their own materials” 
 
 
In response to Dr. Fitzgerald regarding Mr. Uhl notifying Mr. Duminie of the test results being positive 
for asbestos-containing materials, Mr. Duminie stated Mr. Uhl “never told him there were asbestos-
containing materials in the flooring.”  Mr. Duminie stated “since this incident he is grateful to Mr. 
Restori for explaining things to him which he didn’t know.”  Mr. Duminie stated through this incident 
“he got educated at the same time” regarding asbestos awareness.   
 
 
In response to Mr. Kenney regarding a contract for the work performed, Mr. Duminie stated it was a 
verbal agreement; that he provided a receipt of payment when the work was completed.   
 
 
Mr. Greene stated Advance Installations estimated the removal of approximately 125 square feet of 
asbestos-containing materials; that “as the Hearing Board and Staff are familiar with the work of 



AIR POLLUTION CONTROL HEARING BOARD 
APPEAL – CASE NO. 1138 (PAUL DUMINIE dba PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE) 
January 7, 2014 
Page 9 
 
 
 
 
Advance Installations he has no reason to doubt the amount.”  Mr. Greene stated the Regulations 
specify the aggregate removal of 160 square feet of asbestos-containing materials as the threshold; 
therefore, the amount removed as less than that threshold amount.  Mr. Greene stated there was a 
violation of failure to apply for the required asbestos acknowledgement form.   
 
MOTION 
 
Mr. Green moved based upon the testimony and evidence presented, a violation of Section 030107 
(Hazardous Air Pollutants), Subsection A. (Asbestos Sampling and Notification) of the Washoe County 
District Board of Health Regulations did occur; and that it be recommended to the District Board of 
Health that the appeal of PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE (PAUL DUMINIE), be denied and Citation No. 
5389, Case No. 1138 be upheld and a fine in the amount of $2,000 be levied against Paul’s Handyman 
Service for a major violation.  Mr. Greene further moved that violation of Section 030.107, Subsection B. 
(Asbestos Control Work Practices); and Subsection C. (Asbestos Contamination and Abatement), be 
dismissed. 
 
 
The motion was seconded by Mr. Kenney and upon a roll call vote the motion failed. 
 
 
Dr. Fitzgerald stated her concern is in regard to the liability of Mr. Dan Pearson, as the property owner; 
and Mr. Roy Michael Uhl, as the property manager; that Mr. Duminie was not made aware there was 
asbestos-containing materials in the unit.   
 
 
Mr. Rinaldi stated he, too, has concerns regarding the testimony and evidence presented regarding Mr. 
Duminie’s ‘signatures’ on the receipts presented by Mr. Uhl.   Mr. Rinaldi stated the same stipulation 
regarding less than 160 square feet of asbestos-containing materials could be applied to any potential 
liability of Mr. Pearson and Mr. Uhl.    
 
 
Dr. Fitzgerald stated, further she is concerned a $2,000 penalty is excessive for a job in which Mr. 
Duminie was paid only $700. 
 
Dr. Fitzgerald moved based upon the testimony and evidence presented, a violation of Section 030107 
(Hazardous Air Pollutants), Subsection A. (Asbestos Sampling and Notification) of the Washoe County 
District Board of Health Regulations did occur; and that it be recommended to the District Board of 
Health that the appeal of PAUL’S HANDYMAN SERVICE (PAUL DUMINIE), be denied and Citation No. 
5389, Case No. 1138 be upheld and a fine in the amount of $150 be levied against Paul’s Handyman 
Service for a major violation.  Mr. Greene further moved that violation of Section 030.107, Subsection B. 
(Asbestos Control Work Practices); and Subsection C. (Asbestos Contamination and Abatement), be 
dismissed. 



16 of 118



17 of 118



18 of 118



19 of 118



20 of 118



21 of 118



22 of 118



23 of 118



24 of 118



25 of 118



26 of 118



27 of 118



28 of 118



29 of 118



30 of 118



31 of 118



32 of 118



33 of 118



34 of 118



35 of 118



36 of 118



37 of 118



38 of 118



39 of 118



40 of 118



41 of 118



42 of 118



43 of 118



44 of 118



45 of 118



46 of 118



47 of 118



48 of 118



49 of 118



50 of 118



51 of 118



52 of 118



53 of 118



54 of 118



55 of 118



56 of 118



57 of 118



58 of 118



59 of 118



60 of 118



61 of 118



62 of 118



63 of 118



64 of 118



65 of 118



66 of 118



67 of 118



68 of 118



69 of 118



70 of 118



71 of 118



72 of 118



73 of 118



74 of 118



75 of 118



76 of 118



77 of 118



78 of 118



79 of 118



80 of 118



81 of 118



82 of 118



83 of 118



84 of 118



85 of 118



86 of 118



87 of 118



88 of 118



89 of 118



90 of 118



91 of 118



92 of 118



93 of 118



94 of 118



95 of 118



96 of 118



97 of 118



98 of 118



99 of 118



100 of 118



101 of 118



102 of 118



103 of 118



104 of 118



105 of 118



106 of 118



107 of 118



108 of 118



109 of 118



110 of 118



111 of 118



112 of 118



113 of 118



114 of 118



115 of 118



116 of 118



117 of 118



118 of 118



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2014 

DATE:   February 14, 2014 

TO:    District Board of Health 

FROM:  Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2419, edixon@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:   Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer 
775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

 SUBJECT: Termination of Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada, 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protection 
and the Washoe County Health District with an effective date of March 31, 2014 for the 
Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO 10022. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget.   

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and 
health hazards. 

BACKGROUND 
Environmental Health Services has maintained and renewed an interlocal agreement with the 
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection to complete Targeted Sector Inspections within 
Washoe County to determine compliance with hazardous waste rules and disposal 
requirements. Staff has determined the on-going hazardous waste and Targeted Sector Inspection 
Project no longer serves the community in an effective manner and lacks a true public health 
component. Current facilities inspected tend to be either out of business or a non-generators of 
waste while funding of the contract continues to decrease over time. Therefore, staff believes 
ending this contract will allow management to utilize current staff resources in other areas of the 
waste management program where their work may be more effective and productive to 
protecting public health and the environment.   

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved the Interlocal Contract for the period July 
1, 2013 through June 30, 2015 in the total amount of $100,000 on March 12, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 8.C.1.

mailto:edixon@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


District Board of Health 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve the termination of this Interlocal Contract, there is a fiscal impact to 
the program of a reduction of $12,500 for FY14 and $50,000 for FY15. Staff activities will be 
reassigned to other non-locally funded activities, primarily solid waste activities funded from the 
Tire Fund, IO-20269. There will not be a fiscal impact to the general fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health terminate Interlocal Contract between the 
State of Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental 
Protection and the Washoe County Health District with an effective date of March 31, 2014 for 
the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO 10022. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to terminate Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada, Department of Conservation 
and Natural Resources, Division of Environmental Protection and the Washoe County Health 
District with an effective date of March 31, 2014 for the Hazardous Materials Grant Program, IO 
10022. 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2014 

DATE: February 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2419, edixon@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County Health 
District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approval of Assistance Amendment B from the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) for the period of 4/1/2008 – 3/31/2014 in the total amount of 
$646,496 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 
Program; approve amendments totaling an increase of $47,917 in both revenue and 
expense to the FY14 Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, PM 
2.5 Program, IO 10021.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Office to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget.   

The Air Quality Management Division receives a Grant Agreement from the EPA, which 
provides for grant funding for the on-going Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 Program, IO 
10021.  A copy of Assistance Amendment B is attached. 

Goal supported by this item:  Approval of Assistance Amendment B supports the Health District 
Air Quality Program Mission to implement clean air solutions that protect the quality of life for 
the citizens of Reno, Sparks and Washoe County. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 
Assistance Amendment B was received on January 14, 2014 which provided an additional 
$13,000 to monitor fine particulate matter with the diameter equal to or smaller than 2.5 
micrometers (PM 2.5).  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.2.

mailto:edixon@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


The Assistance Amendment B period is 4/1/2008 – 3/31/2014 in the total amount of $646,496. 
There were two grant years where a total of $34,917 was not spent ($15,102 in grant year 08-09 
and $19,815 in grant year 12-13). A total of $47,917 in budget amendment is necessary to align 
FY14 budget with Assistance Amendment B.  
 
Air Quality Management staff monitor PM 2.5 with support from funding from multiple sources, 
including EPA, DMV (Department of Motor Vehicles) and local funds. This one time 
enhancement will provide a short term increase in staff time on IO 10021.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted FY 14 budget will be 
increased by $47,917.00  in the following accounts: 
 

   Amount of 
Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 

2002-IO-10021 -431100 Federal Revenue $47,917.00 
2002-IO-10021 -701110 Base Salaries $11,080.48 

 -701300 Overtime $216.68 
 -705110 Group Insurance $1,809.53 
 -705210 Retirement $2,991.24 
 -705230 Medicare $160.30 
 -710300  Operating Supplies $1,558.77 

 -711504 Equipment Non Capital $2,500 
 -781004  Equipment Capital $27,600 
    
  Total Expenditures $47,917.00 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Approval of 
Assistance Amendment B from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for the period 
of 4/1/2008 – 3/31/2014 in the total amount of $646,496 for the Air Quality Management, EPA 
Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 Program; approve amendments totaling an increase of 
$47,917 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution 
Control Program, PM 2.5 Program, IO 10021. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Assistance Amendment B from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) for the period of 4/1/2008 – 3/31/2014 in the total amount of $646,496 for the Air Quality 
Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 Program; approve amendments 
totaling an increase of $47,917 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 Air Quality 
Management, EPA Air Pollution Control Program, PM 2.5 Program, IO 10021. 

 
 

 



PM - 98963101 - B     Page 1
 GRANT NUMBER (FAIN): 98963101
 MODIFICATION NUMBER: B   DATE OF AWARD
 PROGRAM CODE: PM  01/07/2014U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AGENCY  TYPE OF ACTION
 Augmentation: Increase

 MAILING DATE
 01/14/2014

Assistance Amendment  PAYMENT METHOD:
 Advance

 ACH#
 90104

RECIPIENT TYPE: 
County 

 Send Payment Request to:
 Las Vegas Finance Center, Fax (702) 798-2423

RECIPIENT:  PAYEE:
Washoe Cnty Dist Hlth Dept
P.O. Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520
EIN: 88-6000138

 Washoe Cnty Dist Hlth Dept
 P.O. Box 11130
 Reno, NV 89520

PROJECT MANAGER  EPA PROJECT OFFICER  EPA GRANT SPECIALIST
Erin Dixon
P.O. Box 11130
Reno, NV  89520
E-Mail: edixon@washoecounty.us
Phone: 775-328-2419

 Roy Ford
 75 Hawthorne Street, AIR-8
 San Francisco, CA  94105
 E-Mail: Ford.Roy@epa.gov
 Phone: 415-972-3997  

 Renee Chan
 Grants Management Office, MTS-7
 E-Mail: Chan.Renee@epa.gov
 Phone: 415-972-3675

PROJECT TITLE AND EXPLANATION OF CHANGES
PM2.5 Monitoring Network

This assistance amendment increases the federal funding by $13,000, from $633,496, to the revised total approved assistance amount of $646,496.

The purpose of this grant amendment is to provide current year funding to the Washoe County Department of Health (WCDHD) to monitor fine particulate 
matter with the diameter equal to or smaller than 2.5 micrometers (PM 2.5) in order to determine compliance with the PM 2.5 National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards and determine deductions in air emissions.

Administrative and programmatic terms and conditions numbered 1 through 18 and P1 through P3, remain in full force and effect (Refer to applicable terms 
and conditions as reflected in agreement, PM-989631-01-A).  In addition, condition P4 (below) is added: 

P4.  EPA may terminate the assistance agreement for failure to make sufficient progress so as to reasonably ensure completion of the project within the 
project period, including any extensions.  EPA will measure sufficient progress by examining the performance required under the work plan in conjunction with 
the milestone schedule, the time remaining for performance within the project period, and/or the availability of funds necessary to complete the project.

 
BUDGET PERIOD  PROJECT PERIOD  TOTAL BUDGET PERIOD COST  TOTAL PROJECT PERIOD COST
04/01/2008  -  03/31/2014   04/01/2008  -  03/31/2014  $646,496.00  $646,496.00

NOTICE OF AWARD
Based on your Application dated 11/26/2013 including all modifications and amendments, the United States acting by and through the US Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) hereby awards $13,000. EPA agrees to cost-share 100.00% of all approved budget period costs incurred, up to and not exceeding 
total federal funding of $646,496.  Recipient's signature is not required on this agreement.  The recipient demonstrates its commitment to carry out this award 
by either: 1) drawing down funds within 21 days after the EPA award or amendment mailing date; or 2) not filing a notice of disagreement with the award terms 
and conditions within 21 days after the EPA award or amendment mailing date.  If the recipient disagrees with the terms and conditions specified in this award, 
the authorized representative of the recipient must furnish a notice of disagreement to the EPA Award Official within 21 days after the EPA award or 
amendment mailing date. In case of disagreement, and until the disagreement is resolved, the recipient should not draw down on the funds provided by this 
award/amendment, and any costs incurred by the recipient are at its own risk.  This agreement is subject to applicable EPA statutory provisions. The 
applicable regulatory provisions are 40 CFR Chapter 1, Subchapter B, and all terms and conditions of this agreement and any attachments.

ISSUING OFFICE (GRANTS MANAGEMENT OFFICE) AWARD APPROVAL OFFICE
ORGANIZATION / ADDRESS  ORGANIZATION / ADDRESS
U.S. EPA, Region 9
Grants Management Office, MTS-7
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

 U.S. EPA, Region 9
 Air Division, AIR-1
 75 Hawthorne Street
 San Francisco, CA  94105

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA BY THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Digital signature applied by EPA Award Official for Denise Zvanovec - Grants Management Officer
 
 Cheryl Filart - Award Official delegate  

 DATE
 01/07/2014

mailto:Ford.Roy@epa.gov
mailto:Chan.Renee@epa.gov


EPA Funding Information PM - 98963101 - B     Page 2

FUNDS FORMER AWARD THIS ACTION AMENDED TOTAL
 EPA Amount This Action $ 335,200 $ 13,000 $ 348,200

 EPA In-Kind Amount $ 298,296 $ $  298,296

 Unexpended Prior Year Balance $ 0 $ $ 0

 Other Federal Funds $ 0 $ $ 0

 Recipient Contribution $ 0 $ $ 0

 State Contribution $ 0 $ $ 0

 Local Contribution $ 0 $ $ 0

 Other Contribution $ 0 $ $ 0

 Allowable Project Cost $ 633,496 $ 13,000 $ 646,496

Assistance Program (CFDA)  Statutory Authority  Regulatory Authority
66.034 - 
Surveys-Studies-Investigations-Demonstrations 
and Special Purpose Activities relating to the 
Clean Air Act

 Clean Air Act: Sec. 103  40 CFR PART 31

Fiscal
Site Name Req No FY Approp. 

Code
Budget 

Organization
PRC Object 

Class
Site/Project Cost 

Organization
Obligation / 
Deobligation

- 1409M4S005 13 E1 09M4 102A04XPM 4112 - - 13,000

13,000



(PageBreak)

PM - 98963101 - B     Page  3
Budget Summary Page

Table A - Object Class Category
(Non-construction)

Total Approved Allowable
Budget Period Cost

1. Personnel $163,719
2. Fringe Benefits $61,881
3. Travel $4,000
4. Equipment $92,000
5. Supplies $6,600
6. Contractual $318,296
7. Construction $0
8. Other $0
9. Total Direct Charges $646,496
10. Indirect Costs:  %  Base $0
11. Total (Share:  Recipient 0.00 %  Federal 100.00 %.) $646,496
12. Total Approved Assistance Amount $348,200
13. Program Income $0
14. Total EPA Amount Awarded This Action $13,000
15. Total EPA Amount Awarded To Date $646,496

 
Table B - Program Element Classification

(Non-construction)
Total Approved Allowable

Budget Period Cost
 1.  Table A, Line 6 Contractual includes $
 2.   in-kind contractor support through $
 3.  an EPA-HQ national contract. $
 4. $
 5. $
 6.  Table A, Line 12, reflects total available $
 7.  drawdown amount. $
 8. $
 9. $
 10. $
 11.  Total (Share: Recip  % Fed  %) $
 12.  Total Approved Assistance Amount $



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2014 

DATE: February 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2419, edixon@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve amendments totaling an increase of $61,951.96 in both 
revenue and expense to the FY14 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary 
National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the 
Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and 
amendments to the adopted budget. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and 
health hazards. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action this fiscal year.  

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District (District) received a Notice of Grant Award from 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration in the 
amount of $346,500 ($69,300 per year), for the period September 12, 2012 through June 
30, 2017 in support of the VNRFRPS Grant Program, IO 11088. The program did not 
expend all Year 1 funds and carried forward $50,620 for a total FY 14 award of 
$124,982. A copy of the Cooperative Agreement is attached. 

To align the combined award with the FY14 adopted budget, additional adjustments are 
required. The difference in the FY14 original award ($69,300 minus indirect costs of 
$6,300) and FY14 adopted budget ($51,668.04) of $11,331.96 will also be included for a 
total adjustment of $61,951.96. 

1 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.3.

mailto:edixon@washoecounty.us


FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted FY14 budget will be 
increased by $61,591.96 in the following accounts: 
 
   Amount of 

Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 
2002-IO-11088   -431100 Federal Revenue $61,951.96 

 -701130 Pooled Positions ($36,108.04) 
 -710508 Telephone $360 
 -710360 Postage $2,530 
 -710546 Advertising $2,530 
 -711210 Travel $1,740 
 -710100 Professional Services $90,900 

  Total Expenditures $61,951.96 
 
The difference between the carry forward award of $55,682 and the budget amendment 
of $50,620 is $5,062 which will be collected in indirect revenue.  No budget adjustment 
is needed for the indirect revenue. 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve amendments 
totaling an increase of $61,951.96 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 Advancing 
Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program 
(VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve amendments totaling an increase of $61,951.96 in both revenue and 
expense to the FY14 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food 
Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 
 

2 of 8



3 of 8



4 of 8



5 of 8



6 of 8



7 of 8



8 of 8



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2014 

DATE:  December 18, 2013 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:  Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County 
Health District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approve Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 
through July 31, 2014 in the total amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity 
(ELC) Affordable Care Act Federal Carry Forward Grant Program, IO TBA; 
Approve amendments totaling a net increase of $13,396 in both revenue and 
expenses to the adopted FY 14 ELC – Carry Forward Grant budget, IO TBA; and if 
approved, and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the 
Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and 
amendments to the adopted budget.   

The Washoe County Health District received a Notice of Subgrant Award from the 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period August 1, 2013 through July 31, 
2014 in the total amount of $136,833 in support of the Epidemiology and Laboratory 
Capacity Grant Program.  A copy of Subgrant Award is attached.   

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Experience a low rate of communicable 
diseases. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, secure and healthy communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s 
mission to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and 
respond decisively to control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events or 
any public health emergency. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the FY14 Base ELC Grant Program (IO 10984) on 
September 26, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.4

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


 
BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District is in receipt of an award from the State of Nevada 
Division of Public and Behavorial Health that allows us to carry forward the scope of 
work and funding of the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity Program – Building and 
Strengthening Epidemiology, grant 3U50CI000900-02S2, HD 13095 from the CDC.  The 
award amount for the ELC grant (HD 13095) is $136,833.  The amount available to 
spend for the carry forward (unspent funds) is $15,194. 
 
Carry forward funding is not sustainable.  As such, the Washoe County Health District 
will utilize this one-time funding of $15,194 to partially support personnel expenditures 
associated with an existing Epidemiologist (pc#70002290), purchase a laser printer and 
recover indirect costs. Staff will override their time to the new internal order which will 
result in personnel savings in cost center 171700.  These savings will help cover the 
unbudgeted increase in personnel costs associated with the cost of living increase 
approved by the Washoe Board of County Commissioners.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This award was not anticipated in the FY14 budget.  A budget amendment in the total 
amount of $13,396 is necessary to bring the Award into alignment with the program 
budget.   
 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the total adopted FY14 budget will 
be increased by $13,396 by adjustments to the following accounts: 
   Amount of 

Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 
2002-IO-TBA -431100 Federal Grants $13,396 
2002-IO-TBA -701110 Base Salaries  8,769 
2002-IO-TBA -705110 Group Insurance  1,240 
2002-IO-TBA -705210 Retirement 2,251 
2002-IO-TBA -705230 Medicare 122 
2002-IO-TBA -711504 Equipment nonCapital 1,014 

  Total Expenditures $13,396 
 
The difference between the carry forward amount of $15,194 and the budget amendment 
is $1,798 which will be collected in indirect revenue.  No budget adjustment is needed for 
the indirect revenue. 
 
This budget amendment will also require Board of County Commissioners approval.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve the Notice 
of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 in the total 
amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Affordable Care Act Federal Carry 
Forward Grant Program, IO TBA; Approve amendments totaling a net increase of 
$13,396 in both revenue and expenses to the adopted FY 14 ELC – Carry Forward Grant 
budget, IO TBA; and if approved, and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 



 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve the Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 through 
July 31, 2014 in the total amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Affordable 
Care Act Federal Carry Forward Grant Program, IO TBA; Approve amendments totaling 
a net increase of $13,396 in both revenue and expenses to the adopted FY 14 ELC – 
Carry Forward Grant budget, IO TBA; and if approved, and if approved authorize the 
Chairman to execute. 

































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2014 

DATE:  February 18, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:  Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County Health 
District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health in the amount of $760,946 for the budget period July 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget.   

The Washoe County Health District received Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 in the amount of 
$760,946 in support of the CDC Public Health Preparedness Grant Program.  A copy of Subgrant 
Amendment #3 is attached.   

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Protect population from health problems and 
health hazards. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission 
to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively 
to control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events or any public health emergency. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada State 
Health Division in the amount of $665,000 for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 in support 
of the CDC Public Health Preparedness Program at their August 23, 2012 meeting.  The Board 
approved Subgrant Amendment #1 (Scope of Work) on October 25, 2012.  Subgrant 
Amendment #2 in the amount of $1,045,473 and budget amendment in the amount of $128,275 
was approved on September 26, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.5.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


BACKGROUND 
The Nevada State Health Division has awarded the Public Health Preparedness Program the 
second half of funding for the period January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014 in the amount of 
$380,473.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact should the Board accept Subgrant Amendment #3.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Subgrant 
Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in the amount of $760,946 for 
the budget period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize 
the Chairman to execute. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the amount of $760,946 for the budget period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (BP2) in 
support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness 
Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 















WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2014 

DATE: February 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County 
Health District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Nevada Department 
of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the 
period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014, in the amount of $317,061 
(reduced from $389,206), in support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO 
10013; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the 
Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and 
amendments to the adopted budget.   

The Washoe County Health District received Amendment #2 from the Nevada 
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the amount of $317,061, for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014 in 
support of the HIV Prevention program, IO 10013.  A copy of Amendment #3 is 
attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority supported by this item: Experience a low rate 
of communicable disease. 

Approval of Amendment #3 also supports the District’s Community & Clinical Health 
Services Division Sexual Health program’s mission to provide comprehensive prevention 
education, treatment, and surveillance activities in Washoe County that reduce the 
incidence of STD infection including HIV.  The Sexual Health Program emphasizes 
strategies that empower individuals to decrease risk-related behaviors, thereby decreasing 
the incidence of new STD and HIV infections in the community. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the following: 
1) Notice of Subgrant Award in the amount of $486,542 (per calendar year) in support

of the HIV Prevention Program on February 23, 2012 for the period January 1, 2012 
through December 31, 2013.  2) 

2) Subgrant Amendment #1 for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014
in the amount of $460,145 was approved on March 28, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.6.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


3) The retroactive approval of District Health Officer acceptance of Subgrant 
Amendment #2 from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2012 through 
December 31, 2014, in the amount of $389,206 (reduced from $460,145), 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Subgrant has been adjusted to reduce funding from $389,206 to $317,061 for 
calendar year 2014.   
 
The Subgrant provides funding for personnel, travel and training, operating supplies, 
professional services, educational supplies, advertising , lab/outpatient, non-capital 
equipment, and other expenses, including funding specifically for community outreach, 
planning meetings and program participation via the use of incentives/enablers (including 
but not limited to, gift cards/gift certificates, transportation and food vouchers, 
educational outreach items, nutritious food and beverage, behavioral reinforcers, etc.). 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This is a calendar year grant and sufficient budget authority exists through June 30, 2014.  
As such, no budget amendment is necessary. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve Subgrant Amendment #3 
from the Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2014, in the 
amount of $317,061 (reduced from $389,206), in support of the HIV Prevention Grant 
Program, IO 10013; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2012 
through December 31, 2014, in the amount of $317,061 (reduced from $389,206), in 
support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO 10013; and if approved authorize the 
Chairman to execute.  
 
 





WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2014 

DATE:  February 18, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:  Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County Health 
District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health in the amount of $438,693.00  for the budget period July 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response 
(ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget.   

The Washoe County Health District received a Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Nevada State 
Health Division for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 in the amount of $438,693 in 
support of the Public Health Preparedness ASPR Grant Program.  A copy of the Subgrant 
Amendment #3 is attached.   

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Protect population from health problems and 
health hazards. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division’s mission 
to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively 
to control the public health consequences of bioterrorism events or any public health emergency. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada State 
Health Division in the amount of $404,044 for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 in 
support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness 
Program at their August 23, 2012 meeting.  The Board approved Subgrant Amendment #1 
(Scope of Work only) on November 15, 2012. Subgrant Amendment #2 in the total amount of 
$623,386.50 and a budget amendment in the amount of $37, 058 on September 26, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 8.C.7.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


BACKGROUND 
The Nevada State Health Division has awarded the Public Health Preparedness Program the 
second half of funding for the period January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014 in the amount of 
$219,346.50.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact should the Board accept Subgrant Amendment #3.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Subgrant 
Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in the amount of $438,693.00  
for the budget period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 in support of the Assistant Secretary for 
Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; and if approved authorize 
the Chairman to execute. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the amount of $438,693.00  for the budget period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 in support 
of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness 
Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 















WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2014 

DATE:   February 18, 2014 

TO:    District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:   Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County 
Health District, 775-328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 

 SUBJECT: Approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of 
Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period 
January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 in the amount of $111,685 for the 
Immunization Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029); and if approved authorize the 
Chairman to execute.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget.   

The Health District received a Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health which provides for grant funding for 
the on-going Immunization Program, IOs 10028 & 10029.  A copy of the Award is attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Be assured that mandates are met and needed 
services are delivered. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, secure, and healthy communities. 

Approval of the Notice of Subgrant Award also supports the Health District Immunization 
Program Mission to promote public health by reducing vaccine preventable disease through 
immunization, with an emphasis on collaboration and cooperation with community partners. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved a Notice of Subgrant Award for Calendar 
Year 2013 in the amount of $99,223, representing “Round 1” of funding, in support of the 
Immunization Program on February 28, 2013. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 8.C.8.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us
mailto:estickney@washoecounty.us


District Board of Health 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved Subgrant Amendment #1 for Calendar 
Year 2013 in the amount of $99,223, representing “Round 2” of funding, in support of the 
Immunization Program on July 25, 2013. 
 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved Subgrant Amendment #2 for Calendar 
Year 2013 in the amount of $99,223, representing “Round 3” of funding, in support of the 
Immunization Program on September 26, 2013 bringing the total CY 2013 funding to $297,673. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The NSHD has received “Round 1” of funding from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC).  As such, the Notice of Subgrant Award reflects the subgrant period of 
January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, with funding at $111,685.  This represents one-
third of our total funding request. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No budget amendments are necessary as sufficient budget authority is available through 6/30/14. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the 
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
for the period January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 in the amount of $111,685 for the 
Immunization Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029); and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute.  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to a approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2014 in the amount of $111,685 for the Immunization Program Grant 
(IOs 10028 & 10029); and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute.  
 















































1 of 41

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 10.



2 of 41



3 of 41



4 of 41



5 of 41



6 of 41



7 of 41



8 of 41



9 of 41



10 of 41



11 of 41



12 of 41



13 of 41



14 of 41



15 of 41



16 of 41



17 of 41



18 of 41



19 of 41



20 of 41



21 of 41



22 of 41



23 of 41



24 of 41



25 of 41



26 of 41



27 of 41



28 of 41



29 of 41



30 of 41



31 of 41



32 of 41



33 of 41



34 of 41



35 of 41



36 of 41



37 of 41



38 of 41



39 of 41



40 of 41



41 of 41



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

February 10, 2014 

To: District Board of Health Members 

From: Eileen Stickney 

Subject: Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for January 2014 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health accept the attached report of revenues and 
expenditures for the Health Fund for January 2014 of Fiscal Year 14. 

Background 
The attached reports are for the accounting period 7/14 and the percentages should approximate 
58% of the year.  The total revenues and expenditures for the current year (FY14) compared to last 
year (FY13) are as follows:  

JAN 2014 FY14 – REV FY13 – REV FY14 – EXP FY13 – EXP 
Overhead-GF $1,690,519.81 

58% 
$1,276,686.00 

50% 
AHS $560,958.52 

44% 
$619,581.92 

51% 
$1,388,505.19 

54% 
$1,440,483.29 

56% 
AQM $1,450,223.61 

54% 
$1,254,171.31 

56% 
$1,207,168.52 

42% 
$1,313,433.74 

45% 
CCHS $797,561.22 

33% 
$1,103,754.69 

45% 
$2,568,108.35 

53% 
2,707,592.40 

55% 
EHS $859,956.57 

43% 
$956,150.82 

54% 
$2,909,300.67 

51% 
$2,864,057.83 

50% 
EPHP $706,982.90 

39% 
$830,030.47 

45% 
$1,105,776.83 

49% 
$1,142,097.08 

48% 
Adjustments 
TOTAL $4,375,682.82 

43% 
$4,763,689.21 

50% 
$10,869,379.37 

51% 
$10,744,350.34 

51% 

GF Transfer $4,301,945.52 
50% 

$2,874,631.00 
33% 

The Environmental Oversight Account balance for January is $108,323.21. 

I would be happy to answer any questions of the Board during the meeting or you may contact me 
directly at 328-2417.  Thank you. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.

1 of 19



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE EXPENSE

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 35,201.00- 27,976.00- 56 51,500.00- 31,434.00- 20,066.00- 61
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 21,480.00- 53,210.00- 29 68,000.00- 14,732.00- 53,268.00- 22
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 7,461.00- 5,845.00- 56 10,500.00- 6,737.00- 3,763.00- 64
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 249,969.00- 242,212.00- 51 369,000.00- 228,473.00- 140,527.00- 62
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 19,474.00- 4,093.00- 83 20,000.00- 14,048.00- 5,952.00- 70
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 4,434.00- 1,234.00 139 2,500.00- 1,472.00- 1,028.00- 59
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 296,450.25- 287,561.75- 51 448,037.00- 263,154.75- 184,882.25- 59
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 50,902.00- 15,620.00- 77 49,000.00- 30,280.00- 18,720.00- 62
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 50,412.00- 49,211.00- 51 79,000.00- 39,464.00- 39,536.00- 50
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 19,620.00- 15,606.00- 56 27,000.00- 16,186.00- 10,814.00- 60
*   Licenses and Permits 1,455,504.00- 755,403.25- 700,100.75- 52 1,124,537.00- 645,980.75- 478,556.25- 57
    431100  Federal Grants 5,317,857.05- 1,823,922.71- 3,493,934.34- 34 5,860,619.51- 2,637,411.62- 3,223,207.89- 45
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 243,178.41- 131,932.75- 111,245.66- 54 125,376.00- 43,342.17- 82,033.83- 35
    432100  State Grants 741,802.00- 217,518.20- 524,283.80- 29 281,857.00- 233,559.97- 48,297.03- 83
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 766.00- 1,439.00- 35     
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 177,315.54- 291,232.46- 38 418,766.00- 241,500.45- 177,265.55- 58
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 479,374.67- 179,374.67 160 300,000.00- 162,040.00- 137,960.00- 54
*   Intergovernmental 7,073,590.46- 2,830,829.87- 4,242,760.59- 40 6,986,618.51- 3,317,854.21- 3,668,764.30- 47
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 29,432.07- 59,567.93- 33 89,000.00- 37,462.00- 51,538.00- 42
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 1,677.50- 6,522.50- 20 36,200.00- 44.46 36,244.46- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 9,692.00- 10,308.00- 48 30,000.00- 10,881.50- 19,118.50- 36
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 2,845.95- 1,254.05- 69 4,100.00- 2,942.93- 1,157.07- 72
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 20,572.00- 14,772.00- 58 113,400.00- 67,164.00- 46,236.00- 59
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 261,051.00- 188,949.00- 58 400,000.00- 267,728.00- 132,272.00- 67
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  702.34- 702.34   237.78- 237.78  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  112.00 112.00-  2,700.00- 2,788.00- 88.00 103
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 11,635.00- 8,349.00- 58 13,900.00- 10,282.00- 3,618.00- 74
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 18,879.51- 17,129.51 1,079 2,250.00-  2,250.00-  
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 3,510.00- 3,490.00- 50 7,000.00- 6,544.00- 456.00- 93
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 10,976.99- 10,023.01- 52 23,000.00- 13,026.59- 9,973.41- 57
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 29,240.00- 21,467.00- 58 44,000.00- 17,967.00- 26,033.00- 41
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 3,173.00- 643.00- 83 2,500.00- 879.00- 1,621.00- 35
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 11,267.00- 7,498.00- 60 17,000.00- 15,417.00- 1,583.00- 91
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 19,788.65- 7,211.35- 73 44,000.00- 16,903.62- 27,096.38- 38
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 31,670.00- 4,351.00- 88 30,000.00- 21,788.00- 8,212.00- 73
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 17,730.00- 47,542.00- 27 40,000.00- 20,508.00- 19,492.00- 51
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 71,527.00- 42,407.00- 63 100,000.00- 55,731.00- 44,269.00- 56
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 48,011.00- 87,378.00- 35 84,000.00- 42,299.00- 41,701.00- 50
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 26,350.00- 31,538.00- 46 41,000.00- 27,149.00- 13,851.00- 66
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,113.00- 12,542.00- 14 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 84,540.00- 103,150.00- 45 95,000.00- 57,049.00- 37,951.00- 60
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel      322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start         
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 4,592.00- 5,968.00- 43 8,500.00- 4,517.00- 3,983.00- 53
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 11,286.00- 11,254.00- 50 17,300.00- 8,726.00- 8,574.00- 50

2 of 19



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE EXPENSE

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    460570  Education Revenue 2,900.00- 882.00- 2,018.00- 30 5,700.00- 850.00- 4,850.00- 15
*   Charges for Services 1,403,515.00- 733,032.01- 670,482.99- 52 1,253,150.00- 711,955.96- 541,194.04- 57
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 21,546.33- 16,003.67- 57 41,934.00- 22,880.40- 19,053.60- 55
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 32,276.36- 55,987.00- 37 114,750.00- 58,763.00- 55,987.00- 51
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00-  5,125.00-      
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb      907.44- 907.44  
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00   180.00- 180.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75- 2,515.00- 59,713.75- 4  5,167.45- 5,167.45  
*   Miscellaneous 193,167.11- 56,417.69- 136,749.42- 29 156,684.00- 87,898.29- 68,785.71- 56
**  Revenue 10,125,776.57- 4,375,682.82- 5,750,093.75- 43 9,520,989.51- 4,763,689.21- 4,757,300.30- 50
    701110  Base Salaries 9,184,929.10 4,964,556.72 4,220,372.38 54 9,442,227.37 5,087,511.89 4,354,715.48 54
    701120  Part Time 565,939.67 239,826.07 326,113.60 42 529,904.89 310,094.83 219,810.06 59
    701130  Pooled Positions 471,401.66 253,819.30 217,582.36 54 522,298.86 213,587.71 308,711.15 41
    701140  Holiday Work 2,818.65 3,177.98 359.33- 113 1,450.00 1,824.78 374.78- 126
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 165,403.00 82,244.01 83,158.99 50 158,292.00 84,844.20 73,447.80 54
    701300  Overtime 66,703.00 33,160.53 33,542.47 50 50,325.11 22,141.25 28,183.86 44
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00  1,000.00  1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 211,102.60-  211,102.60-  52,986.54  52,986.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  54,117.82 54,117.82-   63,179.86 63,179.86-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  3,333.83 3,333.83-   20,986.42 20,986.42-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,885.60 1,885.60-   9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 10,247,092.48 5,636,021.86 4,611,070.62 55 10,758,484.77 5,814,076.87 4,944,407.90 54
    705110  Group Insurance 1,418,327.59 772,092.56 646,235.03 54 1,449,189.10 792,167.68 657,021.42 55
    705210  Retirement 2,513,907.30 1,346,376.95 1,167,530.35 54 2,410,125.05 1,298,262.75 1,111,862.30 54
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 136,645.22 75,739.45 60,905.77 55 139,962.64 78,338.56 61,624.08 56
    705320  Workmens Comp 66,992.03 38,580.57 28,411.46 58 64,187.41 37,294.04 26,893.37 58
    705330  Unemply Comp 15,375.22 15,179.40 195.82 99 15,533.45 15,533.45  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment 13,398.00-  13,398.00-  10,656.00  10,656.00  
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 4,137,849.36 2,247,968.93 1,889,880.43 54 4,089,653.65 2,221,596.48 1,868,057.17 54
    710100  Professional Services 1,276,489.83 184,311.46 1,092,178.37 14 1,091,804.38 228,885.32 862,919.06 21
    710105  Medical Services 9,173.00 3,572.00 5,601.00 39 9,264.00 1,847.50 7,416.50 20
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 28,062.50 18,887.50 60 46,900.00 27,537.50 19,362.50 59
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 78,309.03 31,410.73 46,898.30 40 71,051.00 24,879.80 46,171.20 35
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 103,593.00 44,536.00 59,057.00 43 105,243.00 37,554.30 67,688.70 36
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 10,970.00 5,950.71 5,019.29 54 20,549.91 3,867.80 16,682.11 19
    710210  Software Maintenance 15,636.00 15,530.00 106.00 99 16,200.00 13,920.00 2,280.00 86
    710300  Operating Supplies 125,111.00 55,400.06 69,710.94 44 132,737.55 68,250.59 64,486.96 51
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 472.96 10,212.04 4 3,685.00  3,685.00  
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 343.91 1,656.09 17
    710312  Special Dept Expense         

3 of 19



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE EXPENSE

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,070.33 229.67 100 231,950.00 232,131.87 181.87- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 27,597.00 14,840.48 12,756.52 54 28,274.89 11,663.87 16,611.02 41
    710350  Office Supplies 43,073.50 17,880.28 25,193.22 42 44,171.01 20,338.96 23,832.05 46
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 7,919.00 4,072.60 3,846.40 51 8,413.00 3,239.32 5,173.68 39
    710360  Postage 21,855.00 11,127.17 10,727.83 51 21,954.00 9,027.93 12,926.07 41
    710361  Express and Courier 685.00 85.03 599.97 12 610.75 639.22 28.47- 105
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 25,681.96 13,271.13 12,410.83 52 45,973.51 17,007.39 28,966.12 37
    710502  Printing 33,770.00 9,336.41 24,433.59 28 31,499.00 8,858.15 22,640.85 28
    710503  Licenses & Permits 7,887.00 3,240.00 4,647.00 41 8,870.00 5,867.39 3,002.61 66
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment 2,027.00  2,027.00  5,178.00 1,046.00 4,132.00 20
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  333.86 333.86-   452.58 452.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 5,530.00 6,107.99 577.99- 110 6,486.00 6,202.04 283.96 96
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 43,434.00 20,442.38 22,991.62 47 46,535.00 21,837.21 24,697.79 47
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 32,565.00 18,523.19 14,041.81 57 32,320.00 17,080.50 15,239.50 53
    710512  Auto Expense 18,802.20 7,041.13 11,761.07 37 19,784.00 7,635.14 12,148.86 39
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 8,940.00 2,980.00 75
    710519  Cellular Phone 15,660.00 7,649.87 8,010.13 49 18,447.00 7,424.13 11,022.87 40
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 10,791.01 2,840.00 7,951.01 26 11,926.00 8,461.00 3,465.00 71
    710535  Credit Card Fees 11,925.00 5,224.15 6,700.85 44 11,455.00 6,218.53 5,236.47 54
    710546  Advertising 45,070.00 10,628.00 34,442.00 24 44,728.86 39,623.71 5,105.15 89
    710550  Small Differences         
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  36.23 36.23-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,500.00 2,979.21 22,520.79 12 3,000.00 2,297.83 702.17 77
    710585  Undesignated Budget 62,228.75  62,228.75  71,077.00  71,077.00  
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 109,115.00 47,169.56 61,945.44 43 113,439.00 65,467.72 47,971.28 58
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 246,790.79 125,111.93 121,678.86 51 249,583.98 119,723.48 129,860.50 48
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00  6,328.00  9,040.00 2,712.00 6,328.00 30
    710721  Outpatient 93,092.55 37,055.11 56,037.44 40 110,399.15 42,639.19 67,759.96 39
    710872  Food Purchases 10,975.50 344.34 10,631.16 3 11,675.00 2,848.53 8,826.47 24
    711010  Utilities     2,700.00  2,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 47,436.00 28,944.00 18,492.00 61 17,040.00 9,768.00 7,272.00 57
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 27,084.14 16,104.20 10,979.94 59 25,938.64 15,842.71 10,095.93 61
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 46,894.56 25,778.36 21,116.20 55 42,163.13 22,836.38 19,326.75 54
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  18,346.00  18,346.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 55,492.05 26,147.96 29,344.09 47 51,253.35 30,542.06 20,711.29 60
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 74,502.09 43,459.71 31,042.38 58 80,283.41 46,831.96 33,451.45 58
    711210  Travel 249,135.03 40,767.64 208,367.39 16 251,954.25 31,525.84 220,428.41 13
    711300  Cash Over Short  20.00 20.00-      
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 1,690,519.81 1,207,514.19 58 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 131,948.36 73,978.88 57,969.48 56 155,955.08 101,584.23 54,370.85 65
*   Services and Supplies 6,378,407.35 2,918,920.11 3,459,487.24 46 5,897,250.85 2,612,087.59 3,285,163.26 44

4 of 19



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE EXPENSE

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    781004  Equipment Capital 301,954.82 66,468.47 235,486.35 22 397,107.01 96,589.40 300,517.61 24
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 401,954.82 66,468.47 335,486.35 17 397,107.01 96,589.40 300,517.61 24
**  Expenses 21,165,304.01 10,869,379.37 10,295,924.64 51 21,142,496.28 10,744,350.34 10,398,145.94 51
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss      150.00- 150.00  
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80   150.00- 150.00  
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 4,301,945.52- 4,301,945.48- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,631.00- 5,749,260.00- 33
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 4,301,945.52- 4,301,945.48- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,631.00- 5,749,260.00- 33
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 4,302,598.32- 4,301,292.68- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,781.00- 5,749,110.00- 33
*** Total 2,435,636.44 2,191,098.23 244,538.21 90 2,997,615.77 3,105,880.13 108,264.36- 104

5 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,109,048.06- 513,379.45- 595,668.61- 46 1,109,658.25- 555,688.92- 553,969.33- 50
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 1,921.50- 15,302.71- 13,381.21 796     
*   Intergovernmental 1,110,969.56- 528,682.16- 582,287.40- 48 1,109,658.25- 555,688.92- 553,969.33- 50
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates         
    460512  Duplication Service Fees      5.00- 5.00  
*   Charges for Services      5.00- 5.00  
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 32,276.36- 55,987.00- 37 114,750.00- 58,763.00- 55,987.00- 51
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00-  5,125.00-      
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75-  62,228.75-   5,125.00- 5,125.00  
*   Miscellaneous 155,617.11- 32,276.36- 123,340.75- 21 114,750.00- 63,888.00- 50,862.00- 56
**  Revenue 1,266,586.67- 560,958.52- 705,628.15- 44 1,224,408.25- 619,581.92- 604,826.33- 51
    701110  Base Salaries 1,610,653.89 885,654.76 724,999.13 55 1,620,335.85 906,768.38 713,567.47 56
    701120  Part Time         
    701130  Pooled Positions 5,000.00 7,460.69 2,460.69- 149 5,000.00 9,853.54 4,853.54- 197
    701140  Holiday Work  33.39 33.39-   279.36 279.36-  
    701200  Incentive Longevity 33,265.00 15,355.04 17,909.96 46 30,755.00 15,107.67 15,647.33 49
    701300  Overtime 1,200.00 1,959.45 759.45- 163 1,200.00 1,313.59 113.59- 109
    701412  Salary Adjustment 3,642.80  3,642.80  10,554.54  10,554.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term      3,173.40 3,173.40-  
    701417  Comp Time  2,865.79 2,865.79-   18.92 18.92-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,885.60 1,885.60-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,653,761.69 915,214.72 738,546.97 55 1,667,845.39 936,514.86 731,330.53 56
    705110  Group Insurance 258,484.26 145,992.47 112,491.79 56 254,302.59 144,242.05 110,060.54 57
    705210  Retirement 421,998.67 226,159.30 195,839.37 54 384,397.43 218,968.01 165,429.42 57
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 22,856.87 12,523.06 10,333.81 55 22,639.74 12,948.34 9,691.40 57
    705320  Workmens Comp 11,691.26 6,819.96 4,871.30 58 11,339.00 6,614.44 4,724.56 58
    705330  Unemply Comp 2,683.24 2,683.24  100 2,755.00 2,755.00  100
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 717,714.30 394,178.03 323,536.27 55 675,433.76 385,527.84 289,905.92 57
    710100  Professional Services 36,743.00 16,760.00 19,983.00 46 45,500.00 36,183.98 9,316.02 80
    710105  Medical Services 150.00 105.00 45.00 70 350.00 26.00 324.00 7
    710108  MD Consultants         
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services  2,838.60 2,838.60-      
    710200  Service Contract 500.00 2.78 497.22 1 1,500.00  1,500.00  
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 200.00 147.50 52.50 74 400.00 512.20 112.20- 128
    710300  Operating Supplies 9,397.00 4,636.61 4,760.39 49 9,100.00 4,077.04 5,022.96 45
    710312  Special Dept Expense         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 3,500.00 3,823.04 323.04- 109 4,500.00 2,479.16 2,020.84 55
    710350  Office Supplies 10,963.50 4,178.28 6,785.22 38 9,993.00 4,449.46 5,543.54 45
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 1,000.00 1,666.97 666.97- 167 1,000.00 383.44 616.56 38
    710360  Postage 1,680.00 465.13 1,214.87 28 1,625.00 658.89 966.11 41
    710361  Express and Courier 100.00 15.00 85.00 15 100.00 40.84 59.16 41
    710500  Other Expense 1,600.00 535.15 1,064.85 33 1,600.00 882.65 717.35 55
    710502  Printing 4,480.00 404.69 4,075.31 9 4,780.00 365.71 4,414.29 8
    710503  Licenses & Permits 1,992.00 300.00 1,692.00 15 2,340.00 446.00 1,894.00 19
    710507  Network and Data Lines 630.00 318.81 311.19 51 630.00 309.67 320.33 49

6 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 9,580.00 4,121.81 5,458.19 43 10,080.00 4,646.99 5,433.01 46
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 2,800.00 1,611.50 1,188.50 58 5,300.00 1,578.50 3,721.50 30
    710512  Auto Expense 2,336.00 740.81 1,595.19 32 3,336.00 1,420.42 1,915.58 43
    710519  Cellular Phone 1,520.00 301.69 1,218.31 20 1,470.00 928.41 541.59 63
    710529  Dues 4,030.02 375.00 3,655.02 9 2,850.00 3,480.00 630.00- 122
    710546  Advertising 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost         
    710585  Undesignated Budget         
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 67,464.00 23,276.56 44,187.44 35 71,788.00 41,877.72 29,910.28 58
    710872  Food Purchases 2,725.50  2,725.50  2,725.00  2,725.00  
    711010  Utilities     1,000.00  1,000.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management         
    711114  Equip Srv O & M         
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge         
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 13,169.78 7,682.36 5,487.42 58 14,239.00 8,306.13 5,932.87 58
    711210  Travel 36,428.55 4,785.15 31,643.40 13 41,165.00 2,622.33 38,542.67 6
    711300  Cash Over Short  20.00 20.00-      
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 3,456.01  3,456.01  4,275.00 2,765.05 1,509.95 65
*   Services and Supplies 216,595.36 79,112.44 137,482.92 37 241,796.00 118,440.59 123,355.41 49
**  Expenses 2,588,071.35 1,388,505.19 1,199,566.16 54 2,585,075.15 1,440,483.29 1,144,591.86 56
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80      
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use  652.80- 652.80      
*** Total 1,321,484.68 826,893.87 494,590.81 63 1,360,666.90 820,901.37 539,765.53 60

7 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Air Quality Management 

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 296,450.25- 287,561.75- 51 448,037.00- 263,154.75- 184,882.25- 59
*   Licenses and Permits 584,012.00- 296,450.25- 287,561.75- 51 448,037.00- 263,154.75- 184,882.25- 59
    431100  Federal Grants 708,173.00- 199,751.84- 508,421.16- 28 912,531.00- 434,878.96- 477,652.04- 48
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 29,372.00- 42,089.85- 12,717.85 143 30,224.00- 6,509.04- 23,714.96- 22
    432100  State Grants 496,381.00- 182,000.00- 314,381.00- 37 182,000.00- 182,000.00-  100
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 479,374.67- 179,374.67 160 300,000.00- 162,040.00- 137,960.00- 54
*   Intergovernmental 1,533,926.00- 903,216.36- 630,709.64- 59 1,424,755.00- 785,428.00- 639,327.00- 55
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  206.00- 206.00      
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 17,730.00- 47,542.00- 27 40,000.00- 20,508.00- 19,492.00- 51
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 71,527.00- 42,407.00- 63 100,000.00- 55,731.00- 44,269.00- 56
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 48,011.00- 87,378.00- 35 84,000.00- 42,299.00- 41,701.00- 50
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 26,350.00- 31,538.00- 46 41,000.00- 27,149.00- 13,851.00- 66
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,113.00- 12,542.00- 14 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 84,540.00- 103,150.00- 45 95,000.00- 57,049.00- 37,951.00- 60
*   Charges for Services 574,828.00- 250,477.00- 324,351.00- 44 362,600.00- 205,574.00- 157,026.00- 57
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00      
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev      14.56- 14.56  
*   Miscellaneous  80.00- 80.00   14.56- 14.56  
**  Revenue 2,692,766.00- 1,450,223.61- 1,242,542.39- 54 2,235,392.00- 1,254,171.31- 981,220.69- 56
    701110  Base Salaries 1,275,216.35 689,889.62 585,326.73 54 1,345,462.49 723,246.79 622,215.70 54
    701130  Pooled Positions 27,646.29 3,940.00 23,706.29 14 93,151.68 4,878.88 88,272.80 5
    701140  Holiday Work 418.65  418.65  250.00 140.18 109.82 56
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 20,530.00 9,708.40 10,821.60 47 19,210.00 9,449.98 9,760.02 49
    701300  Overtime 3,400.00 1,444.56 1,955.44 42 10,045.11 2,357.03 7,688.08 23
    701408  Call Back         
    701412  Salary Adjustment         
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  14,339.59 14,339.59-   2,023.44 2,023.44-  
    701417  Comp Time  91.08 91.08-   918.38 918.38-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,327,211.29 719,413.25 607,798.04 54 1,468,119.28 743,014.68 725,104.60 51
    705110  Group Insurance 176,696.79 99,890.21 76,806.58 57 172,127.11 94,028.93 78,098.18 55
    705210  Retirement 332,632.51 178,094.30 154,538.21 54 324,109.95 173,867.49 150,242.46 54
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,136.32 9,955.04 8,181.28 55 19,385.69 10,375.26 9,010.43 54
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,275.26 4,827.27 3,447.99 58 7,585.40 4,424.84 3,160.56 58
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,899.24 1,899.28 0.04- 100 1,843.00 1,843.00  100
*   Employee Benefits 537,640.12 294,666.10 242,974.02 55 525,051.15 284,539.52 240,511.63 54
    710100  Professional Services 590,571.26 51,079.55 539,491.71 9 385,103.78 56,417.86 328,685.92 15
    710105  Medical Services 1,525.00 1,265.50 259.50 83 1,416.00 1,098.00 318.00 78
    710200  Service Contract 1,600.00 166.66 1,433.34 10 500.00 90.07 409.93 18
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 1,977.40 977.40- 198 10,741.91 2,739.10 8,002.81 25
    710210  Software Maintenance 3,386.00 3,530.00 144.00- 104 4,200.00 4,170.00 30.00 99
    710300  Operating Supplies 1,000.00 4,171.83 3,171.83- 417 11,079.55 14,254.80 3,175.25- 129
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 4,400.00 2,673.86 1,726.14 61 4,400.00 1,443.39 2,956.61 33
    710350  Office Supplies 3,500.00 1,750.00 1,750.00 50 4,000.00 1,980.51 2,019.49 50
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 100.00 288.03 188.03- 288 224.00 334.13 110.13- 149
    710360  Postage 3,000.00 1,939.82 1,060.18 65 2,900.00 1,620.81 1,279.19 56
    710361  Express and Courier 75.00 16.47 58.53 22 80.75 480.17 399.42- 595
    710500  Other Expense 100.00 5,025.02 4,925.02- 5,025 100.00 118.85 18.85- 119

8 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Air Quality Management 

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710502  Printing 800.00 764.54 35.46 96 800.00 838.39 38.39- 105
    710503  Licenses & Permits     135.00 232.39 97.39- 172
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  33.86 33.86-      
    710507  Network and Data Lines  3,360.00 3,360.00-   3,235.00 3,235.00-  
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,500.00 2,062.19 3,437.81 37 6,500.00 2,500.87 3,999.13 38
    710509  Seminars and Meetings  2,954.99 2,954.99-  3,005.00 2,599.00 406.00 86
    710512  Auto Expense 500.00 226.59 273.41 45 1,000.00 238.67 761.33 24
    710519  Cellular Phone 4,700.00 2,151.95 2,548.05 46 4,700.00 2,025.83 2,674.17 43
    710529  Dues 3,250.00 375.00 2,875.00 12 4,435.00 3,490.00 945.00 79
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,300.00 1,580.39 719.61 69 1,600.00 1,382.70 217.30 86
    710546  Advertising 1,650.00 1,893.00 243.00- 115 1,000.00 10,616.00 9,616.00- 1,062
    710550  Small Differences         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 100.00 2,979.21 2,879.21- 2,979 1,100.00 1,247.97 147.97- 113
    710585  Undesignated Budget 25,879.62  25,879.62      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space         
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 4,690.00 1,742.00 73 2,592.00 1,512.00 1,080.00 58
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 9,523.78 5,556.46 3,967.32 58 8,499.58 5,555.68 2,943.90 65
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 11,981.33 6,996.54 4,984.79 58 10,384.74 4,861.64 5,523.10 47
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 12,156.58 5,525.36 6,631.22 45 10,687.05 5,992.70 4,694.35 56
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,321.78 5,437.74 3,884.04 58 9,525.40 5,556.46 3,968.94 58
    711210  Travel 54,419.48 6,796.73 47,622.75 12 36,088.25 8,266.82 27,821.43 23
    711300  Cash Over Short         
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 31,800.35 7,983.26 23,817.09 25 37,117.08 45,740.33 8,623.25- 123
*   Services and Supplies 792,372.18 135,251.95 657,120.23 17 565,715.09 190,640.14 375,074.95 34
    781004  Equipment Capital 221,576.82 57,837.22 163,739.60 26 342,770.01 95,239.40 247,530.61 28
*   Capital Outlay 221,576.82 57,837.22 163,739.60 26 342,770.01 95,239.40 247,530.61 28
**  Expenses 2,878,800.41 1,207,168.52 1,671,631.89 42 2,901,655.53 1,313,433.74 1,588,221.79 45
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 186,034.41 243,055.09- 429,089.50 131- 666,263.53 59,262.43 607,001.10 9

9 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,890,000.86- 636,643.47- 1,253,357.39- 34 2,131,855.53- 971,992.67- 1,159,862.86- 46
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 92,460.00- 30,934.55- 61,525.45- 33 15,300.00- 7,026.14- 8,273.86- 46
    432100  State Grants 195,421.00- 10,268.20- 185,152.80- 5 24,857.00- 12,559.97- 12,297.03- 51
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 766.00- 1,439.00- 35     
*   Intergovernmental 2,180,086.86- 678,612.22- 1,501,474.64- 31 2,172,012.53- 991,578.78- 1,180,433.75- 46
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 29,432.07- 59,567.93- 33 89,000.00- 37,462.00- 51,538.00- 42
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 1,677.50- 6,522.50- 20 36,200.00- 44.46 36,244.46- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 9,692.00- 10,308.00- 48 30,000.00- 10,881.50- 19,118.50- 36
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 2,845.95- 1,254.05- 69 4,100.00- 2,942.93- 1,157.07- 72
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  45.00- 45.00      
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 18,879.51- 17,129.51 1,079 2,250.00-  2,250.00-  
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 3,510.00- 3,490.00- 50 7,000.00- 6,544.00- 456.00- 93
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 10,976.99- 10,023.01- 52 23,000.00- 13,026.59- 9,973.41- 57
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 19,788.65- 7,211.35- 73 44,000.00- 16,903.62- 27,096.38- 38
    460570  Education Revenue 2,400.00- 540.00- 1,860.00- 23 4,500.00- 644.00- 3,856.00- 14
*   Charges for Services 180,450.00- 97,387.67- 83,062.33- 54 240,050.00- 88,360.18- 151,689.82- 37
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 21,546.33- 16,003.67- 57 41,934.00- 22,880.40- 19,053.60- 55
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants         
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb      907.44- 907.44  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  15.00- 15.00   27.89- 27.89  
*   Miscellaneous 37,550.00- 21,561.33- 15,988.67- 57 41,934.00- 23,815.73- 18,118.27- 57
**  Revenue 2,398,086.86- 797,561.22- 1,600,525.64- 33 2,453,996.53- 1,103,754.69- 1,350,241.84- 45
    701110  Base Salaries 2,046,242.25 1,132,414.86 913,827.39 55 2,237,201.94 1,179,418.48 1,057,783.46 53
    701120  Part Time 541,787.10 233,495.61 308,291.49 43 505,752.32 296,612.90 209,139.42 59
    701130  Pooled Positions 233,706.33 167,591.70 66,114.63 72 175,944.41 119,581.95 56,362.46 68
    701140  Holiday Work  366.60 366.60-   357.81 357.81-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 47,486.00 27,263.48 20,222.52 57 48,012.00 30,122.30 17,889.70 63
    701300  Overtime 1,280.00 487.95 792.05 38 1,280.00 373.46 906.54 29
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701412  Salary Adjustment 34,459.06-  34,459.06-  75.00-  75.00-  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  30,367.66 30,367.66-   30,832.52 30,832.52-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  209.82 209.82-   7,718.60 7,718.60-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer      9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 2,836,042.62 1,592,097.68 1,243,944.94 56 2,968,115.67 1,674,741.85 1,293,373.82 56
    705110  Group Insurance 414,555.78 210,530.79 204,024.99 51 433,968.28 235,235.08 198,733.20 54
    705210  Retirement 651,180.47 356,105.45 295,075.02 55 658,011.56 357,423.69 300,587.87 54
    705230  Medicare April 1986 35,230.23 20,418.84 14,811.39 58 36,909.75 21,912.95 14,996.80 59
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,765.83 11,031.86 8,733.97 56 18,435.65 10,754.10 7,681.55 58
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,536.42 4,340.52 195.90 96 4,479.25 4,479.25  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,125,268.73 602,427.46 522,841.27 54 1,151,804.49 629,805.07 521,999.42 55

10 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710100  Professional Services 204,547.00 38,264.71 166,282.29 19 75,150.71 42,211.00 32,939.71 56
    710105  Medical Services 850.00 331.50 518.50 39 850.00 394.50 455.50 46
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 22,062.50 24,887.50 47 46,900.00 27,537.50 19,362.50 59
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 1,000.00 12,264.97 11,264.97- 1,226 1,000.00 5,775.34 4,775.34- 578
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 3,798.00 2,635.75 1,162.25 69 6,048.00 2,745.88 3,302.12 45
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 3,770.00 3,044.32 725.68 81 3,800.00 387.50 3,412.50 10
    710210  Software Maintenance         
    710300  Operating Supplies 75,502.00 25,378.41 50,123.59 34 76,719.00 44,226.54 32,492.46 58
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 14,797.00 6,006.36 8,790.64 41 13,847.00 5,918.22 7,928.78 43
    710350  Office Supplies 12,760.00 3,522.24 9,237.76 28 13,520.01 7,482.77 6,037.24 55
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,250.00 629.70 1,620.30 28 2,060.00 2,053.85 6.15 100
    710360  Postage 3,675.00 3,415.20 259.80 93 4,490.00 1,550.08 2,939.92 35
    710361  Express and Courier 335.00 47.88 287.12 14 245.00 83.40 161.60 34
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 15,595.96 7,541.96 8,054.00 48 30,602.51 15,813.09 14,789.42 52
    710502  Printing 13,700.00 4,075.62 9,624.38 30 9,675.00 5,448.07 4,226.93 56
    710503  Licenses & Permits 3,055.00 715.00 2,340.00 23 3,555.00 3,109.00 446.00 87
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible      152.58 152.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,080.00 1,042.27 1,037.73 50 2,560.00 1,460.64 1,099.36 57
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 13,354.00 6,867.20 6,486.80 51 13,975.00 6,962.75 7,012.25 50
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 5,650.00 3,209.70 2,440.30 57 4,750.00 3,147.00 1,603.00 66
    710512  Auto Expense 13,966.20 5,403.22 8,562.98 39 13,318.00 5,078.45 8,239.55 38
    710519  Cellular Phone 360.00 779.26 419.26- 216 540.00 184.23 355.77 34
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 800.00 1,250.00 450.00- 156 1,350.00 749.00 601.00 55
    710535  Credit Card Fees 3,215.00 1,028.18 2,186.82 32 3,245.00 1,279.62 1,965.38 39
    710546  Advertising 30,145.00 8,735.00 21,410.00 29 34,903.86 29,007.71 5,896.15 83
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  9.58 9.58-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 200.00  200.00  200.00  200.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     15,300.00  15,300.00  
    710703  Biologicals 243,370.00 124,639.73 118,730.27 51 246,163.19 119,723.48 126,439.71 49
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00  6,328.00  9,040.00 2,712.00 6,328.00 30
    710721  Outpatient 90,957.55 36,191.75 54,765.80 40 108,264.15 41,162.75 67,101.40 38
    710872  Food Purchases 6,450.00 344.34 6,105.66 5 6,550.00 2,677.69 3,872.31 41
    711010  Utilities     1,700.00  1,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 1,608.00 804.00 804.00 50 288.00 168.00 120.00 58
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 546.37 1,322.90 776.53- 242 550.44 380.40 170.04 69
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 711.35 486.09 225.26 68 711.35 430.18 281.17 60
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,303.49 12,427.10 8,876.39 58 23,150.65 13,504.47 9,646.18 58
    711210  Travel 33,713.00 12,219.86 21,493.14 36 28,184.00 5,690.91 22,493.09 20
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 5,950.00 18,255.66 12,305.66- 307 6,530.00 2,486.88 4,043.12 38
*   Services and Supplies 883,292.92 364,951.96 518,340.96 41 809,735.87 401,695.48 408,040.39 50
    781004  Equipment Capital 30,378.00 8,631.25 21,746.75 28 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8

11 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services

PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
*   Capital Outlay 30,378.00 8,631.25 21,746.75 28 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8
**  Expenses 4,874,982.27 2,568,108.35 2,306,873.92 53 4,946,656.03 2,707,592.40 2,239,063.63 55
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 2,476,895.41 1,770,547.13 706,348.28 71 2,492,659.50 1,603,837.71 888,821.79 64

12 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Environmental Health Service

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 35,201.00- 27,976.00- 56 51,500.00- 31,434.00- 20,066.00- 61
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 21,480.00- 53,210.00- 29 68,000.00- 14,732.00- 53,268.00- 22
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 7,461.00- 5,845.00- 56 10,500.00- 6,737.00- 3,763.00- 64
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 249,969.00- 242,212.00- 51 369,000.00- 228,473.00- 140,527.00- 62
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 19,474.00- 4,093.00- 83 20,000.00- 14,048.00- 5,952.00- 70
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 4,434.00- 1,234.00 139 2,500.00- 1,472.00- 1,028.00- 59
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 50,902.00- 15,620.00- 77 49,000.00- 30,280.00- 18,720.00- 62
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 50,412.00- 49,211.00- 51 79,000.00- 39,464.00- 39,536.00- 50
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 19,620.00- 15,606.00- 56 27,000.00- 16,186.00- 10,814.00- 60
*   Licenses and Permits 871,492.00- 458,953.00- 412,539.00- 53 676,500.00- 382,826.00- 293,674.00- 57
    431100  Federal Grants 362,198.04- 69,251.44- 292,946.60- 19 340,000.00- 142,355.59- 197,644.41- 42
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 27,470.00- 2,570.25- 24,899.75- 9     
    432100  State Grants 50,000.00- 25,250.00- 24,750.00- 51 75,000.00- 39,000.00- 36,000.00- 52
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 177,315.54- 291,232.46- 38 418,766.00- 241,500.45- 177,265.55- 58
*   Intergovernmental 908,216.04- 274,387.23- 633,828.81- 30 833,766.00- 422,856.04- 410,909.96- 51
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 20,572.00- 14,772.00- 58 113,400.00- 67,164.00- 46,236.00- 59
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  657.34- 657.34   232.78- 232.78  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  318.00 318.00-  2,700.00- 2,788.00- 88.00 103
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 11,635.00- 8,349.00- 58 13,900.00- 10,282.00- 3,618.00- 74
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 29,240.00- 21,467.00- 58 44,000.00- 17,967.00- 26,033.00- 41
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 3,173.00- 643.00- 83 2,500.00- 879.00- 1,621.00- 35
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 11,267.00- 7,498.00- 60 17,000.00- 15,417.00- 1,583.00- 91
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 31,670.00- 4,351.00- 88 30,000.00- 21,788.00- 8,212.00- 73
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel      322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start         
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 4,592.00- 5,968.00- 43 8,500.00- 4,517.00- 3,983.00- 53
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 11,286.00- 11,254.00- 50 17,300.00- 8,726.00- 8,574.00- 50
    460570  Education Revenue 500.00- 342.00- 158.00- 68 1,200.00- 206.00- 994.00- 17
*   Charges for Services 198,237.00- 124,116.34- 74,120.66- 63 250,500.00- 150,288.78- 100,211.22- 60
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485121  Jury Reimbursements      180.00- 180.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  2,500.00- 2,500.00      
*   Miscellaneous  2,500.00- 2,500.00   180.00- 180.00  
**  Revenue 1,977,945.04- 859,956.57- 1,117,988.47- 43 1,760,766.00- 956,150.82- 804,615.18- 54
    701110  Base Salaries 2,975,071.19 1,595,102.97 1,379,968.22 54 3,018,372.82 1,633,118.04 1,385,254.78 54
    701130  Pooled Positions 200,194.04 63,287.42 136,906.62 32 236,872.77 60,535.32 176,337.45 26
    701140  Holiday Work 2,400.00 2,660.05 260.05- 111 1,200.00 1,001.05 198.95 83
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 50,500.00 23,700.00 26,800.00 47 50,800.00 23,903.84 26,896.16 47
    701300  Overtime 59,123.00 25,976.08 33,146.92 44 36,600.00 17,509.07 19,090.93 48
    701406  Standby Pay         
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00  1,000.00  1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 199,268.34-  199,268.34-      
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term      24,260.54 24,260.54-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time      10,144.53 10,144.53-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 3,089,019.89 1,710,726.52 1,378,293.37 55 3,344,845.59 1,770,654.49 1,574,191.10 53

13 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Environmental Health Service

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    705110  Group Insurance 411,488.13 230,959.77 180,528.36 56 434,110.13 234,136.81 199,973.32 54
    705210  Retirement 776,699.80 415,160.93 361,538.87 53 728,879.94 393,408.83 335,471.11 54
    705230  Medicare April 1986 41,720.32 23,098.86 18,621.46 55 41,940.99 23,687.52 18,253.47 56
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,168.03 11,181.38 7,986.65 58 18,838.38 10,989.09 7,849.29 58
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,399.22 4,399.24 0.02- 100 4,577.10 4,577.10  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,253,475.50 684,800.18 568,675.32 55 1,228,346.54 666,799.35 561,547.19 54
    710100  Professional Services 217,318.30 18,088.75 199,229.55 8 325,401.67 6,306.31 319,095.36 2
    710105  Medical Services 6,548.00 1,870.00 4,678.00 29 6,548.00 220.00 6,328.00 3
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 35,000.03 5,056.42 29,943.61 14 65,000.00 5,295.18 59,704.82 8
    710200  Service Contract 95,300.00 38,572.64 56,727.36 40 95,300.00 32,052.85 63,247.15 34
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 5,500.00 494.54 5,005.46 9 4,600.00 229.00 4,371.00 5
    710210  Software Maintenance 250.00  250.00      
    710300  Operating Supplies 25,650.00 21,558.93 4,091.07 84 20,100.00 5,622.54 14,477.46 28
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 472.96 10,212.04 4 3,685.00  3,685.00  
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 343.91 1,656.09 17
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,070.33 229.67 100 231,950.00 232,131.87 181.87- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 1,900.00 733.50 1,166.50 39 2,250.00 713.26 1,536.74 32
    710350  Office Supplies 6,250.00 5,536.50 713.50 89 9,100.00 3,550.19 5,549.81 39
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,100.00 580.00 1,520.00 28 2,400.00 244.00 2,156.00 10
    710360  Postage 10,600.00 4,157.52 6,442.48 39 9,775.00 3,900.49 5,874.51 40
    710361  Express and Courier 175.00 5.68 169.32 3 175.00  175.00  
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710500  Other Expense 200.00 49.00 151.00 25 8,300.00 192.80 8,107.20 2
    710502  Printing 12,600.00 1,106.00 11,494.00 9 11,525.00 899.10 10,625.90 8
    710503  Licenses & Permits 2,690.00 2,225.00 465.00 83 2,690.00 2,080.00 610.00 77
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  300.00 300.00-   300.00 300.00-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,220.00 800.94 1,419.06 36 2,500.00 692.82 1,807.18 28
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 8,960.00 4,679.61 4,280.39 52 9,710.00 5,127.40 4,582.60 53
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 16,515.00 6,797.00 9,718.00 41 13,415.00 6,049.00 7,366.00 45
    710512  Auto Expense 50.00  50.00  100.00 29.69 70.31 30
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 8,940.00 2,980.00 75
    710519  Cellular Phone 6,600.00 2,497.72 4,102.28 38 6,600.00 2,808.10 3,791.90 43
    710529  Dues 1,565.99 445.00 1,120.99 28 1,661.00 382.00 1,279.00 23
    710535  Credit Card Fees 4,410.00 1,619.64 2,790.36 37 4,610.00 2,442.49 2,167.51 53
    710546  Advertising 10,500.00  10,500.00  6,050.00  6,050.00  
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  26.65 26.65-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,200.00  25,200.00  1,700.00 1,049.86 650.14 62
    710585  Undesignated Budget 36,349.13  36,349.13      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 41,651.00 23,893.00 17,758.00 57 41,651.00 23,590.00 18,061.00 57
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 32,964.00 17,822.00 15,142.00 54 11,856.00 6,744.00 5,112.00 57
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 17,182.42 10,327.24 6,855.18 60 17,061.11 10,066.53 6,994.58 59
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 32,731.24 17,297.62 15,433.62 53 30,573.49 16,875.78 13,697.71 55
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 42,624.12 20,136.51 22,487.61 47 39,776.37 24,104.62 15,671.75 61
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,592.09 12,595.38 8,996.71 58 23,656.38 13,799.59 9,856.79 58
    711210  Travel 76,000.00 14,253.56 61,746.44 19 81,150.00 8,427.49 72,722.51 10

14 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Environmental Health Service

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 89,242.00 41,161.58 48,080.42 46 62,544.00 1,393.12 61,150.88 2
*   Services and Supplies 1,161,784.32 513,773.97 648,010.35 44 1,184,175.02 426,603.99 757,571.03 36
    781004  Equipment Capital 50,000.00  50,000.00  25,000.00  25,000.00  
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 150,000.00  150,000.00  25,000.00  25,000.00  
**  Expenses 5,654,279.71 2,909,300.67 2,744,979.04 51 5,782,367.15 2,864,057.83 2,918,309.32 50
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss      150.00- 150.00  
*   Other Fin. Sources      150.00- 150.00  
    621001  Transfer From General         
*   Transfers In         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use      150.00- 150.00  
*** Total 3,676,334.67 2,049,344.10 1,626,990.57 56 4,021,601.15 1,907,757.01 2,113,844.14 47

15 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,248,437.09- 404,896.51- 843,540.58- 32 1,366,574.73- 532,495.48- 834,079.25- 39
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 91,954.91- 41,035.39- 50,919.52- 45 79,852.00- 29,806.99- 50,045.01- 37
*   Intergovernmental 1,340,392.00- 445,931.90- 894,460.10- 33 1,446,426.73- 562,302.47- 884,124.26- 39
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 261,051.00- 188,949.00- 58 400,000.00- 267,728.00- 132,272.00- 67
*   Charges for Services 450,000.00- 261,051.00- 188,949.00- 58 400,000.00- 267,728.00- 132,272.00- 67
**  Revenue 1,790,392.00- 706,982.90- 1,083,409.10- 39 1,846,426.73- 830,030.47- 1,016,396.26- 45
    701110  Base Salaries 1,277,745.42 661,494.51 616,250.91 52 1,220,854.27 644,960.20 575,894.07 53
    701120  Part Time 24,152.57 6,330.46 17,822.11 26 24,152.57 13,481.93 10,670.64 56
    701130  Pooled Positions 4,855.00 11,539.49 6,684.49- 238 11,330.00 18,738.02 7,408.02- 165
    701140  Holiday Work  117.94 117.94-   46.38 46.38-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 13,622.00 6,217.09 7,404.91 46 9,515.00 6,260.41 3,254.59 66
    701300  Overtime 1,700.00 3,292.49 1,592.49- 194 1,200.00 588.10 611.90 49
    701412  Salary Adjustment 18,982.00  18,982.00  42,507.00  42,507.00  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  9,410.57 9,410.57-   2,889.96 2,889.96-  
    701417  Comp Time  167.14 167.14-   2,185.99 2,185.99-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,341,056.99 698,569.69 642,487.30 52 1,309,558.84 689,150.99 620,407.85 53
    705110  Group Insurance 157,102.63 84,719.32 72,383.31 54 154,680.99 84,524.81 70,156.18 55
    705210  Retirement 331,395.85 170,856.97 160,538.88 52 314,726.17 154,594.73 160,131.44 49
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,701.48 9,743.65 8,957.83 52 19,086.47 9,414.49 9,671.98 49
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,091.65 4,720.10 3,371.55 58 7,988.98 4,511.57 3,477.41 56
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,857.10 1,857.12 0.02- 100 1,879.10 1,879.10  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment 13,398.00-  13,398.00-  10,656.00  10,656.00  
*   Employee Benefits 503,750.71 271,897.16 231,853.55 54 509,017.71 254,924.70 254,093.01 50
    710100  Professional Services 227,310.27 60,118.45 167,191.82 26 260,648.22 87,766.17 172,882.05 34
    710105  Medical Services 100.00  100.00  100.00 109.00 9.00- 109
    710108  MD Consultants  6,000.00 6,000.00-      
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 42,309.00 11,250.74 31,058.26 27 5,051.00 13,809.28 8,758.28- 273
    710200  Service Contract 2,395.00 3,158.17 763.17- 132 1,895.00 2,665.50 770.50- 141
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 500.00 286.95 213.05 57 1,008.00  1,008.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00  100 12,000.00 9,750.00 2,250.00 81
    710300  Operating Supplies 13,562.00 345.72- 13,907.72 3- 15,739.00 69.67 15,669.33 0
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 3,000.00 1,603.72 1,396.28 53 3,277.89 1,109.84 2,168.05 34
    710350  Office Supplies 9,600.00 2,893.26 6,706.74 30 7,558.00 2,876.03 4,681.97 38
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,469.00 907.90 1,561.10 37 2,729.00 223.90 2,505.10 8
    710360  Postage 2,900.00 1,149.50 1,750.50 40 3,164.00 1,297.66 1,866.34 41
    710361  Express and Courier     10.00 34.81 24.81- 348
    710500  Other Expense 8,186.00 120.00 8,066.00 1 5,371.00  5,371.00  
    710502  Printing 2,190.00 2,985.56 795.56- 136 4,719.00 1,306.88 3,412.12 28
    710503  Licenses & Permits 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment 227.00  227.00  3,378.00 1,046.00 2,332.00 31
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 600.00 585.97 14.03 98 796.00 503.91 292.09 63
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 6,040.00 2,711.57 3,328.43 45 6,270.00 2,599.20 3,670.80 41
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 7,600.00 3,950.00 3,650.00 52 5,850.00 3,707.00 2,143.00 63
    710512  Auto Expense 1,950.00 670.51 1,279.49 34 2,030.00 867.91 1,162.09 43
    710519  Cellular Phone 2,480.00 1,919.25 560.75 77 5,137.00 1,477.56 3,659.44 29
    710529  Dues 1,145.00 395.00 750.00 34 1,630.00 360.00 1,270.00 22

16 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 995.94 1,004.06 50 2,000.00 1,113.72 886.28 56
    710546  Advertising 2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     55,777.00  55,777.00  
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 3,420.79 472.20 2,948.59 14 3,420.79  3,420.79  
    710721  Outpatient 2,135.00 863.36 1,271.64 40 2,135.00 1,476.44 658.56 69
    710872  Food Purchases 1,800.00  1,800.00  2,400.00 170.84 2,229.16 7
    711010  Utilities         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 5,628.00 804.00 88 2,304.00 1,344.00 960.00 58
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 377.94 220.50 157.44 58 377.95 220.50 157.45 58
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 1,635.62 161.30 1,474.32 10 654.46 718.56 64.10- 110
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool     1,605.00  1,605.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge     78.58 14.56 64.02 19
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,114.95 5,317.13 3,797.82 58 9,711.98 5,665.31 4,046.67 58
    711210  Travel 48,574.00 2,712.34 45,861.66 6 65,367.00 6,518.29 58,848.71 10
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 1,500.00 6,578.38 5,078.38- 439 45,489.00 49,198.85 3,709.85- 108
*   Services and Supplies 426,328.57 135,309.98 291,018.59 32 542,456.87 198,021.39 344,435.48 37
    781004  Equipment Capital     12,337.00  12,337.00  
*   Capital Outlay     12,337.00  12,337.00  
**  Expenses 2,271,136.27 1,105,776.83 1,165,359.44 49 2,373,370.42 1,142,097.08 1,231,273.34 48
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 480,744.27 398,793.93 81,950.34 83 526,943.69 312,066.61 214,877.08 59

17 of 19



Washoe County Health District 
Undesignated 
PD 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 1,690,519.81 1,207,514.19 58 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
**  Expenses 2,898,034.00 1,690,519.81 1,207,514.19 58 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 4,301,945.52- 4,301,945.48- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,631.00- 5,749,260.00- 33
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 4,301,945.52- 4,301,945.48- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,631.00- 5,749,260.00- 33
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 4,301,945.52- 4,301,945.48- 50 8,623,891.00- 2,874,631.00- 5,749,260.00- 33
*** Total 5,705,857.00- 2,611,425.71- 3,094,431.29- 46 6,070,519.00- 1,597,945.00- 4,472,574.00- 26

18 of 19



Washoe County Health District
Miscellaneous 
Pd 1-7, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  4.94 4.94-   25.06 25.06-  
*** Total  4.94 4.94-   25.06 25.06-  

19 of 19



DBOH AGENDA ITEM 13.







P u b l i c  H e a l t h  F o u n d a t i o n

1 3 0 0  L  S t r e e t ,  N W
S u i t e  8 0 0

W a s h i n g t o n ,  D C  2 0 0 0 5

2 0 2 - 2 1 8 - 4 4 0 0

w w w . p h f . o r g  

Healthy Practices. Healthy People. Healthy Places. 

PHF Assessment Team 

Washoe County
Public Health:
A Fundamental Review

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 14.



 
 

 

 

 

Fundamental Review Recommendations     1 
 
Accreditation Readiness Review       19 

 
Foundational Capabilities Assessment      25 

 
Legal Review          30  

 

Summary DBOH Presentation       34 

 
Washoe County Health District PHUND$ Analysis    40 

 
WCHD PHAB Accreditation Self-Assessment     49 

 Domain 1- Domain 12 
 
 

PHF Assessment Team 

Leslie M. Beitsch, MD, JD 
Chair, Dept. of Behavioral Sciences and Social Medicine 

Center for Medicine and Public Health 

Florida State University College of Medicine 

 
Matthew Stefanak, MPH 

Retired Commissioner of Health – Mahoning County, Ohio 

Center for Public Policy and Health, College of Public Health, Kent State University 

 
Carol M. Moehrle, BSN, RN 

District Director, Public Health –Idaho North Central District, Lewiston, Idah 

 Table of Contents 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Washoe County Health District 

2013 Fundamental Review 

Recommendations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Introduction 

The Washoe County Health District (WCHD) has contracted with the Public Health Foundation 

(PHF) to conduct a fundamental review to include the following: 

 Review and assess health department structure, legal review, operations, oversight, 

governance, finances, and performance 

 The assessment will focus on efficiency, effectiveness, and opportunities for health 

department continuous improvement   

In order to develop a review that is future oriented, anticipating health department activities that 

are consistent with evolving standards and practices, as well as the 10 Essential Public Health 

Services, PHF utilized a framework comprised of the Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) 

domains, standards, and measures and foundational capabilities from the “Minimum Package of 

Public Health Services” developed by the State of Ohio as the benchmarks for purposes of 

comparison. It also includes a detailed financial analysis informed by these same frameworks 

with financial tools currently utilized by the National Association of County and City Health 

Officials (NACCHO). The PHAB accreditation readiness assessment, foundational capabilities 

assessment and financial analysis documents are found in the Appendix.  In addition, the 

fundamental review is focused on developing recommendations that control costs while 

producing maximal impact (efficiency and effectiveness).  This approach, utilizing the national 

tools described provides a uniquely public health lens through which to assess the WCHD, and 

position the health department for the next decade.   

PHF made two on-site visits; interviewed leadership, management, partners, stakeholders, 

governance officials, and customers; and reviewed relevant documents to accomplish the 

assigned work.  At the request of the PHF team, staff performed a number of tasks: 

 A PHAB self-assessment scanning across all divisions and programs  

 Complete financial reporting of data across multiple years in accordance with NACCHO 

Public Health Uniform Data System (PHUND$) standards 

 A compendium of all measures currently in use to assess ongoing performance  

 Provision of all relevant documents upon request 

A final in person report will be presented in February 2014 along with this written summary. 

Findings:   

Below we make recommendations from our PHF team addressing the scope of work detailed 

above.  We wish to acknowledge the professionalism, unwavering support, and cooperation of 

the WCHD Health Officer and staff.  Access to all requested information was provided with 

alacrity and enthusiasm, under the guiding philosophy that this examination was a critical step 

for organizational strengthening, establishing a baseline from which to guide WCHD future 



3 

 

trajectory.  Even as we offer multiple suggestions, we underscore that this is an organization with 

vast potential.  Various recommendations presented in the following paragraphs are already 

underway, demonstrating the commitment to the intent of the fundamental review. 

WCHD Strengths:   

 Committed, passionate, knowledgeable staff in each division, with expertise and 

experience in every relevant public health dimension of practice 

 Subject matter experts in the community offer the promise of fruitful future 

collaborations that improve health through synergy among the entire public health system   

 Strong community and government partnerships hold promise for greater community 

engagement, a requisite foundation for community health assessment and community 

health improvement planning—the directions public health practice is heading nationally 

 Learning environment for staff and students with strong commitments to professional 

development and university relationships, benefitting WCHD, the university, and most 

importantly the community   

Recommendations  

First 90-120 Days 

1. Place the WIC program organizationally where it is most closely aligned with other 

similar programmatic functions. 

Located presently within the Division of Administrative Health Services, WIC operates 

efficiently and effectively.  However, it may not be well located organizationally to maximize 

and leverage its activities with clinical programs, more specifically maternal and child health 

(MCH).  Historically there are close connections between WIC and the MCH programs, and 

most state and local health departments place WIC within operational areas that include MCH, 

immunizations, and nutrition education.  Connecting WIC to MCH and other clinical programs 

produces increased efficiencies and enhances customer service.  Location of WIC within 

Community and Clinical Health Services offers the most synergy. 

Additionally, if chronic disease programs are expanded, given they are the greatest burden of 

disease, nutritionists supported by a mixture of WIC and other funds can provide nutrition 

education and counseling.  Such services may be eligible for Medicaid reimbursement, or as 

services reimbursed by health plans. 

Quality improvement (QI) teams are currently being formed at WCHD.  A quality improvement 

team at WCHD could accomplish this service integration within this 90-120 day time period 

using business process analysis and redesign methods, and by availing itself of Washoe County’s 



4 

 

in-house performance management consultant.   Additionally, this may provide a quick QI 

“win,” demonstrating that QI and planning can improve performance and services at WCHD.   

2. Develop Washoe County District Board of Health (DBOH) orientation manual and 

program 

Currently no formal process is in place to orient new board members of the Washoe County 

District Board of Health to ensure they have a strong foundation in public health, the operations 

and programs of the WCHD, and their legal roles and responsibilities.  With a new board 

member currently joining the Board, timing is optimal to assure he receives a full orientation.  

Until a board manual and formal process can be developed, arrangements to meet with 

leadership and management of all divisions can jumpstart his acclimation.  

Annual training for all DBOH members is also recommended.  In combination with the 

orientation program, this will ground the board with a common knowledge base, and a set of 

shared expectations around their roles and responsibilities as board members. 

3. Strengthen customer focus within regulatory programs, exploring the potential for User 

Groups, or similar bodies (Advisory Groups), to share their viewpoints with regulatory 

officials, while simultaneously maintaining a laser-like focus on maintaining and 

improving health as the purpose of regulatory efforts.   

Such a model for a structured User Group exists in Idaho by geographic health district, and can 

serve as reference.  The user groups also advise the DBOH and have at least one DBOH member 

who is often a county commissioner sitting on each group.  There is local precedent in Washoe in 

the form of the Community Development Services Forum.  Such an approach would facilitate an 

ongoing understanding of Environmental Health and Air Quality Management customer and 

industry group needs and expectations.  Additionally, ongoing feedback enables bilateral 

communication and education, decreasing misunderstanding and dissatisfaction.  Fee schedules 

and related issues should first be addressed via comment from advisory groups before being 

taken up by the DBOH.   Some states, like Ohio, have utilized more formal methods, including 

statutory local bodies with regulated industry representatives.  One potential downside of the 

more structured approach may be diluted authority of local boards of health.   

Just as in other business sectors, regulatory activities and other public health services can have 

mission drift.  This is less likely in the current economic downturn, but user groups and advisory 

bodies can help maintain the proper focus of public health programs.  Regulatory programs 

should fulfill the obligations agreed upon with grantors, but should also have a strong 

relationship with a public health purpose and value.  Duplication with other branches of 

government should receive attention for ways to streamline and reduce adverse effects for the 

public and industry, should such duplication exist.   



5 

 

Customer satisfaction with services should be assessed regularly through the use of surveys, both 

written and web-based.  A mechanism should be operationalized that addresses concerns that are 

recurring.    

4. Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective 

Clinic services appear to be both over utilized and under-utilized, in part due to accessible hours 

of operation and limited appointment availability.  For example immunizations are only available 

three days weekly.  Patients seeking immediate clinic access may be turned away because of a 

lack of available appointments.  Alternative appointment systems like “open access” combine 

same day availability with scheduled future appointments to maximize patient choice while 

increasing throughput.  This allows for more efficient use of the available staff while also 

meeting community needs.  After hours options should be considered as well, in accordance with 

feedback from focus groups or other sources (advisory bodies, customer satisfaction surveys) for 

working families with transportation limitations.   Expanding WCHD-based immunization 

clinics from three to five days a week and increasing the number of school-located immunization 

clinics may streamline service delivery, enhance revenues, and meet community needs more 

fully.   

5. Update fee schedules and billing processes regularly for all clinical and environmental 

health services provided. 

Financial data provided by WCHD indicate that the agency has conducted cost analyses on only 

one of 22 agency programs since fiscal year 2008.  A regular and periodic process (at least every 

3-5 years) should be implemented to review the fee structure for all public health services 

provided by the WCHD.  One option for consideration is an annual COLA increase that occurs 

automatically, reflecting anticipated increases in salaries and benefits.  Other costs could be 

reflected in fee increases sought in conjunction with the periodic review that occurs every 3-5 

years.  The fee schedule should reflect the full cost of service provision, including a proportional 

share of infrastructure support. This also implies the need to develop a complete understanding 

of the cost structure for each service delivered.  Fee increases must be accompanied by a 

relentless emphasis on process improvement, maximizing efficiencies, so that the public 

perceives WCHD services as high quality and free of waste.   

Revenue from clinical services (Medicaid, Medicare, patient fees, other third-party payers) has 

declined significantly from $421,506 in 2010 to $185,230 in fiscal year 2013, placing WCHD  

well below the $11.40 per capita U.S. local health departments generated on average for clinical 

services in 2012 (Figure 1).  WCHD staff attributes this decline to their current inability to bill 

third-party payers. Clinical services should be billed, which may necessitate exploration of 

billing modules compatible with current clinic and regulatory program software.  WCHD’s 

current clinical software ‘Insight’ offers a billing service that may be compatible with existing 

programs.  This system is currently in use at many local health departments around the country.  



6 

 

Outsourcing billing is another option for exploration.  In order to generate revenue for services 

provided, relationships with Medicaid and other insurers should be expanded.   

WCHD has an excessively high rate of patient services accounts with receivable write-off 

($155,715 in fiscal year 2013, a 41% increase from the previous year); a more robust billing 

capacity to recover these charges from patients and third party payers should reduce this figure 

and reverse the decline in clinical services revenue that contributed to WCHD’s $1,104,577 

operating deficit in 2013.  A sliding fee scale for uninsured patients will mean no one is turned 

away because of inability to pay.  In anticipation of changes due to the ACA, a strong, consistent 

billing process will enhance the options for future clinical service inclusion for the health district. 

Figure 1 

 

In FY 2013 the perinatal home visitation program with an annual budget of $430,891 provided 

home visits to pregnant women and infants but was expected to generate only $58,000 in 

revenue.  These home visitation and other services may be billable under expanded Medicaid 

options, such as optional targeted case management.  From our conversations with state health 

department officials, cost based reimbursement (CBR) is another model they are willing to 

explore.  If Medicaid options for revenue expansion do not become available, or if Washoe 

County Code precludes the Health District from receiving CBR or relevant value system 

reimbursements, then it is recommended that deliberate discussions take place about priority 

services and the ability of programs to be self-supporting (or at least partially so).   

6. Explore and vet a tiered level of services for environmental health regulatory programs 

and inspections. 

Some Environmental Health regulatory programs and inspections could offer a tiered level of 

service, particularly if the customer has a time sensitive request, or the need for expedited 

$0.00  
 $11.40  

 $0.48  

 $238.87  

$0.00

$50.00

$100.00

$150.00

$200.00

$250.00

$300.00

minimum average Washoe maximum

Clinical services revenue per capita, 
local health departments, 2012 

Source: 2013 NACCHO Profile of LHDs 
N = 1430 locally governed LHDs 



7 

 

review.  Such services should be supported through a higher fee structure than usual levels of 

service.  This “concierge” model should be vetted with user groups prior to implementation.   

7. Participate in the business process analysis currently underway across all building 

permitting in the county.   

The process mapping project currently underway across all governmental jurisdictions in 

Washoe County holds immense promise for improving customer service and increasing 

efficiency. If the health department also participates it holds the potential to provide a virtual 

“one stop shopping” experience for developers and contractors.  The software selected could also 

be supported by all parties, enabling economies of scale and possibly expanded range of services.  

Local contractors voiced their enthusiasm for the process, and supported health district 

involvement.  Moreover, engagement by WCHD is consistent with the recommendations to 

examine current processes to hear the voices of the customer and for enhanced efficiency.   

This may also be the opportunity to examine and demonstrate the “value added” by each 

permitting requirement of the health department.  The value test relates to cost, but most 

importantly should be determined by health protection and prevention impact. 

8. Strengthen organizational effectiveness by developing infrastructure to support the 

District Health Officer 

Certain agency-wide functions can be strategically placed within the office of the District Health 

Officer to maximize their effectiveness across the entire health district, even as they also bolster 

the capacity of the District Health Officer to provide more visible public health leadership.  

Specific examples include the public information officer so that communications reflect the 

priorities of the organization, the newly formed quality improvement coordinator position, 

demonstrating the critical nature of an agency-wide commitment to quality, and an additional 

position responsible for coordinating community partnerships/collaboration.  If the WCHD 

moves forward with conducting a community health assessment, these positions can strengthen 

the needed infrastructure within the office of the District Health Officer to support genuine 

community engagement. 

First Year 

1. Implement time coding for employee work time in order to generate an accurate 

accounting of how employee time/costs are allocated. 

Closely related to expanded billing capacity is the need for a better understanding of cost 

structures within the health department.  Time coding in defined increments can better account 

for how staff time is utilized.  Currently environmental health programs are largely supported 

through general funds.  In many jurisdictions nationally such services are expected to be fully fee 

supported.   



8 

 

As noted previously, the full cost of the programs, including all regulatory activities should be 

included (such as re-inspections, surveillance, responses to nuisance complaints).  A pro rata 

share of WCHD overhead/indirect costs should also be in the formula.  In fact, the South Nevada 

Health District is able to recover the full cost of its regulatory programs when setting its fees.   

Unfortunately the current situation is somewhat of a Catch-22.  As a result of the recession fewer 

staff must provide more services.  As the economy recovers the backlog grows, and customers 

become more impatient.  Fee supported programs can expand or contract as the service is 

needed, and do not siphon funding from other equally worthy public health programs.   

2. Perform cost analyses of all programs  

In conjunction with other recommendations to develop updated fee schedules and time coding, 

WCHD should set goals for and track the completion of cost analyses for each of the agency’s 22 

programs on a periodic basis (every 3-5 years) in order to determine the true cost of its services 

and set appropriate fees and charges for its revenue-generating programs.  WCHD should utilize 

a uniform cost methodology of its own devising or analytical tools from other public health 

agencies that conduct similar analyses.  PHF has provided WCHD a sample analytic tool 

designed for use with environmental health programs. WCHD should likewise track other related 

financial performance management ratios, including the number of programs with expenditures 

that exceed dedicated or self-generated revenues.  In fiscal year 2013, 82% of WCHD programs 

had expenditures that exceeded dedicated and self-generated revenues, a proportion that has not 

changed significantly since 2010. Resource commitment through budgeting should reflect 

leadership and community priorities in addition to program performance (See First Year 

Recommendation 7).  Resource commitment should ultimately reflect priorities in WCHD’s 

strategic plan and in the Community Health Improvement Plan, demonstrating organizational 

alignment.    

3. Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies.   

An inadequate number of fiscal staff for accounting and billing may be undermining efforts to 

generate needed revenue related to reimbursable services (if this is to be emphasized going 

forward).  A review to determine value of services provided but unbilled could be followed by a 

pilot to examine cost-benefit if additional fiscal staff are deployed.  A balance of fiscal staff 

placed within the divisions and central administration may be required to address the full need.  

However, we recommend that all billing be a centralized fiscal function rather than having each 

division in charge of their own billing.  We are not able to recommend a specific level of fiscal 

staffing to assure WCHD’s billing and accounting functions because the scope of responsibility 

for fiscal offices varies among local health departments.  Moreover, we do note that existing staff 

perform some fiscal activity such as fee collection in WCHD divisions other than Administrative 

Health Services.  However the 3 FTE fiscal staff in Administrative Health Services place WCHD 

below the average number of staff with fiscal responsibilities (3.79) reported by local health 



9 

 

departments in NACCHO’s PHUND$ system for 2012 (Table 1).   The future impact of billing 

automation via Insight Revenue or other products may also influence future fiscal staffing 

decisions.   

 

Table 1 

PHUND$ 

measure 

Washoe Mean 

Benchmark 

Median 

Benchmark 

Value 

25th 

Percentile 

75th 

Percentile 

Agency 

Count 

Value 

# of Staff with 

Fiscal 

Responsibilities 

3 3.79 3 2 4.5 39 

 

As a result of the staff reductions of the past several years, it is also evident that professional 

staff is performing many routine clerical functions.  This may reflect shifts in technology that 

have limited impact on service delivery.  However, if performing clerical functions diminishes 

time providing client services (on site or in the field), there may well be adverse consequences 

related to efficiencies, revenue generations, and customer satisfaction.  Pilot studies in this area 

may also inform future investments. Based on the data collected by the WCHD staff, WCHD 

was below average for administrative/clerical staff per capita among local health departments in 

2012 (Figure 2).   

Figure 2 

 

1.3 

62.3 

15.8 

5.5 

14.7 

36.3 

6.3 
13.2 8.9 

1862.6 

165.0 
103.1 

399.9 

1.0

10.0

100.0

1000.0

10000.0

FTEs per capita
(x100,000)

RNs per capita
(x100,000)

EH per capita
(x100,000)

admin/clerical
per capita
(x100,000)

Workforce to Population Ratios  
Local Health Departments, 2013 

minimum

average

Washoe

maximum

Source: 2013 NACCHO Profile of LHDs 
N = 1430 

Note: Environmental Health (EH) 
includes AQM FTEs 



10 

 

4. Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address the tensions regarding the 

current overhead/indirect costs.  Immediate attention should focus on the upcoming fiscal 

year, but plans should be phased in to ensure fairness. 

After three years of declining but positive total margins, WCHD ended fiscal year 2013 with a 

$1,104,577 operating deficit and its year-end general fund balance of $2,811,464 declined more 

than 28% from the previous year (Figure 3).  In fiscal year 2013, WCHD received an additional 

$2,000,000 general revenue appropriation from Washoe County to defray WCHD’s indirect cost 

(COWCAP) allocation of $2,553,372 from the County. The unreimbursed portion of $553,372 

was equal to one-half of WCHD’s operating deficit for that year, and is projected to be even 

greater during the current fiscal year.  A careful accounting and updated service agreements are 

the industry standard before billing occurs.  Accordingly, all services incorporated under 

COWCAP should be thoroughly defined, and relative responsibilities delineated.  For example, 

the last IT agreement was signed in 2000.  There is an urgent need to assure a clear 

understanding regarding who provides what service to whom, correcting the vague language in 

the existing outdated or nonexistent service agreements.  Further, unnecessary duplication and 

gaps should be avoided under a well-crafted contract, as well as penalties if commitments and 

timelines are not met.   

Figure 3 

 

5. Align programs and services with public demand for services to reflect burden of disease 

and effective public health interventions  

In many respects WCHD provides traditional programs and services found in many local health 

departments across the nation.  There are also unique programs reflecting the specific health 

challenges facing the jurisdiction.  As new leadership shapes the WCHD of the future, it is an 

 $(1,500,000)

 $(1,000,000)

 $(500,000)

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

2010 2011 2012 2013

WCHD Operating Surplus/Deficit 



11 

 

opportune moment to review major programs for impact, efficiency, and contribution to the 

reduction of morbidity and mortality in Washoe County.  Additionally, gaps in current service 

delivery may be identified that represent strategic public health investments to improve health 

within the community.  The following recommendations are meant to spur critical examination 

of health department roles and services, and are not intended to be an all-inclusive inventory.   

Perinatal home visitation programs that are evidence based have been demonstrated to improve 

infant health outcomes and reduce health care costs.  The home visitation program at WCHD 

does not conform with these proven models (although it has some similar features), and serves a 

relatively small, but needy segment of this vulnerable population at a high cost per client served.  

Consideration should be given to revamping the program to increase its overall efficiency, ability 

to generate revenue, and fidelity to a well evaluated effective model.  If these changes cannot be 

accomplished, consideration should be given to discontinuing the program and investing in other 

impactful areas. 

Vector control is also a traditional public health program that has a soft statutory basis under the 

Nevada Revised Statutes.  Program quality and supervision are not questioned.  However, as 

currently configured, it is a costly program, and its value should be compared to its community 

impact and overall burden of vector borne disease. The National Association of County and City 

Health Officials has provided recommendations for creating and sustaining local mosquito 

control programs that are scalable to the level of resources available to a local health department 

and to the level of arboviral disease risk that is present in a community. 

Given the epidemiologic shift from acute diseases to chronic health conditions, consideration 

might be given to chronic disease prevention and injury programs (in light of violence in schools 

and health care settings since this fundamental assessment was initiated).  These are high need 

areas associated with substantial burden of disease within Washoe County.  At present the 

chronic disease program is modest in scope and has one FTE, even as chronic disease represents 

approximately 75% of all health care costs.  There is no injury control program, although injury 

prevention as a discipline is firmly grounded in an ever growing evidence base supporting its 

interventions. 

Recommendations appear elsewhere in this report suggesting the expansion of on-site 

immunization services from its present three days to five days weekly.  Immunization clinics 

could also be offered at various alternative locations, including schools.  Expanded options for 

billing these services are also highlighted.  Immunizations represent a service, but not the only 

one, which has a high public demand and could be largely self-supporting.    

6. Conduct a Community Health Assessment (CHA) in concert with partner organizations 

for Washoe County Health District and the constituent communities. 

A well-developed CHA provides an opportunity and forum for community partner input and 

collaboration.  Normally a CHA would be done before a strategic plan, but internal operations of 



12 

 

WCHD may demand urgent focus on a strategic plan.  However, if resources permit, parallel 

processes can be undertaken since there is mutual reinforcement between them.  Renown Health 

may be in a position to provide the necessary support to accelerate the CHA in partnership with 

WCHD.   

Recent changes in IRS regulations require non-profit hospitals to conduct community health 

needs assessments (CHNA) every three years in conjunction with health improvement planning.  

The context is that non-profit hospitals are being tasked to demonstrate the community benefit 

they bestow in exchange for the considerable tax forgiveness received.  Essentially the CHNA 

and the CHA seek to accomplish the same endpoint: to catalogue fully the health portrait of the 

community, describing its assets as well as gaps.  This is typically done by analyzing the wealth 

of data available to health districts and by surveying community residents to gather their 

perspectives.  It should utilize aggregated health data from individuals, but not exclusively.  The 

availability of parks, sidewalks, and walking trails play a substantial part in the overall health of 

the community.    

In order to provide a comprehensive CHA, we recommend that it be done in close collaboration 

with Renown Health, benefitting from the expertise and resources both organizations can offer.   

7. Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health 

Selecting organizational standards and measurements is intrinsic to the development of a 

Performance Management System (PMS).  However, in the event a complete PMS is not 

implemented, standards and measures should still be chosen.  This enables WCHD to compare 

itself with other similar organizations within Nevada and nationally (benchmarking).  Moreover, 

it facilitates fact-based decision-making, and enables the health district to focus upon the “vital 

few”—those indicators that matter the most to achieve desired health outcomes for the 

community.   

We strongly urge the WCHD to utilize existing PHAB standards, which are now the accepted 

consensus national public health standards as the foundational roadmap for the District planning 

process. 

Logically some indicators could simply be PHAB measures, while others should reflect the 

public health programs, services, and activities of WCHD.  In fact, many metrics already exist, 

and have been provided by the divisions.  Important measures to consider enterprise-wide 

include measures/deliverables/expectations in grants and contracts from state, federal, and local 

partners.  This means WCHD is not starting de novo, but must embark on a process that 

generates consistency.  Additionally, some measures should be selected that contribute to a fuller 

understanding of organizational capacity, process, and outcomes achievement.   

8. Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues with 

engagement of key partners and stakeholders. 



13 

 

Now that the REMSA structure and oversight is on track for resolution, it can serve as a vehicle 

for regaining trust among critical governmental partners with a stake in public health success.  

Openness and willingness to engage in a dialogue, even when there are substantial differences 

among the parties, can lead to a better understanding of respective positions. 

Evidently there has been limited understanding of REMSA management and oversight.  There 

also appear to be frustrations related to allowing the issue to fester for so long.  Facilitating 

greater transparency by all participants and coming to the table for discussions before 

relationships are strained unnecessarily are important takeaways from this process.  Our 

understanding is that needed additional resources will be provided to the health district to support 

REMSA operational oversight as part of the resolution.  The agreement may also be a point of 

departure to place other items, perhaps long-neglected ones, on the negotiating table for 

thoughtful resolution.  This could serve to break the cycle of distrust, strained relationships, and 

sometimes punitive actions that permeate the atmosphere among partners that require mutual 

respect and trust in order to function together optimally. 

9. Maintain current levels of local and state financial support to WCHD  

WCHD fell slightly below the national average of $53.41 total revenue per capita for public 

health services in 2012 (Table 2).  About 40% of this support comes from local contributions.  

This local support is critical since the State of Nevada provides very little state funding for public 

health services.  In fiscal year 2011-2012, Nevada ranked 51
st
 among states and territories in 

state public health funding at $3.28 per capita (Source: Key Health Data about Nevada. Trust for 

America’s Health.   Given that the economic growth cycles and high volume tourism industries 

in the greater Reno area place greater demands upon public health systems and programs, current 

resources are strained, especially considering that WCHD staffing has  declined by 31.55 FTE 

employees since 2010 (17%).  This places it well below the average of 62.3 FTE employees per 

100,000 population in locally governed LHDs in 2012.  In fact, Washoe County has only 36.3 

FTE employees per 100,000 population (Figure 2).  Moreover, during the current recession there 

is greater demand for public health services, especially for “safety-net” clinical services, further 

straining existing capacity, and reductions in service levels to customers. 

Although certain functions such as environmental health exceed the national average in terms of 

FTEs (see Figure 2), other factors must also be considered.  For example Air Quality 

Management, with 18 staff (4.0 FTE per 100,000 population) is a program more typically found 

at the state level rather than in a local health department, but unique circumstances and laws 

dictate its inclusion within WCHD.  Similarly, because Reno is so heavily dependent upon 

tourism and related industries there is greater demand for other environmental health services not 

routinely offered in local health departments.  Combined, these factors contribute to a higher 

than expected FTE count under environmental health programs, even as WCHD overall is 

modestly staffed when compared with national norms collected during the recovery from the 

recent recession.  Nonetheless, further exploration of environmental health staffing levels is 

http://healthyamericans.org/states/?stateid=NV#section=3,year=2013,code=undefined
http://healthyamericans.org/states/?stateid=NV#section=3,year=2013,code=undefined


14 

 

recommended, but should be considered in the context of other recommendations previously, in 

which time coding, full fee support, and process improvement are emphasized. 

 

Table 2 

Selected Financial and Workforce Ratios, Locally Governed Health Departments 
2013 NACCHO Profile of LHDs (n = 1430) 

 

 

 

Collection of indirect (COWCAP) costs ($2,553,372 in 2013, or 14% of WCHD’s total 

expenditures) by Washoe County is eroding the current funding base and contributed to 

WCHD’s operating deficit in 2013.  This is occurring in the absence of a full and open 

consensual process to determine what services should be provided, the quality of existing 

services, and their adequacy given community needs.  If indirect costs continue to be collected, 

fair service agreements with regular reviews should be in place as recommended above.  Rather 

than charging for indirect costs, another option is for them to be an in-kind contribution from 

Washoe County.  If indirect costs continue to be collected, we recommend recovery over a multi-

year period so more of the costs could be supported from other payment sources, lessening 

immediate adverse service impacts.   

Recommendations from the 2011 Washoe County fundamental review included the use of tools 

like patient flow analysis to enhance efficiencies and improve throughput by improving clinic 

flow.  In 2013 the immunization clinics were able to increase their client flow from 1.6 to 2.0 

clients per hour. Similar methods should be applied to other programs within WCHD, stretching 

current resources further.  Customer feedback (another recommendation above) can serve as a 

guide during this process.   

10. Conduct a governance assessment utilizing the National Association of Local Boards of 

Health (NALBOH) Version 3 of the National Public Health Performance Standards 

This self-assessment focusses on the DBOH, and facilitates a better understanding of the role 

boards of health play nationally in the governance of health departments they oversee.  As 

developed by NALBOH, the assessment is designed to provide a comprehensive review of the 

instrumental functions of boards.  Given the new leadership of WCHD, this is an auspicious time 

 expenditures per 

capita 

 revenue per 

capita 

local 

revenue 

per capita

local 

revenue/total 

revenue

 clinical services 

revenue per capita 

minimum $0.76 $0.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
average $51.31 $53.41 $16.78 36.8% $11.40
Washoe $46.70 $41.72 $17.03 40.8% $0.48
maximum $2,847.08 $3,075.45 $2,452.76 100.0% $238.87



15 

 

to undertake this self-assessment.  As other boards of health conduct the self-assessment, more 

data will become available for purposes of comparison and benchmarking.  The self-assessment 

also positions the board well for their role in governance if national voluntary accreditation is 

pursued.  Periodic governance self-assessment every 3-5 years, or as turnover in DBOH 

members occurs, is highly recommended.   

Twelve to Twenty-four Months 

1. Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key health department goals and 

objectives so that priorities are clearly articulated for the DBOH, WCHD staff, 

stakeholders, and the community. 

The devastating recession and past leadership challenges have rendered the health department 

rudderless until recently.  Whether reducing budgets or investing in the future, the lack of 

strategic direction has hampered the ability of the WCHD to respond optimally.  Now that 

leadership has been addressed, a deliberate process to guide the future is a prerequisite to align 

the actions of the health department with its stakeholders.   

A sound strategic plan is also a prerequisite for the Public Health Accreditation Board 

accreditation program.  However, whether WCHD moves forward with accreditation or not, the 

underlying purpose of the strategic plan, as recognized by PHAB, is that organizations with a 

well thought out blueprint to follow are far more likely to achieve their stated aims and 

objectives.  Further, PHAB recommends that the strategic plan be coupled with other related 

planning processes: a community health assessment, and a community health improvement plan.  

Optimally there is a high degree of alignment between all three, with the strategic plan laying out 

the health district’s role in the health improvement plan, as well as guiding its programmatic and 

administrative functions toward strategic plan goals.   

2. Implement a performance management system. 

In some ways, similar to the strategic plan, if there is no well described destination or plan, any 

pathway will lead an organization to an undetermined destination.  The performance 

management system (PMS) strives to answer the critical question at the macro organizational 

level: “How do we know we are doing a good job?”  There are many successful models enabling 

organizations to manage their performance and improve it, some of which are specific to public 

health (Turning Point Performance Management Framework).  However, the selection of which 

model is less crucial than that a model is selected.   

The development of metrics for success is a key component of the PMS.  Such measures indicate 

the achievement of benchmarks or objectives that inform management that the WCHD is on 

track.  Conversely, when outcomes are inconsistent with desired objectives, then opportunities 

for improvement present themselves.  Prioritizing which activities are most important for the 

organization (and when) is another key role of the management team.   



16 

 

Leadership sets the tone for organizational culture, which is instrumental for an effective PMS 

(see Turning Point Performance Management Framework).  Leadership and management answer 

the question about how we are doing by listening to the perceptions and input of customers and 

partners.  

Given the financial instability that has affected the Washoe County Health District and most 

other local health departments in the U.S. since the most recent recession began in 2008, we urge 

the Health District to closely monitor financial trends and benchmark its financial performance 

with other health departments using ratio and trend analysis tools such as NACCHO’s Public 

Health Uniform Data System (PHUND$).   A detailed financial ratio and trend analysis based on 

WCHD’s four most recent fiscal years is found in the appendix. 

3. Consider alternative governance structures in order to accommodate multiple related but 

potentially competing objectives. 

The present structure is felt to be inadequate by multiple stakeholders, but often for widely 

differing reasons described below.   

Elected officials feel constrained by the current system in which appointed DBOH members 

outnumber elected members.  This leads frequently to inadequate political support for budget and 

other matters from the district’s governing bodies.  Additionally, more involvement by elected 

officials would increase the political sensitivity of the decision-making process, taking into 

account the need for the health district to control costs, increase efficiency, and support 

economic growth.  Further, having more elected officials on the DBOH acts as a buffer, 

preventing any single governing body from dominating the decisions and actions of the health 

district.   

The other end of the continuum would maintain the status quo, recognizing the important 

contributions that content experts and citizens make to the deliberative process when coupled 

with elected officials to form a DBOH.  A blended DBOH is better able to ensure that decisions 

respect services and positions that could be dominated by majority viewpoints.  It also ensures 

that a health perspective is strongly embedded into the decision making process.   

There are signs that the present inter-local agreement may be less supported by the participating 

jurisdictions than in years past.  Any participating party may withdraw resulting in a new 

governance structure.  This pathway suffers from several pitfalls, including the uncertainty of 

what a successor model would be, and the strong likelihood that more infrastructure and 

duplication would be required in order to meet public health needs required under law.  If the 

current governance model is dissolved, there is potential for three local health departments to co-

exist rather than having a single health district, which is not in anyone’s best interest.  

Another option, not currently under discussion, is to consider affiliation with the University of 

Nevada to develop an academic/health district partnership.  There are multiple models nationally 



17 

 

for such structures which allow for a closer nexus between local government, the health district, 

and academic centers.  The May/June 2014 issue of the Journal of Public Health Management 

and Practice is entirely dedicated to this topic.  National experts like Paul Erwin at the 

University of Tennessee are eager to discuss the various options in current operation across the 

country.  Such approaches can serve to defuse political tensions, and place a premium on 

management, technical expertise, and multi-disciplinary education.  An expanding public health 

program at the university offers an opportunity to explore new models such as an academic 

health department, with structural safeguards in place to reflect important values of the parties to 

the current inter-local agreement and the DBOH.   

4. Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration. 

Strong support and respect for the WCHD was evident from a convened meeting with state 

health department Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health staff and representatives 

from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. These organizations are frequent funders 

and contractors with the health department and expressed deep satisfaction with the expertise and 

quality of work demonstrated in their shared enterprises.   

Even with the very positive feedback received, there is still opportunity to strengthen the nature 

of the relationship.  For example, the State Division of Public and Behavioral Health faces 

significant challenges in terms of capacity and overall funding.  Additionally legislative matters 

could benefit from broader support from other sources.  Given the strengths at the local level, the 

DBOH could engage in State policy and legislative issues that would positively impact funding 

decisions as well as policy decisions that impact WCHD.  In some content areas a shared 

understanding of key priorities was lacking.   For example, there is miscommunication about 

developing capacity for billing immunization services, and developing alternative funding 

models with Medicaid.  Other examples indicate miscommunication resulting in actions that may 

be at cross purposes.  Local chronic disease coalitions have been funded to provide chronic 

disease planning and activities, even as the health department has these responsibilities for the 

whole community.    

In most states, public health infrastructure and leadership is provided at the state level.  In 

Nevada there appears to be a vacuum in state leadership, and very limited stare funding for 

public health, providing an opportunity for WCHD to reach out to the state and other large local 

health departments to formulate a broader approach to shaping the public health agenda.  This is 

not traditionally a local health department role, but with that role vacated it is important for 

others to step up, facilitating a more aligned effort statewide.   

5. Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps. 

Critical steps for leadership and management include transparency in health district decisions, 

commitment to customer service, and alignment of activities to ensure priorities are implemented 

and quality outcomes are attained.  Building a culture of quality requires several years of 



18 

 

dedication and ongoing use of quality improvement tools.  In the shorter term, WCHD should 

take advantage of opportunities to practice “small QI” with quality improvement projects such as 

MCH services integration, the regional permitting software platform development, and reducing 

accounts-receivable write-offs.   

Regular sources of information from customers and employees also need to be gathered to ensure 

the health district is moving toward a culture of quality.  Ongoing customer satisfaction data 

should be acquired for all programs using a variety of methods to assure all customers are invited 

to share their viewpoints.  Similarly employee climate surveys should be conducted periodically 

to assess progress toward an employee atmosphere supporting decision-making at the level 

where the problems reside, with support from leadership and management. 

6. Seek PHAB accreditation.  

A great deal of the work accomplished during the next two years will provide inputs and 

documentation suitable for the PHAB accreditation program.  However, the reasons for seeking 

accreditation are far more compelling.  First, accreditation provides an objective third party 

assessment of health department capacity and operations.  Second, it is an accountability 

mechanism to the DBOH and community.  Third, accreditation emphasizes improving quality of 

services and improving health outcomes, while providing a supportive learning community to 

facilitate each.  

 

Acknowledgements 

We wish to thank Carolyn Leep of the National Association of County and City Health Officials 

for providing us access to data from the 2013 Profile of Local Health Departments and also 

Melissa Howell, Greene County (Ohio) Health Commissioner and Dr. Peggy Honore, 

AmeriHealth-Mercy General Russell Honore Endowed Professor, Louisiana State University 

School of Public Health for their review and comments on earlier drafts of our report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



19 

 

Accreditation Readiness Review 

 

WCHD Strengths:   

 Committed, passionate, knowledgeable staff 

 Subject matter experts in the community   

 Strong community and government partnerships  

 Learning environment for staff and students 

 

Opportunities: 

 High quality evidence based programs  

 Culture of continuous quality improvement 

 Local, State and National recognition 

 Increased collaboration with partners and coalitions   

 

“A goal of Public Health department accreditation is to promote high performance and 

continuous quality improvement.  The concept of CQI is incorporated in the standards and 

measures of the accreditation process.” 

Accreditation provides an objective third party assessment of the health district capacity and 

operations.  It is an accountability mechanism to the board of health and community, and 

emphasizes quality and improvement in health outcomes. 

Whether or not WCHD chooses, at some point, to apply for accreditation, the Public Health 

Accreditation Domains have proven to be the foundation for a roadmap of where Public Health 

Department should be placing their efforts. 

The core of the roadmap is centered around three prerequisites that the health district must have 

documentation of: 

1. Community Health Assessment (CHA) 

2. Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) 

3. Health District Strategic Plan 

These documents lay the groundwork for public health programs, policies, and interventions, and 

are prerequisites for an accreditation review. 

 

 



20 

 

Community Health Assessment:   

The purpose of a Community Health Assessment (CHA) is to learn about the health status of the 

population that the Health District serves.  The outcome of this assessment will describe the 

health status of the population, identify health improvements, and determine factors that 

contribute to health issues and identify assets and resources that can be mobilized to address 

population health improvement.   

Staff are excited that WCHD has engaged in conversations with other community partners to 

begin the discussion about collaborating to conduct a CHA and planning a future Healthy 

Community Forum.    This process has just begun and includes Renown Health, WCHD, the 

Federal Reserve Bank, local jurisdictions and others as active and valued participants in the 

process.  WCHD holds much of the needed and wanted data that is required for documentation 

of secondary data in the CHA process.  This needed resource will assure WCHD’s engagement 

in the process.  Continued work and engagement with community partners on the CHA is a great 

opportunity for WCHD to gain positive exposure in the community with partners and the public. 

 

Community Health Improvement Plan:   

The purpose of the Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) is to describe how the Health 

District and the community will work together to improve the health of the population that it 

serves.  The CHIP is based on the findings of the CHA and is a community driven process that 

will culminate in a set of agreed upon priorities that will be a focus for community improvement.   

Once the CHA has been conducted, WCHD will then have an opportunity to help influence 

decisions on where to focus community energies and resources to address local health issues and 

needs in the district.  The CHIP will be another great opportunity for WCHD to actively engage 

with community leaders on setting the health improvement priorities for the district.  This will 

also allow the Board and managers to determine where to allocate and focus budget funds based 

on the Community Health Improvement Plan priorities. 

 

District Strategic Plan:   

The purpose of the District Strategic Plan is to describe what the Health District plans to achieve 

in 3-5 years.  The Strategic Plan will provide guidance for decision making, priority setting and 

action steps.  It focuses on the activities and programs of only the Health District, not the broad 

community. The WCHD strategic plan should include links to the CHIP and to the District’s 

quality improvement plan. 

 



21 

 

Required elements of a Health District Strategic Plan: 

 Mission, vision, guiding principles and values 

 Strategic priorities 

 Goals and objectives with measureable and time-framed targets 

 External trends or events or factors affecting the health status or the Health District 

 Health District strengths and weaknesses 

 Link to CHIP and Health District’s quality improvement plan 

We found evidence of several strategic plans in various divisions in the Health District.   We also 

reviewed the WCHD strategic plan that is imbedded in the County strategic plan.  These separate 

plans show the initiative taken by several divisions and administration to document and monitor 

set goals.  However admirable these individual plan are, there needs to be one overarching 

District-wide strategic plan that sets the direction for the entire Health District, and includes 

reference to the divisional goals and objectives.  The Board of Health should be actively engaged 

in strategic discussions and help lead the efforts to set the goals and priorities that would be 

referenced and monitored in the strategic plan. 

 

Using PHAB standards and measures as a Roadmap for WCHD 

Public Health Domains:   

PHAB has identified a set of 12 Domains which pertain to a broad group of public health 

services.    Each Domain includes standards which are the required level of achievement that the 

health district is expected to meet.  Each standard has measures that give a glimpse into the level 

of engagement the District has with the current PHAB standards.  The WCHD staff will select 

the best evidence to serve as documentation or proof of accomplishing the measures under each 

standard.  The WCHD matrix of required documents for each standard was reviewed, however 

individual documents were not reviewed for accuracy or fulfillment of the requirement. 

 

Domain 1: Conduct and disseminate assessments focused on population health status and 

public health issues facing the community. 

 Assessment:  Staff assessment shows many primary examples of documentation of data 

already being collected by WCHD.  Since two examples of documentation are needed for each 

measure, the CHA process and data used in the assessment will help meet these required 

documents.  This Domain will be easily met once WCHD engages with the community in the 

Community Health Assessment process.  Staff should remember to document all meetings and 

events in order to show proof of such collaborative work.  Staff should also begin collecting and 



22 

 

analyzing data that is available to identify any trends that are recognizable, and useful in the 

recommendations for health improvement. 

Domain 2:  Investigate health problems and environmental public health hazards to protect 

the community. 

 Assessment:  There is strong documentation from EPHP. EHS, AQM and CCHS to 

demonstrate the requirements of this Domain.  Staff should focus on completion of policies and 

procedures for urgent and non-urgent communications. 

Domain 3: Inform and Educate about public health issues and functions. 

 Assessment:  Strong documentation from all divisions was evident in the staff 

assessment.  It will be helpful to highlight evidence based practices in the documentation. 

Domain 4: Engage with the community to identify and address health problems. 

 Assessment:  WCHD staff is engaged in many community coalitions and collaborative 

processes.  However, more could be done to work collaboratively with partners as is suggested 

for a Community Health Assessment or through the Mobilizing for Action through Planning and 

Partnerships (MAPP) process. 

Domain 5: Develop public health policies and plans. 

 Assessment:  WCHD staff referenced legislative tracking and testimony as one example 

of maintaining policies and practices.  Further documentation will be needed for this standard.  

Following the CHA, the WCHD will begin community work on an Improvement Plan.  The 

documentation of this planning process will help fulfill a standard in this domain.  If the WCHD 

develops their strategic planning process, this would also provide appropriate documentation for 

this domain. 

Domain 6: Enforce public health laws. 

 Assessment:  WCHD staff reference multiple documents in the AQM and EHS programs 

that fulfill the standards in this domain.  Having good documentation of enforcement programs 

within the Health District help to fulfill these standards. 

Domain 7: Promote strategies to improve access to health care services. 

 Assessment:  The CCHS division has listed programs that help to fulfill this domain.  FP, 

HIV, STD, Immunizations and MCH programs each influence access to health care services.  As 

this domain focuses on improving access, it does not intend that WCHD is responsible for being 

the only access point.  Community partnerships could be emphasized in how the health district 

works with others in the community around access issues. 



23 

 

Domain 8: Maintain a competent public health workforce. 

 Assessment:  As noted by staff, workforce development issues vary by division.  WCHD 

as a whole could look to develop a district wide workforce development plan that is implemented 

in each division.  Cross training of current staff will allow increased flexibility in staffing needs 

of the district. 

Domain 9: Evaluate and continuously improve processes, programs, and interventions. 

 Assessment:  Domain 9 is often difficult to document.  WCHD has begun work around 

QI with the establishment of their QI team, and with providing staff general training on QI.   

Continued emphasis on integrating QI processes into organizational practices and programs will 

take some dedicated attention by the management team and QI team.  WCHD is off to a good 

start with this embedded philosophy. Implementation of performance management and quality 

improvement practices will allow public health to plan, implement, study, and assess the 

performance of programs and services.   

Domain 10: Contribute to and apply the evidence base of public health. 

 Assessment:  WCHD staff document several research and evaluation projects that they 

have undertaken in the past.  These projects are great examples of using data to educate the 

public and make changes in policy.  Continued emphasis on evidence based programs will lead 

to increased efficiency and effectiveness of program delivery. 

Domain 11: Maintain administrative and management capacity. 

 Assessment:  WCHD has documentation required to support this domain.  Some of the 

necessary documentation could come from the county as the WCHD is folded within the county 

structure for human resources and finance policies and procedures.   

Domain 12: Maintain capacity to engage the public health governing entity. 

 Assessment:  WCHD board of health meets on a regular basis to conduct the business of 

the District.  Board orientation and training with an emphasis on official obligations and 

responsibilities should take place for current board members with a yearly refresher.   

 

Attachments: 

 Self-Assessment of documentation options for addressing the Standards in the PHAB 

Domains 

 

 



24 

 

Accreditation Resources to consider: 

PHAB self-assessment and references:  www.phaboard.org 

Public Health Quality Improvement Exchange:  www.phqix.org 

NACCHO accreditation preparation toolkit:  www.naccho.org 

CDC Community Guide:  www.thecommunityguide.org 

Public Health Foundation - quality improvement resources:  www.PHF.org 

 

 

  

http://www.phaboard.org/
http://www.phqix.org/
http://www.naccho.org/
http://www.thecommunityguide.org/
http://www.phf.org/


25 

 

Foundational Capabilities Assessment 

 

In 2012 the Institute of Medicine (IOM) issued its landmark report, For the Public’s Health: 

Investing in a Healthier Future.  IOM described for the first time the concept of the “minimum 

package of public health services” for a post-health reform world, consisting of basic programs 

and foundational capabilities (FC).  The latter are the requisite infrastructure that must be in 

place in every health department in order  to provide the necessary support for the programs and 

services to serve the public fully.  Inspired by the IOM report, the State of Ohio local health 

officials developed an operational approach to the minimum package, defining the following 

foundational capabilities:   

 Quality assurance (encompassing accreditation readiness; quality improvement and 

evaluation; identification of evidence based public health practices) 

 Information management and analysis (including data analysis expertise for 

surveillance, epidemiology, performance management, research, and community health 

assessment; information technology infrastructure; and interface with other health 

information technology  

 Policy development (incorporating policy analysis and planning; expertise necessary for 

policy, systems, and environmental change strategies 

 Resource development (defined as grant writing expertise and support; workforce 

development activities; contracting, and service billing/fee collection) 

 Legal support (availability of legal consultation in specialized public health law) 

 Laboratory capacity (environmental health lab; clinical lab if needed for clinical service 

support) 

 Support and expertise for local health department (LHD) community engagement 

strategies (described as community and governing entity engagement, convening, and 

planning; public information, marketing, and communications; community health 

assessment and improvement planning; and partnership development to address socio-

economic factors and health equity) 

To assess the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) foundational capability interviews were 

conducted with each operating division within the health department utilizing an instrument 

developed by RESOLVE, a health and environmental consulting group.  This tool is based upon 

the IOM FC model, but follows the Ohio approach closely. Individual division responses are 

consolidated into a summary of each FC, and overall capacities are highlighted and analyzed.  

 

 

 



26 

 

Assessment/Surveillance 

Findings 

 Surveillance is most well developed for communicable diseases and air quality, with 

active and passive methods deployed 

 Chronic disease, injury, MCH surveillance is lacking 

 Assessment and analysis is limited to data analysis within Epi and AQM, but insufficient 

for the entire health department 

 Community health assessment activities are limited and not organized as a 

comprehensive activity 

Communication 

Findings 

 1 FTE (PIO) serves entire WCHD 

 Centralized and decentralized communications strategies are utilized, although unevenly 

across divisions 

 Traditional reports, newsletters, press releases, and emails are most heavily relied upon to 

communicate externally 

 Website is sophisticated and well utilized by some divisions 

 Overall use of social media should be strengthened. 

 For a larger community presence emphasizing partnership and collaboration as a future 

strategy, more resources are needed for communication  

Policy Development (PD) 

Findings 

 Policy development is considered one of the core functions of public health, as well as 

one of its the foundational capabilities.   

 Limited efforts and FTE are dedicated to PD, and are concentrated within AQM, with 

several successes noted 

 The inability to translate public health science and evidence based practices into policy 

may limit the full health impact WCHD could achieve 

 Policy development is a shared WCHD and District Board of Health (DBOH)  role 

 Divisions and DBOH require greater alignment on the overall role of policy focus as a 

health tool 

Partnership Development 

Findings 

 Partnership development and community collaboration are not viewed consistently across 

divisions as integral functions of WCHD 

 Some community partnership relationships are formed in response to specific problems 

rather than being formed proactively 



27 

 

 Majority of efforts are more internally focused, which may contribute to a perceived 

limited community role and brand externally, potentially limiting effectiveness 

 WIC partnerships were somewhat incongruent with need for community outreach to 

MCH population and food/nutrition education. 

 Insufficient resources are currently directed toward community partnership in several 

divisions 

Quality 

Findings 

 Many grant funded programs have required metrics designed to facilitate feedback 

regarding performance 

 QI activity is formal in specific programs, more ad hoc in others, which reflects the 

current status of LHD QI nationally  

 Department-wide QI initiative including QI plan and council for oversight are under 

development 

 QI customer service orientation is limited to specific areas within WCHD 

 Plans in place to dedicate 1 FTE to department-wide QI initiative 

Workforce (WFD) 

Findings 

 Limited attention to career workforce development pathways 

 More emphasis is on licensure maintenance rather than cross-training or professional 

development 

 WFD focus is largely programmatic, with limited activity across programs (department 

wide) 

 Training opportunities available through county government in numerous foci, but not 

accessed by all divisions 

 Professional conferences attended only as constrained budgets allow 

 Some divisions have greater emphasis on WFD by including it within the annual 

performance plan  

 Previously, available tuition reimbursement programs facilitated graduate opportunities 

in needed disciplines, e.g. MPH 

 Leadership programs available via county and other partners 

Information Systems 

Findings 

 EH hardware and software are outdated, with vendor support no longer available 

 IT support within WCHD is inadequate to meet all organizational needs 

 There is often a several month backlog for routine needs 

 County indirect costs include IT, but inconsistent support received 

 Online systems underutilized for serving customers, despite growing demand  

 WCHD receiving low priority in county-wide permitting system redesign 



28 

 

 Use of social media and other communication tools not consistently supported across 

agency 

 Some complex programs like Insight have limited tech support from IT 

 County agreement for IT services last negotiated over a decade ago, and lacked 

specificity and provision for enforcement.   

Legal 

Findings 

 Allocated time for legal support assigned by county viewed as inadequate in some 

regulatory programs 

 Urgent needs are addressed promptly and expertly, although more routine matters often 

languish 

 Clearinghouse for legal has largely fallen into disuse, reviving could benefit WCHD by 

prioritizing greatest needs 

 Revisit allocation of limited legal resource to assess if needs are fully met by current FTE 

allocation 

Fiscal 

Findings 

 Fiscal capacity limitations recognized by divisions 

 Support appreciated but is insufficient to support important functions such as billing, 

which undermines WCHD financial health 

 Support for generating new grants could expand programmatic ability to seek more 

external funding  

 Fiscal office is strong on compliance matters, but emphasis on compliance over support 

may strain relationships between fiscal and the divisions 

Health Education 

Findings 

 Community education outreach emphasized in AQM 

 Health education was incompletely explored during other division interviews.   

Conclusion 

The foundational capabilities align very closely with core requirements and infrastructure needed 

to successfully achieve accreditation through the Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) 

program.  If accreditation is one strategy to demonstrate WCHD performance then several areas 

of the FC will require strengthening.  However, even if accreditation is not a short term goal, 

sufficient infrastructure is needed to address public health challenges anticipated in the future—

challenges that require a more externally focused and community engaged health department 

than is currently possible for most divisions within WCHD.   



29 

 

Presently partnership development and community collaboration are not viewed consistently as 

integral functions of WCHD.  The majority of activities and strategies are more internally 

focused, which may contribute to a perceived limited community role and brand externally, 

potentially reducing effectiveness.  Assessment and data analysis are inadequate to support 

community health assessment and broader health initiatives with community partners.  This lack 

of data and analysis capacity may lead to an inability to translate public health science and 

evidence based practices into policy, thus further contributing to a diminished health department 

impact.  Policy development is a shared WCHD and DBOH role; divisions and DBOH require 

greater alignment on the overall role of policy focus as a health tool for achieving desired goals 

and objectives.  Similarly, more resources are needed for communications to support closer ties 

to community organizations and partnership development, instrumental for accomplishing 

partnership and community collaboration.  Some of these resources should be strategically 

placed within the director’s office to ensure agency-wide focus. 

Internal capacity and operations remain critical to sound organizational functioning.  These 

depend on a skilled workforce (the majority of the WCHD budget); technology support and 

tools; legal services; strong fiscal management; and QI.  All require additional investment to 

provide necessary buttressing of department-wide efforts.  Despite training opportunities 

available through county government in numerous areas, not all divisions access it currently.  

WFD focus remains largely programmatic and siloed, with narrow activity cutting across 

programs and divisions.  Limited attention to career workforce development pathways 

exacerbate the impression that the workforce is underemphasized.  Technology in some divisions 

is antiquated and verging on obsolete.  IT support is unable to meet current demand, let alone 

expected growth deploying new social media and online tools/services.  County support has also 

eroded during the recession, and the county service agreement is functionally and temporally 

outdated.  Legal expertly addresses urgent concerns, but has less capacity to respond to more 

routine legal matters such as contracts and MOUs.  The clearinghouse for legal has largely fallen 

into disuse; reviving it could benefit WCHD by prioritizing greatest needs.  Fiscal capacity is 

likewise strained, and insufficient to provide support for important functions such as billing and 

grant seeking, which potentially undermines WCHD financial health.  Quality improvement and 

performance management capacity enable senior leadership to scan the organization, and direct 

scarce resources where they can be most impactful.  It also facilitates early recognition of 

suboptimal performance, allowing for rapid and timely response.   Substantial strides are being 

made in QI, with a department-wide QI initiative including QI plan and council for oversight 

under development.  However,  activity is formal in specific programs, more ad hoc in others.  

Additional resources are also required in the director’s office to choreograph QI/performance 

management across the entire health department, to ensure alignment of internal efforts, and to 

free the director to have a more visible role in the external community.   

 

 

  



30 

 

Legal Review 

 

In fulfillment of the fundamental assessment of the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) a 

legal review was undertaken.  The purpose of the legal review was to examine services currently 

provided by WCHD compared with mandated services in statute, regulation, or the interlocal 

agreement.  The underlying question was whether some mandated services might be provided in 

amounts greater than required, resulting in reduced overall capacity of the WCHD to provide 

other necessary, but not mandated services.   

 

Nevada Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, Washoe County ordinances, Health 

District ordinances, and the interlocal agreement were examined.  The current legal structure  

confers broad powers upon the State Board of Health and the District Boards of Health.  

 

The District Board of Health (DBOH) and district health department: 

 Have jurisdiction over all public health matters in the district 

 May adopt regulations with the following effect: prevention and control of nuisances; 

sanitation and sanitary practices; food and water sanitation; and to protect and promote 

the public health generally.   

With rare exception, the mandated programs do not have prescriptive legal required service 

levels.  One notable exception is the food program calling for inspections of food establishments 

“…but not less than once per calendar year.” (Regulations of the Washoe County District Board 

of Health §190.200).  Another specific directive relates to the immunization program for children 

entering school, requiring the availability of immunizations “… not less than one month before 

the opening date of the school year…” (NRS §439.535.1).  Considered together, these laws 

(statutes and regulations) mandate a floor or minimum level for programs rather than a ceiling, 

allowing the health district and Board of Health to provide greater levels of service or oversight 

if desired.  This grants the health district and DBOH wide latitude in determining the breadth and 

depth of public health services offered.   

 

Examples of several other mandated regulatory programs (some also with mandated levels of 

activity) follows.  Environmental Health Services (EHS) is required to carry out the program but 

it is optional for the DBOH to adopt its own regulations.  In the absence of regulations, EHS 

must then carry out these mandated responsibilities based upon Nevada statute and/or state 

regulations: 

 

Subdivision of Land (NRS §278.335 and §278.377).  The health district must review and 

certify proposed subdivisions and do construction inspections 

 



31 

 

Swimming Pools (NRS §444.070).  The health authority shall supervise the sanitation, 

healthfulness, cleanliness and safety of public swimming pools.  Further, in accordance with 

NRS §444.080 it is unlawful to construct or operate any public pool without a permit from the 

health authority. 

 

Mobile Home/RV Parks (NRS §461A 1).  A person shall not construct or expand a mobile 

home park unless the person has obtained a permit from the district board of health certifying 

that the infrastructure of the park for the provision of water, septic, and sanitation services does 

not endanger the safety or health of the tenants or general public.  The district board of health 

shall annually inspect a park (NRS §461.A 2).  

 

Public Accommodation (NRS §447.190).  The health authority is charged with enforcement of 

this chapter and is mandated to keep a record of hotels inspected. 

 

School and Jails (NRS §444.335).   The health authority shall have supervision over the 

sanitation, healthfulness, cleanliness and safety of jails, schools, and school gymnasiums.  Jails 

shall be inspected annually, while schools and gymnasiums are required to be inspected twice 

per year, once each semester. 

 

Child Care Facilities (NRS §432A.180).  The chief medical officer or a designee shall inspect at 

least annually every building or premises of a child care facility and area of an outdoor youth 

program, on behalf of the division of public and behavioral health of the state health department, 

to ensure compliance with standards for health and sanitation. 

 

Liquid Waste (NRS §444.650).  The state board of health shall adopt regulations to control the 

use of a residential individual system for disposal or sewage.  Those regulations are effective 

except in health districts in which a district board of health has adopted regulations. 

 

Safe Drinking Water  (NRS §445A.925).  The division and district boards of health shall 

enforce NRS §445A.800 – §445A.955.  The health authority shall make such investigations and 

inspections necessary to ensure compliance. 

 

Waste Management (NRS §444.510).  The governing body of every municipality or district 

board of health shall develop a plan for a solid waste management system. 

 

Similar legal mandates are in effect for communicable diseases, and some examples of 

communicable disease control follow: 

 

Sexually Transmitted Diseases (NRS §441A.240).  The health authority shall control, prevent, 

treat and, whenever possible, ensure the cure of sexually transmitted diseases.  In addition, the 



32 

 

health authority shall provide the materials and curriculum necessary to conduct the educational 

program provided for in NRS §209.385 and establish a program for the certification of persons 

qualified to provide instruction for the program. 

 

Tuberculosis (NRS §441A.340).  The health authority shall control, prevent the spread of, and 

ensure the treatment and cure of tuberculosis. 

 

In addition, epidemiology has specific powers and authority to investigate and control other 

communicable diseases, and is required to do so.     

 

The Air Quality Management Division programs constitute a somewhat different model of 

mandated activities.  Federal law (the Clean Air Act) requires the U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA) to establish health-based National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(NAAQS).   Each state must adopt plans that provide for implementation, maintenance, and 

enforcement of the NAAQS.  Monitoring of pollutants and enforcement of control measures is 

required.  State plans are submitted to EPA and upon approval, become federally 

enforceable. Because Washoe District Board of Health is the delegated authority under Nevada 

statutes for purposes of the Clean Air Act (NRS §445B.500), the DBOH is required to “ . . . 

establish a program for the control of air pollution and administer the program within its 

jurisdiction unless superseded.”  Specific program requirements are also set forth in the NRS 

chapter.   

 

Other programs in place at the WCHD are permitted under the broader public health authority.  

For example authority for the vector control program is general public health authority under 

NRS §439.170:  “… shall take such measures as may be necessary to prevent the spread of 

sickness and disease, and shall possess all powers necessary to fulfill the duties…”  This same 

broad grant of authority is equally applicable to chronic disease prevention, injury control, and 

home visiting as it is to vector control and related activities.  Additional authority for general 

regulatory programs like vector control is via authority for control of nuisance (NRS §439.490). 

 

Interpretation    

 

There are several requirements or mandated services imposed upon the health district and 

District Board of Health under Nevada and federal law.  Many are highlighted in the paragraphs 

above.  Mandated programs tend to be regulatory or communicable disease control in nature.  

Most of the laws require the existence of a program, but are not prescriptive in how the programs 

achieve their objectives, and do not impose specific levels of service.  Contracts and grants (not 

examined in this exercise) may impose additional obligations not otherwise established under 

law.  In addition Nevada statures confer upon the health district and DBOH wide latitude via a 

broad grant of authority to “…prevent the spread of disease.”  WCHD resources may therefore 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-209.html#NRS209Sec385


33 

 

be utilized not only to control nuisances and assure sanitation of water and food, but also to 

protect and promote health.  The latter authority enables the health district and District Board of 

Health to consider burden of disease and health impact when allocating scarce resources.  Given 

the epidemiologic shift from acute diseases to chronic health conditions, consideration might be 

given to chronic disease prevention, injury programs (in light of violence in schools and health 

care settings since this fundamental assessment was initiated), and the necessary infrastructure to 

support community engagement and health assessment.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



Washoe County Health District 

Fundamental Review 

Les Beitsch, MD, JD 

Matthew Stefanak, MPH 

Carol Moehrle, BSN, RN 

Reno, NV 

February 27, 2014 

34 



Fundamental Review 

The Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
has contracted with the Public Health 
Foundation (PHF) to conduct a fundamental 
review to include the following: 
 

Review and assess health department structure, 
legal review, operations, oversight, governance, 
finances, and performance 

 
The assessment will focus on efficiency, 
effectiveness, and opportunities for health 
department continuous improvement.   

 

35 



Recommendations  

First 90 – 120 Days 

1. Align the WIC program with similar program functions. 
2. Develop Board of Health Orientation. 
3. Strengthen customer focus. 
4. Examine clinic appointment scheduling. 
5. Update fee schedule and billing processes. 
6. Explore a tiered level of EH services. 
7. Participate in the county building permitting process 
analysis. 
8.  Strengthen organizational effectiveness by developing 
infrastructure to support the District Health Officer 

 
 

 

36 



Recommendations  

First Year 

1. 1. Implement time coding for all employees. 
2. 2. Perform cost analysis of all programs. 
3. 3. Perform assessment of admin. and fiscal staffing needs. 
4. 4. Execute a concerted effort of all parties to address the 

tensions regarding the current overhead/indirect costs. 
5. 5. Align programs and services 
6. 6. Conduct a Community Health Assessment. 
7. 7. Develop metrics for success 
8. 8. Continue current collaborative to resolve REMSA 

oversight issues. 
9. 9. Maintain current levels of financial support. 
  10. Conduct a governance assessment. 

 
 
 

37 



Recommendations  

Twelve to Twenty Four Months 

 
1. 1. Undertake an organizational strategic plan.   
2. 2. Implement a Performance Management System. 
3. 3. Consider Alternative Governance Structures. 
4. 4. Take a greater leadership role in State/Local 

collaboration. 
5. 5. Develop an Organizational Culture to support Quality. 
6. 6. Seek PHAB Accreditation 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

38 



Public Health Foundation 
www.phf.org 

 
Leslie M. Beitsch, MD, JD 

les.beitsch@med.fsu.edu> 

 

Mathew Stefanak 

stefanakfarm@gmail.com 

 

Carol Moehrle 

moehrlecm@gmail.com 
 
 
 

 
 

39 



Washoe County Health District Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$) Ratio and Trend Analysis

Item # Local Public Health Agency (LPHA) Financial Data Fiscal Year 13

% Change from 

Previous 

Period

Fiscal Year 12
% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 11

% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 10

Revenues

1 Total Local (County/City) Revenues (including Breakout accts below)    
1a        Local General Revenues 8,623,891$             18.9% 7,250,850$                -11.5% 8,192,500$             -4.5% 8,574,826$             
1b        Local Dedicated Public Health Property Tax Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
1c        Dedicated Public Health Millage Rate ($ per $1,000 property value) 0.0000  0.0000  0.0000  0.0000
1d        Hospital Revenues from Millage Rate Dedicated to Public Health -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
1e       All Other Local Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        

      Local (County/City) Revenue Non-Itemized Total 8,623,891$             7,250,850$                8,192,500$             8,574,826$             
2 State Revenues 847,402$                -26.8% 1,157,672$                2.8% 1,126,051$             -15.1% 1,325,970$             
3 Federal Revenues 5,672,330$             0.6% 5,638,238$                1.1% 5,576,772$             -7.4% 6,023,476$             
4 Medicaid  Revenues 1,430$                    -88.9% 12,908$                    -73.6% 48,935$                  62.0% 30,200$                  
5 Medicare Revenues -$                        -$                           310$                       -89.9% 3,085$                    
6 Private Insurance Revenues 5,680$                    -64.5% 15,985$                    -36.7% 25,269$                  280.7% 6,638$                    
7 Federally Qualified Health Center 330 Grant Funding Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
8 Total Fees (including Breakout accounts below)    

8a        Patient Fees 182,860$                -19.0% 225,851$                   -18.2% 276,139$                -27.6% 381,583$                
8b        Environmental Health Fees 1,862,575$             16.7% 1,595,736$                -3.5% 1,653,066$             -13.7% 1,914,508$             
8c        Vital Statistics Fees 476,829$                8.4% 439,910$                   22.3% 359,725$                58.1% 227,511$                
8d        Oral Health Fees -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
8e        Other Fees 2,471$                    -39.5% 4,084$                      -64.8% 11,600$                  114.1% 5,419$                    

       Fees Non-Itemized Total 2,524,735$             11.4% 2,265,581$                -1.5% 2,300,530$             -9.0% 2,529,021$             
9 Entrepreneurship Revenues 32,862$                  776.3% 3,750$                      -$                         -$                        

10 Other Revenues 2,505$                    -40.7% 4,224$                      1732.5% 231$                       -99.2% 28,013$                  
11 Total Revenues 17,710,834$           8.3% 16,349,207$              -5.3% 17,270,598$           -6.8% 18,521,228$           

 Revenue Breakouts 
12 Federal Pass-through for County Public Health from State Revenues 3,994,840$             -0.9% 4,030,757$                0.6% 4,007,114$             -12.4% 4,572,506$             
13 Federal Direct (not through State Health Office) Revenues 1,774,164$             10.4% 1,607,481$                2.4% 1,569,658$             8.2% 1,450,970$             
14 All Grant Revenues 6,519,732$             -4.1% 6,795,910$                1.4% 6,702,823$             -8.8% 7,349,445$             
15 Environmental Health Revenues 1,862,575$             16.7% 1,595,736$                -3.5% 1,653,066$             -13.7% 1,914,508$             
16 Oral Health Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
17 Immunization Revenues 398,297$                -21.4% 506,446$                   -10.9% 568,214$                -4.8% 597,111$                
18 Medical Services Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
19 Home Health Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
20 Emergency Preparedness Revenues 1,356,814$             10.3% 1,230,227$                19.4% 1,030,681$             -38.9% 1,687,943$             
21 School Health Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
22 Budgeted Revenues (at start of Fiscal Year) 18,144,881$           2.2% 17,759,710$              -0.5% 17,846,316$           -12.6% 20,425,644$           
23 Total MCH  Revenues (All revenues including fees, block grant, etc.)    

23a        WIC Revenues 1,085,348$             -3.7% 1,127,335$                3.7% 1,087,008$             1.0% 1,076,197$             
23b        MCH Clinics Revenues 909,383$                -5.8% 964,883$                   -0.4% 968,901$                3.6% 935,316$                
23c        MCH Community Programs Revenues 58,000$                  -0.2% 58,117$                    0.4% 57,885$                  14.8% 50,426$                  
23d       All Other MCH Revenues    

      MCH Revenues Non-Itemized Total 2,052,731$             -4.5% 2,150,335$                1.7% 2,113,794$             2.5% 2,061,939$             
24 Total Prevention Revenues (including Breakout accts below)    

24a         Tobacco Control & Prevention Revenues 113,678$                0.5% 113,120$                   4.6% 108,144$                -6.1% 115,186$                
24b          Injury Prevention Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
24c          Chronic Disease Prevention Revenues 5,622$                    -71.9% 19,998$                    64.5% 12,154$                  #DIV/0! -$                        
24d          Communicable Diseases Prevention Revenues 
24d-1                HIV/AIDS Prevention Revenues 523,762$                -0.9% 528,384$                   -25.0% 704,627$                -6.8% 756,432$                
24d-2                STDs Prevention Revenues 144,267$                -1.0% 145,704$                   -11.6% 164,831$                8.7% 151,682$                
24d-3                TB  Prevention Revenues 81,590$                  7.1% 76,155$                    -63.2% 207,017$                11.6% 185,444$                
24d-4                 Immunizations Revenues 398,297$                -16.8% 478,441$                   -15.8% 568,214$                -4.3% 593,751$                
24d-5                 All Other Communicable Disease Prevention Revenues Not Itemized Above 1,372$                    -65.3% 3,959$                      -53.0% 8,430$                    -43.9% 15,037$                  

              Communicable Disease Prevention Revenues Non-Itemized Total 1,149,288$             -6.8% 1,232,643$                -25.4% 1,653,119$             -2.9% 1,702,346$             
             All Other Prevention Categories Not Itemized Above   

24e         All Prevention Revenues Non-Itemized Total 1,268,588$             -7.1% 1,365,761$                -23.0% 1,773,417$             -2.4% 1,817,532$             
25 Interest Revenues -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
26 One-time revenues 37,838$                  -14.9% 44,458$                    0.0% 44,445$                  1222.8% 3,360$                    
27 Dedicated Revenues 747,545$                -9.7% 827,765$                   9.2% 757,856$                7.8% 703,252$                

 Expenditures
28 Salaries & Wages Expenditures 9,803,867$             -0.6% 9,861,088$                -6.1% 10,500,051$           -2.1% 10,723,178$           
29 Fringe Benefits Expenditures 3,794,135$             1.3% 3,745,285$                -0.2% 3,752,437$             0.4% 3,738,364$             
30 Equipment Expenditures 186,107$                39.6% 133,329$                   7.2% 124,384$                -47.3% 235,850$                

Financial

Financial and Other Related Indicators Page 40



Item # Local Public Health Agency (LPHA) Financial Data Fiscal Year 13

% Change from 

Previous 

Period

Fiscal Year 12
% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 11

% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 10

31 Contractual Services Expenditures 713,460$                56.5% 455,998$                   3.0% 442,914$                -25.3% 592,794$                
32 Capital Expenditures 212,624$                -32.7% 315,930$                   270.1% 85,369$                  -40.1% 142,588$                
33 Other Expenditures 4,105,219$             146.3% 1,666,570$                -8.2% 1,815,398$             -3.5% 1,880,912$             
34 Total Expenditures 18,815,411$           16.3% 16,178,200$              -3.2% 16,720,552$           -3.4% 17,313,687$           
35 Budgeted Expenditures 21,142,496$           6.3% 19,881,851$              1.5% 19,588,095$           -11.2% 22,057,357$           

 Expenditures Breakout
36 Program Expenditures 17,536,491$           17.1% 14,975,878$              -3.2% 15,477,918$           -3.6% 16,062,549$           
37 Administrative Expenditures 1,278,920$             6.4% 1,202,322$                -3.2% 1,242,634$             -0.7% 1,251,138$             
38 Total Prevention  Expenditures (Including Breakout accounts below)    

38a        Tobacco Control & Prevention Expenditures 113,678$                0.5% 113,120$                   4.6% 108,144$                -6.1% 115,186$                
38b         Injury Prevention Expenditures -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
38c         Chronic Diseases Prevention Expenditures 155,979$                1.3% 154,051$                   -41.9% 265,335$                4.2% 254,521$                
38d         Communicable Diseases Prevention Expenditures 
38d-1               HIV/AIDS Prevention Expenditures 509,749$                -16.3% 609,084$                   -13.6% 704,627$                -6.8% 756,432$                
38d-2               STDs Prevention Expenditures 550,003$                -5.0% 578,952$                   -7.8% 627,968$                -9.0% 690,360$                
38d-3               TB Expenditures 487,010$                1.9% 477,718$                   -7.2% 514,590$                -10.0% 571,967$                
38d-4               Immunizations Expenditures 1,034,274$             -5.1% 1,089,493$                0.9% 1,080,201$             6.0% 1,019,339$             
38d-5              All Other Communicable Disease Prevention Expenditures Not Included Above 325,160$                -47.1% 614,577$                   3.6% 593,015$                23.5% 480,181$                

             Communicable Disease Prevention Expenditures Non-Itemized Total 2,906,197$             -13.8% 3,369,824$                -4.3% 3,520,401$             0.1% 3,518,279$             
38e       All Other  Prevention  Expenditure Categories Not Included Above -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        

39 Total Laboratory Expenditures (including Breakout accts below)    
39a        On-Site  Expenditures -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
39b        Contract (including state)  Expenditures 85,670$                  -5.8% 90,911$                    -11.0% 102,101$                -19.5% 126,823$                

40 Oral Health Expenditures -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
41 Environmental Health Expenditures 4,772,942$             -1.6% 4,848,375$                -5.0% 5,104,157$             0.7% 5,066,321$             
42 Immunization Expenditures 1,034,274$             -5.1% 1,089,493$                0.9% 1,080,201$             6.0% 1,019,339$             
43 Emergency Preparedness Expenditures 1,277,685$             7.0% 1,194,201$                17.5% 1,016,088$             -30.0% 1,450,746$             
44 Home Health Expenditures -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
45 Medical Services Expenditures 5,876$                    -43.2% 10,342$                    28.1% 8,075$                    -8.2% 8,800$                    
46 Pharmacy Expenditures 226,789$                25.6% 180,620$                   35.7% 133,066$                -1.4% 134,967$                
47 Total MCH Expenditures (including Breakout accounts below)    

47a        WIC Expenditures 1,252,623$             -0.3% 1,256,628$                0.5% 1,250,061$             -0.4% 1,255,494$             
47b         MCH Clinics Expenditures 986,466$                -5.0% 1,038,129$                0.5% 1,032,832$             1.4% 1,018,322$             
47c         MCH Community Programs Expenditures 414,218$                -4.2% 432,216$                   4.3% 414,223$                -11.1% 465,839$                
47d        All other MCH  Expenditures Not Itemized Above -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
48e MCH ExpendituresNon-Itemized Total 2,653,306$             -2.7% 2,726,973$                1.1% 2,697,116$             -1.6% 2,739,655$             

48 Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Expenditures 127,721$                136,065$                   71.5% 79,353$                  191.1% 27,260$                  
49 School Health Expenditures -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        
50 Expenditures Targeted to Disparity Identification/Elimination -$                        -$                           -$                         -$                        

 Other Financial and Related Indicators
51 General Fund Balance 2,811,464$             -28.2% 3,916,042$                4.6% 3,745,034$             17.2% 3,194,988$             
52 Prior Period General Fund Balance 3,916,042$             4.6% 3,745,034$                17.2% 3,194,988$             60.8% 1,987,434$             
53 Patient Services (Including Oral Health) Accounts Receivable (A/R)    
54 Prior Fiscal Year End Total Patient and Oral Health Services Revenues    
55 Patient Services (Including Oral Health) Accounts Receivable Written-off 155,715$                41.0% 110,442$                   1.0% 109,303$                -9.2% 120,380$                
56 # of Programs with Expenditures that Exceed Dedicated or Self-generated Revenues 18 5.9% 17 0.0% 17 0.0% 17
57 Total # of Agency Programs 22 0.0% 22 -4.3% 23 0.0% 23
58 # of Staff with Fiscal Responsibilities 3 0.0% 3 0.0% 3 0.0% 3
59  # of Fiscal Staff with Public Health Financial Management Competencies 3 0.0% 3 0.0% 3 0.0% 3
60 Local Agency FTE 156.72 -5.3% 165.48 -0.7% 166.68 -11.0% 187.27
61 Leave Liability (days) 4783 -6.7% 5127 -5.8% 5443 -0.7% 5484
62 # of Programs with Cost Analysis 1 0.0% 1 0.0% 1 0.0% 1

63 Total Population 432,432 0.6% 429,908 1.1% 425,400 0.9% 421,407
64 Population < 18  111,679 -0.5% 112,234 -1.6% 114,052
65 Population > 65  59,340 6.6% 55,678 5.3% 52,889
66 % Minority Population  34.9%  23.1%
67 Jurisdiction's Poverty Rate  18.3% 39.7% 13.1% -17.1% 15.8%
68 % Medicaid  14.3% -0.5% 14.4% 3.6% 13.9%
69 % of Jurisdiction's Population Uninsured  20.6% -8.0% 22.4% 0.4% 22.3%
70 Median Population Age  37.4 0.5% 37.2 0.5% 37

STOP:NO DATA INPUT REQUIRED BELOW THIS LINE

Revenue Ratios

1 Revenues per Capita 40.96$                    7.7% 38.03$                      -6.3% 40.60$                    -7.6% 43.95$                    

Demographic

Financial and Other Related Indicators Page 41



Item # Local Public Health Agency (LPHA) Financial Data Fiscal Year 13

% Change from 

Previous 

Period

Fiscal Year 12
% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 11

% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 10

   (Total Revenues/Population)
2 Federal Revenues as % of Total Revenues 32.0% -7.1% 34.5% 6.8% 32.3% -0.7% 32.5%

   (Federal Revenues/Total Revenues)
3 State Revenues as % of Total Revenues 4.8% -32.4% 7.1% 8.6% 6.5% -8.9% 7.2%

   (State Revenues/Total Revenues)
4 Local (County/City) Revenues as % of Total Revenues 48.7% 9.8% 44.3% -6.5% 47.4% 2.5% 46.3%

   (County/City) Revenues/Total Revenues)
5 Local Dedicated Public Health Property Tax Revenue as % of Total Revenues        

   (County/City) Special Tax Revenues/Total Revenues)
6 Medicaid Revenues as % of Total Revenues 0.01% -89.8% 0.1% -72.1% 0.3% 73.8% 0.2%

   (Medicaid Revenues/Total Revenues)
7 Medicare Revenues as % of Total Revenues     0.0% -89.2% 0.0%

   (Medicare Revenues/Total Revenues)
8 Total Grant Revenues as a % of Total Revenues 36.8% -11.4% 41.6% 7.1% 38.8% -2.2% 39.7%

   (Grant Revenues/Total Revenues)
9 Medical Services Revenues as a % of Total Revenues        

   (Medical Services Revenues/Total Revenues)
10 Total Fees Collected as a % of Total Revenues 14.3% 2.9% 13.9% 4.0% 13.3% -2.4% 13.7%

 (Total Patient, Environmental Health, Vital Statistics, Other Fees  Collected /Total Revenues)

11 Total Home Health Revenue as % of Total Revenues        
   (Total Home Health Revenue/Total Revenues)

12 Other Revenues as % of Total Revenues 0.0% -45.3% 0.0% 1835.8% 0.0% -99.1% 0.2%
   (Other Revenue/Total Revenues)

13 Dedicated Revenues  as % of Total Revenues 4.2% -16.6% 5.1% 15.4% 4.4% 15.6% 3.8%
   (Dedicated Revenues/Total Revenues)

14 Total Margin -6.2% * 1.0% -67.2% 3.2% -51.2% 6.5%
   (Total Revenues - Total Expenditures)/Total Revenues

15 Operating Surplus or Deficit (1,104,577)$             * 171,007$                   -68.9% 550,046$                -54.4% 1,207,541$             
   (Total Revenues - Total Expenses)

16 Operating Ratio 106.2% 7.4% 99.0% 2.2% 96.8% 3.6% 93.5%
   (Total Expenses/Total Revenues)

17 One Time Revenues as a % of Total Revenues 0.2% -21.4% 0.3% 5.7% 0.3% 1318.6% 0.0%
   (One Time Revenues/Total Revenues)

18 Budgeted Revenues as % of Total Revenues 102.5% -5.7% 108.6% 5.1% 103.3% -6.3% 110.3%
   (Budgeted Revenues /Total Revenues)

19 Days in Patient Services Accounts Receivables #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
    (Patient Services Accounts Receivables Balance-including Oral Health / (Prior Fiscal Year End 

Total Revenue for Patient and Oral Health Services / 365 days)

20
Patient Services-Including Oral Health-Accounts Receivables Written Off as a % of Total Patient 

Services-including Oral Health-Revenues Collected
82.0% 89.1% 43.4% 39.1% 31.2% 9.1% 28.6%

   (Accounts Receivables Written Off / Total Patient  Services Revenues Collected)

21 General Fund Balance as a % of Total Revenues 15.9% -33.7% 24.0% 10.5% 21.7% 25.7% 17.3%
   (General Fund Balance/Total Revenues)
% Change in General Fund Balance -28.2% 4.6% 17.2% 60.8%
(Current FY General Fund Balance - Prior FY General Fund Balance) / Prior FY Fund Balance)

22 Total Environmental Health Revenues as a % of Total Revenues 10.5% 7.7% 9.8% 2.0% 9.6% -7.4% 10.3%
   (Total Environmental Health Revenue/Total Revenues)

23 Total Oral Health Revenues as a % of Total Revenues        
   (Total Oral Health Revenues/Total Revenues)

24 Total Immunization Revenues as a % of Total Revenues 2.2% -27.4% 3.1% -5.8% 3.3% 2.1% 3.2%
   (Total Immunization Revenues/Total Revenues)

25 3rd Party Payer Revenues as a % of Total Revenues 0.0% -77.3% 0.2% -59.0% 0.4% 100.2% 0.2%
(Total 3rd Party Revenues/Total Revenues)

26 Entrepreneurship Revenues as % of Total Revenues 0.2% 708.9% 0.0% #VALUE!    
   (Entrepreneurship Revenues/Total Revenues)

Expenditure Ratios
27 Expenditures per Capita $43.51 15.6% $37.63 -4.3% $39.31 -4.3% $41.09

   (Total Expenditures/Population)
28 Employees per 1,000 Population 0.36 -5.8% 0.38 -1.8% 0.39 -11.8% 0.44

   (Number of Full Time Employees/(Population/1000) )
29 Fringe Benefits as a % of Salaries and Wages 38.7% 1.9% 38.0% 6.3% 35.7% 2.5% 34.9%

   (Total Fringe Benefits / (Total Salaries + Wages) )
30 Salaries as a % of Total Expenditures 52.1% -14.5% 61.0% -2.9% 62.8% 1.4% 61.9%

   (Total Salaries) / Total Expenditures)
31 Administrative Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 6.8% -8.5% 7.4% 0.0% 7.4% 2.8% 7.2%

   (Administrative Expenditures/Total Expenditures)
32 Program Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 93.20% 0.7% 92.57% 0.0% 92.57% -0.2% 92.77%

   (Program  Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

Financial and Other Related Indicators Page 42



Item # Local Public Health Agency (LPHA) Financial Data Fiscal Year 13

% Change from 

Previous 

Period

Fiscal Year 12
% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 11

% Change from 

Previous Period
Fiscal Year 10

33 Average Accumulated Employee Leave Liability - Days 30.52                      -1.5% 30.98                        -5.1% 32.66                      11.5% 29.28                      
   (Total Accumulated Employee Leave Liability / Total FTE)

34 Laboratory Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 0.5% -19.0% 0.6% -8.0% 0.6% -16.6% 0.7%
   (Laboratory Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

35 Emergency Preparedness Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 6.8% -8.0% 7.4% 21.5% 6.1% -27.5% 8.4%
   (Emergency Preparedness Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

36 Chronic Diseases Prevention Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 0.8% -12.9% 1.0% -40.0% 1.6% 7.9% 1.5%
   (Chronic Diseases Prevention Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

37 Home Health Expenditures as a % to Home Health Revenue        
   (Home Health Expenditures/Total Home Health Revenues)

38 Medical Services Expenditures as a % of Total Expenditures 0.0% -51.1% 0.1% 32.4% 0.0% -5.0% 0.1%
   (Medical Services Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

39 Pharmacy Expenditures as a % of Total Expenditures 1.2% 8.0% 1.1% 40.3% 0.8% 2.1% 0.8%
   (Pharmacy Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

40 Environmental Health Expenditures as a % of Total Expenditures 25.4% -15.4% 30.0% -1.8% 30.5% 4.3% 29.3%
   (Environmental Health Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

41 Oral Health Expenditures as a % of Total Expenditures        
   (Oral Health Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

42 Immunization Expenditures as a % of Total Expenditures 5.5% -18.4% 6.7% 4.2% 6.5% 9.7% 5.9%
   (Immunization Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

43 Budgeted Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 112.4% -8.6% 122.9% 4.9% 117.1% -8.0% 127.4%
   (Budgeted Expenditures/Total Expenditures)

44 % of Fiscal Staff with Public Health Financial Competencies 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%
   (# of Fiscal Staff with PH Financial Competencies/# of Fiscal Staff with Responsibilities)

45 % of Programs with Expenditures that Exceed Dedicated + Self-generated  Revenues 81.8% 5.9% 77.3% 4.5% 73.9% 0.0% 73.9%
   ( (# of Programs with Expenditures that Exceed Dedicated + Self-generated Revenues) /Total 

Number of Programs)
46 % of Programs w/Completed Cost Analysis 4.5% 0.0% 4.5% 4.5% 4.3% 0.0% 4.3%

   ( # of Programs w/Completed Cost Analysis/Total Number of Programs)
47 % of Total Expenditures Targeted to Health Disparities Identification and Elimination        

    (Health Disparities Identification and Elimination Expenditures / Total Expenditures)

Prevention Ratios

48 Prevention Revenues as % of Total Revenues 7.2% -14.3% 8.4% -18.6% 10.3% 4.6% 9.8%
     (Prevention Revenues / Total Revenues)

49 Prevention Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 16.9% -24.9% 22.5% -3.5% 23.3% 3.7% 22.5%

     (Prevention Expenditures / Total Expenditures)
50 Communicable Disease Prevention Revenues as % of Total Revenues 6.1% -19.8% 7.6% -22.9% 9.9% 0.6% 9.8%

  (Communicable Disease Prevention Revenues / Total Revenues)
51 Communicable Disease Prevention Expenditures as % of Total Expenditures 15.4% -25.8% 20.8% -1.1% 21.1% 3.6% 20.3%

  (Communicable Disease Prevention Expenditures / Total Expenditures)

Community Statistics

52 Population 432,432 0.6% 429,908 1.1% 425,400 0.9% 421,407
53 Median Population Age   37 0.5% 37 0.5% 37
54 % of Population under 18   26.0% -1.5% 26.4% -2.5% 27.1%

(Number in Population < 18/County Population)
55 % of Population over 65   13.8% 5.5% 13.1% 4.3% 12.6%

     (Number in Population > 65/County Population)
56 % Population Below Poverty   18.3% 39.7% 13.1% -17.1% 15.8%

     (Population Below Poverty / Jurisdiction's Population from the US Census)
57 % Population Insured by Medicaid   14.3% -0.5% 14.4% 3.6% 13.9%

     (Population Insured by Medicaid / Jurisdiction's Population from the US Census)
58 % Uninsured Population   20.6% -8.0% 22.4% 0.4% 22.3%

     (Population Uninsured / Jurisdiction's Population from the US Census)

* % change calculation NOT APPROPRIATE when comparing current to prior period per deficit (negative) value.

Financial and Other Related Indicators Page 43



D11Cell:

Item 1a: Increase in Washoe County general revenue allocation is to cover a portion of WCHDs indirect costsComment:

D17Cell:

State revenues from Item 2: State revenue is limited to "smog check" fees restricted for use by AQM for special projectsComment:

D19Cell:

Medicaid and other Item 4: Third-party payer revenue has declined significantly over a four-year periodComment:

D24Cell:

Item 8a: Patient fees have declined significantly over a four-year periodComment:

D25Cell:

Item 8b: Increase in fee revenue is an indicator of better cost recovery or an increase in permitting activityComment:

D40Cell:

Item 17: Declining immunization revenues signal a need for better cost recovery from patients and third-party payersComment:

D72Cell:

Item 30: Equipment expenditures are increasing during a period of operating deficitComment:

D81Cell:

Item 37: Administrative costs did not increase significantly despite aComment:

17.1% increase in program expenditures

D103Cell:

Item 46: Drug costs have increased significantly  Comment:

D115Cell:

Item 51: WARNING -  general fund balance is decliningComment:

D119Cell:

Item 55: WARNING - write-offs are excessively high and increasingComment:

D120Cell:

WARNING: negative trendComment:

D125Cell:

Item 61: Reductions in employee vacation and sick leave liability are a positive trendComment:

D126Cell:

WCHD should conduct Item 62: WCHD has nto conducted periodic cost analyses on all agency programsComment:

D168Cell:

Item 15: WARNING - WCHD has an operating deficitComment:

D204Cell:

Item 31: Declining  administrative expenditures is a positive trendComment:

D228Cell:

Item 43: WCHD under budget expenditures are due to unfilled staff vacanciesComment:

Financial and Other Related Indicators Page 44



PUBLIC HEALTH FINANCIAL RATIOS DATA DICTIONARY (updated Oct 2009)

Agency Program
Those programs with appropriated funding. Examples include: Health Disparity, Home Health Care, Environmental 

Health, Maternal & Child Health Care, Communicable Diseases, Public Health Preparedness, etc.

All fees collected from customers in the clinical, primary care, immunization, and communicable diseases programs , 

excluding fees collected in Environmental Health and Vital Statistics 

Examples include: Flu shots, family planning, communicable disease services, immunizations, and primary care 

services. Third party insurance payments are not included in this category. 

Communicable Diseases
2

Any condition which is transmitted directly or indirectly to a person from an infected person or animal through the 

agency of an intermediate animal, host, or vector, or through the inanimate environment. Communicable diseases 

commonly identified by PHDs appear on the CDC’s National Notifiable Infectious Disease List – TB, Anthrax, 

Botulism, STDs, HEP A, Hep B, Hep C HIV, AIDS, etc.  PHDs assist community health providers w/reporting, 

providing screening services and limited treatment for some of the reportable diseases.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year usually located in the Budget office or the Finance 

& Accounting office.   

Community Health 

Outcomes
3

Sometimes referred to as results of the health system; these are indicators of health status, risk reduction, and quality of 

life enhancement for a specific group of people (e.g., location, race, ethnicity, age, occupation, or other common bonds). 

Outcomes are long-term objectives that define optimal, measurable future levels of health status, maximum levels of 

disease, injury, or dysfunction; or prevalence of risk factors. 

N/A

County Special Tax Levy The money received from a dedicated millage for public health, requires authorized language that calls for this levy.  

County Government 

Revenues 

Revenue originating from local government, e.g. inside millage, allocations from School Boards or the Board of County 

Commissioners, taxing districts, property tax millage.
From A2 on Annual Financial Reports

Customer
4 In public health, the customer is defined as the community, the client, the citizenry of the country/state /county, and 

other business and industry.
 LPHD reports on number of customers and services.

Total Dental Revenues All revenues generated by Public Dental Health Programs

Expenditures  An accounting term for amounts that are paid to deliver services or make purchases related to public health programs. N/A

Federal Revenues  
All income received from the federal government, excluding Medicaid/Medicare reimbursements. Examples of federal 

agencies allocating funds for public health services include CDC, DHHS, Dept of Homeland Security, etc. 

Official Accounting records from Budget and Finance & Accounting Dept., local federal program office, 

and/or State Public Health Office.

Environmental Health
5 The application of multiple scientific disciplines to investigate the relationship between environmental factors and 

human health, and to prevent adverse health events that result from environmental exposures.
N/A

Environmental Health Total 

Fees 

All fees generated by the Environmental Health Department of the LPHD.  Environmental Health Fees may include 

some of the following:  inspecting restaurants, local ordinances and public health nuisance complaints, septic tanks, 

private & public water wells, tattoo parlors, biohazard waste, public swimming pools, enforcement fines/penalties, and 

others, as applicable.

Official Accounting Records, from the LPHD Environmental Health program and/or State Public Health 

Office.

Chronic Diseases
1

In the United States, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) suggest that chronic diseases are generally 

characterized by uncertain etiology, multiple risk factors, a long latency period, a prolonged course of illness, non-

contagious origin, functional impairment or disability, and in most cases, incurability. CDC defines a chronic disease as 

one that, in general terms, has a prolonged course, that does not resolve spontaneously, and for which a complete cure is 

rarely achieved. Examples: cardiovascular disease, diabetes, arthritis and other musculo-skeletal diseases, cancers, 

chronic lung diseases, and chronic neurological disorders.

Official accounting records located within the LPHD Finance & Accounting office (or local program 

office and/or state health office).

Clinical and Immunization 

(Total Fees) 

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –usually located in the Budget office or the Finance 

& Accounting office.

Cost Analysis The review and evaluation of each element of cost in a specific activity or program. http://bookstore.phf.org/product_info.php?products_id=227

Budget A plan used to allocate revenues and expenditures to accomplish an organization's objectives for a given period of time. 
LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

office.
Budgeted Revenues 

Received 
The funds that an organization expects to receive in a budget period according to the budget.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

office.

Administrative Expenditures

Operating expenses to perform support functions other than those directly linked to public health services or programs. 

Categories include: Health Officer/Agency Director, Non-clinical Administrative & Fiscal Services, Legal, Policy & 

Evaluation Strategic Planning, Government Relations, Library, Information Technology and Communications & 

Marketing.  This category does not include the costs associated with eligibility determination services, cashiering, 

medical records, laboratories, or construction. 

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

office.

Annual Operating Budget 

(Total) 
A fiscal plan for providing programs and services for a single year.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

office.

Term Definition Potential Data Sources

Accounts Receivables Claims held against all third party payors for money owed to the Local Public Health Department.
Location within Local Public Health Dept. (LPHD) that is responsible for maintaining client and third 

party payor accounts and funds due.

Page 45

http://bookstore.phf.org/product_info.php?products_id=227


Term Definition Potential Data Sources

Accounts Receivables Claims held against all third party payors for money owed to the Local Public Health Department.
Location within Local Public Health Dept. (LPHD) that is responsible for maintaining client and third 

party payor accounts and funds due.
Financial Management

6

Specifying and obtaining objectives, safeguarding and making optimum use of resources, achieving aims and enabling 

something to happen according to planned budgets. Tonge, R. 1993. Financial Management, Managing the New Public 

Services. D. Farnham and S. Horton (eds). Macmillan, Bassingstoke, Hampshire. p. 78-98.

N/A

Fringe Benefits 

Expenditures

Benefits to an employee paid for by the agency. Examples: group health, dental, life insurance; and contributions to 

employee retirement. 
LPHD accounting records and/or Human Resources office

Grants (Block)
Federal funds distributed to State or Local Public Health Departments with general provisions on the use of the funds 

(Examples:  Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, Maternal and Child Health Block Grants, etc.)

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year– within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

office.

Home Health Total 

Revenues 
All revenues received from Home Health Care Programs. (Section 4 on AFR.) Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and State Public Health Office.

Immunizations 

Expenditures, Total
Total immunization expenditures, includes vaccines, staff salaries, medical supplies

Immunizations Revenues, 

Total
All revenues generated from immunization services.  

Laboratory Expenditures 

(Total) 

The sum of all expenditures for laboratory tests, internal and external, and all expenditures associated with the operation 

of a laboratory, such as salaries for laboratory personnel.
LPHD Budget, laboratory, Finance and Accounting Dept, and State Public Health Office.

Medicaid
A federal/state health insurance program for people who have very limited incomes and that meet certain criteria 

(pregnant, child, disabled or elderly, etc.).
N/A

Millage Rate
13 The millage rate (also known as the tax rate) is a figure applied to the value of property to calculate property tax 

liability. One "mill" is one dollar of tax on every thousand dollars of taxable value. 

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

department, Administration, local county government. 

Medical Services 

Expenditures

All expenditures associated with the direct provision of medical or clinical services to patients of the LPHA, including 

follow-up care and nurse case management.  Does not include outreach services, surveillance activities, or partner 

notification.

Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and State 

Public Health Office.

Medical Services Revenues
All revenue generated through the direct provision of medical or clinical services to patients of the LPHA, including 

follow-up care and case management.  Does not include outreach services, surveillance activities, or partner notification.

Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and State 

Public Health Office.

Medicare
A federal health insurance program for people 65 or older, disabled, with end-stage kidney disease, and persons eligible 

due to a deceased family member.  
N/A

Medicare Revenues  All income received from Medicare including Medicare HMO payments.
LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

department, and State Public Health Office

Median Population Age
12 The age which divides the population into two equal-size groups, one of which is younger and the other older than the 

median.
US Census http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2006-alldata.html

Medicaid Revenues  
All income received from Medicaid including Medicaid HMO capitation and any “bill-aboves” paid by a Medicaid 

HMO.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

Dpt., and State Public Health Office.

Home Health Care
9 Health care services provided in the home on a part-time basis for the treatment of an illness or injury, and covered by 

Medicare only if skilled care is needed and required on an intermittent or part-time basis.
LPHD Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and State Public Health Office.

Maternal & Child Health 

Programs
11

Programs focused on improving the health of mothers and children. Includes: family planning, prenatal counseling and 

referral, well child services, childhood immunization, lead screening, MCH home visiting/case management, 

parent/child health promotion and education, child care health consultation, healthy start, WIC and nutrition programs 

for children and pregnant women, and adolescent health.

LPHD Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept,  Program offices, and State Public Health Office

Grant Revenues (Total) All revenues received from grants, includes categorical, solicited, and block grants. 
LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

Dpt.

Health Disparity Programs
8  

Programs focused on addressing differences in health status among distinct segments of the population including 

differences that occur by gender, race or ethnicity, education or income, disability, or living in various geographic 

localities.

LPHD Administration, Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and the State Public 

Health Office.

General Fund Balance 
Cumulative funds, reflected in the accounting system, retained after all expenditures and other liabilities have been paid, 

and all revenue has been recorded.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year – (within Budget office or the Finance & 

Accounting office).

Grants (Solicited)

Typically used to describe amounts of money solicited and received by an organization or reimbursed to an organization 

for a specific purpose and identified in a formal award notice or agreement from grantor for services. (Examples:  

Robert Wood Johnson grants, HRSA Grants, Victims of Criminal Acts Grants, etc.)

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

Dept.

Fiscal Year (FY) 

The accounting period used for calculating annual financial information. A fiscal year can start with any month but 

extends for a 12 month period. For example, the federal government fiscal year begins on October 1
st
 and ends on 

September 30
th

.

N/A

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
7

A measure of staffing levels calculated by dividing the total number of part-time work hours at a facility by the length of 

the normal full-time work week, and adding the resulting number to the number of full-time persons employed at the 

facility. An FTE equals 2080 hours.

LPHD Budget office, Administration Dept., and/or Human Resources office

Page 46

http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2006-alldata.html


Term Definition Potential Data Sources

Accounts Receivables Claims held against all third party payors for money owed to the Local Public Health Department.
Location within Local Public Health Dept. (LPHD) that is responsible for maintaining client and third 

party payor accounts and funds due.

Other Agency Venture 

Generated Revenues  

Examples include Wellness programs, mini course on grant writing offered by the PHD for a fee, training, contracts that 

pay the agency for public health services, etc.
Administration, Budget, Finance & Accounting Dept, local grant office, and State Public Health Office.

Pharmacy Expenditures

The sum of all expenditures for pharmacy products, internal and external, and all expenditures associated with the 

operation of a pharmacy, such as salaries for pharmacy personnel. (Enter values for immunization revenues and 

expenditures in immunization revenue and expenditure fields.)

LPHD Budget, pharmacy, Finance and Accounting Dept, and State Public Health Office.

Population Who Are Age 65 

or Older
Total number of people living under the jurisdiction of the local health department who are age 65 or older. US Census - http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2007-agesex.html

Salary and Wages 

Expenditures  

                                   

State Revenues 

All income received through allocations, grants, and/or contracts with State government agencies, including the State 

Department of Health, Environmental Protection (DEP), Community Affairs (DCA), State of Emergency Preparedness, 

Medical Disability-BCMH, etc.

Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, and State Public Health Office.

Tax Revenues Revenues received from the county as a result of a special public health taxing district. Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, and local county government.

Third Party Revenues 

(Total)
All revenues collected from third party insurers such as Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Aetna, HMOs, etc. Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept.

Total Fees A charge that is collected for services rendered.

Collected for Medical 

Services
All fees collected for medical services not covered by Medicare and Medicaid, includes Home Health fees collected 

Uninsured Individuals
Number of individuals living under the jurisdiction of the Local Public Health Department who do not have health 

insurance.

Revenues (Total) All money and funding received from all sources. Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept.

This includes gross salaries and wages for all staff, including contractors, for the fiscal year, before deductions, and also 

excludes employee benefits paid for by the employing agency. Also excluded are lump sums paid for contracted 

services.

Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept.

Total Fees, Other  
The sum of all fees from any other sources than those included in the categories identified in the SS, item numbers 16 to 

19, such as regulatory fees, inspection fees, fee for service payments, and contracts or memorandum of agreements 
Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept.

Public Health Preparedness 

Expenditures 

Funds used for planning, exercises and/or response related to public health emergencies such as hurricanes and other 

natural disaster preparedness and response, e.g. includes activities funded by Pandemic Influenza grants and  natural 

disaster preparedness and response.

Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program offices, and State 

Public Health Office.

Restricted Revenues 
Revenue legally reserved for specific purposes and includes federal and state funding for certain programs- also referred 

to as categorical funds. Examples:  WIC, Family Planning, Healthy Start, Emergency Preparedness, Grants, & 

Administration, official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, Local Program 

offices, grant and contract managers, and State Public Health Office.

Priority Programs 
Those programs identified or established by the local public health department, usually as the results of a community 

health assessment process, as having precedence and/or urgency over other programs.
Administration, strategic plans, and/or State Public Health Office.

Public Health
15

Public Health is the set of organized community efforts that fulfill society's interest in assuring conditions in which 

people can be healthy by applying scientific and technical knowledge to prevent disease and promote health. The goal of 

public health is to improve the health status of the population, with careful attention to and respect for the perspectives 

and values of the diverse members of the community being served. There is a public health system in each community 

defined as the wide range of public, private and voluntary organizations such as governmental agencies, academia, 

health care providers, hospitals, community-based organizations, associations, businesses and individuals. The unique 

function of governmental public health agencies within this broad infrastructure framework is to see that all vital system 

elements are in place; that all core functions and the ten essential services are coordinated; and that the mission of 

improving the health of the community is adequately addressed, using if necessary, the regulatory powers of the state.

N/A

Population (Total) Total number of people living under the jurisdiction of the local health department. US Census - http://www.census.gov/popest/counties

Population Under 18 Years 

Old
Total number of people living under the jurisdiction of the local health department who are under 18 years old. US Census - http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2007-agesex.html

Other Revenues (Total) 

Revenues from any sources other than those included in the categories identified in the spreadsheet under Sources of 

Revenue- item numbers 11-19.  For example federal, state, and local revenues; Medicaid and Medicare revenues; and 

Fees would not be included under “Other Revenues.” 

Administration, Budget, Finance & Accounting Dept, local grant office, and State Public Health Office.

Outcome Measure 

An indicator that measures the effect of a program service, or department in achieving desired results. Outcome 

measures must be clear, cost effective, relevant, significant, practical, verifiable, linked to funding, result based and 

reflective of the mission or goals.

State Public Health Office, quality assurance department, Administration, and strategic plans

One-Time Revenues 
Money that comes into an account from a non-repeating source and has a duration period of one year. Grants for periods 

of more than one year are not included in this category.

LPHD official accounting records for the Fiscal Year –within Budget office or the Finance & Accounting 

Dpt. and State Public Health Office.

Page 47

http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2007-agesex.html
http://www.census.gov/popest/counties
http://www.census.gov/popest/counties/asrh/CC-EST2007-agesex.html


Term Definition Potential Data Sources

Accounts Receivables Claims held against all third party payors for money owed to the Local Public Health Department.
Location within Local Public Health Dept. (LPHD) that is responsible for maintaining client and third 

party payor accounts and funds due.Vital Statistics (Total Fees) 
The sum of all fees collected from the issuance of birth and death certificates including ancillary fees such as expedited 

fee, plastic pouch fee, and wallet size. 
Official accounting records from Budget, Finance and Accounting Dept, and/or vital statistics office.

Sources:

1. National Health Public Partnership. (2001) Preventing Chronic Disease: A Strategic Framework. Accessed on July 10, 2008. From: http://www.dhs.vic.gov.au/nphp/publications/strategies/chrondis-bgpaper.pdf 
2. NA. Central Piedmont Community College. Definition of Communicable Diseases. Accessed July 5, 2008. From: http://inside.cpcc.edu/P&PManual/ppm6-0/ppm6o00.htm
3. Turnock, B., (2004). Public Health What It Is and How It Works (3

rd
 ed.), 398. Chicago: Jones and Bartlett Publishers.

4. Dever, A. (1997). Improving Health Outcomes in Public Health Practice: Strategy and Methods, 72. Gaithersburg, MD. Aspen Publishers.

5. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Environmental Health Policy Committee & Risk Communication and Education Subcommittee. November 20, 1998. An Ensemble of Definitions of Environmental Health. Accessed June 28, 2008. From: http://health.gov/environment/DefinitionsofEnvHealth/ehdef2.htm
6. Tonge, R. 1993. Financial Management, Managing the New Public Services. D. Farnham and S. Horton (eds). Macmillan, Bassingstoke, Hampshire. p. 78-98.

7. Wisconsin Hospitals & Ambulatory Surgery Centers - WHA Information Center. FTE definition. Accessed June 17, 2008. From www.wisiq.com/data_resources/2004_guide/Guide04_appendix1.pdf
8. Healthy Carolinians. Eliminating Health Disparities. (nd). Accessed June 28, 2008. From: http://www.healthycarolinians.org/2010objs/elimdispar.htm
9. The Sloan Work and Family Research Network. (nd). Home Health Care definition. Accessed June 28, 2008. From: http://wfnetwork.bc.edu/glossary_template.php?term=Home%20Health%20Care,%20Definition(s)%20of
10. NJ Health Department. Budget by Funding Sources. Glossary of Terms. Accessed June 22, 2008. From: http://www.state.nj.us/health/lh/budget/glossary.pdf
11. Concepts and Definitions. Median Population Age definition. Page 3. Accessed June 28, 2009. From: www.gov.mu/portal/goc/cso/mif06/define.pdf
12. Millage rate.com. (nd). Accessed on August 11, 2008. From: http://www.millagerate.com/index.htm

13. MedicineNet.com. January 2000. Definition of Primary Care. Accessed June 25, 2008. From: http://www.medterms.com/script/main/art.asp?articlekey=5042
14. Gebbie, C. (December 2003). New York State Department of Health. Strengthening New York’s Public Health System for the 21st Century. Report of the Public Health Infrastructure Work Group to the Public Health Council. Accessed on August 10, 2008. From:http://www.health.state.ny.us/press/reports/century/phc_terms.htm

15. Siegel, J.G., Shim, J.K., (1995). Dictionary of Accounting Terms (2
nd

 ed.), p. 442. New York: Barron’s Educational Series.

Write-Off
16 Elimination of a specific customer’s account balance because of uncollectibility. Administration, Official accounting records from Finance and Accounting Dept.

Year to Date (YTD) 
A period of time starting at the beginning of the fiscal period or calendar year through the current date or the date of the 

most recent period. Common fiscal years are July to June or October through September (federal FY) 
N/A

Page 48

https://mail.abraxisbio.com/exchweb/bin/redir.asp?URL=http://www.dhs.vic.gov.au/nphp/publications/strategies/chrondis-bgpaper.pdf
http://inside.cpcc.edu/P&PManual/ppm6-0/ppm6o00.htm
http://health.gov/environment/DefinitionsofEnvHealth/ehdef2.htm
http://www.wisiq.com/data_resources/2004_guide/Guide04_appendix1.pdf
http://www.healthycarolinians.org/2010objs/elimdispar.htm
http://wfnetwork.bc.edu/glossary_template.php?term=Home%20Health%20Care,%20Definition(s)%20of
http://www.state.nj.us/health/lh/budget/glossary.pdf
http://www.gov.mu/portal/goc/cso/mif06/define.pdf
http://www.medterms.com/script/main/art.asp?articlekey=5042
http://www.health.state.ny.us/press/reports/century/phc_terms.htm


PHAB Standards and Measures Version 1.0
Documentation Selection Spreadsheet

This Documentation Selection Spreadsheet is a tool designed to assist Tribal, state, local, and territorial health departments 
manage the process of selection of documentation in the early stages of preparing for national public health department 
accreditation.  This spreadsheet is  not designed  as a document management tool or document organization tool. The use of 
this spreadsheet is optional and will not be submitted to PHAB.

This spread sheet should be used with PHAB's Standards and Measures Version 1.0 which contains the standards, measures, 
purpose, significance, required documentation, and documentation guidance. The Standards and Measures Version 1.0 is
authoritative and is in effect for applications submitted  to PHAB in the 2011 ‐2012 application period.

How to Use this Spreadsheet

 This spreadsheet has 13 tabs located at the bottom: an introduction tab (this page) and one tab corresponding to each of 
the 12 domains listed in PHAB's Standards and Measures Version 1.0.

 Refer to the Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) Standards and Measures Version 1.0 document for the official 
standards, measures, required documentation, and guidance for national public health department accreditation. 

 Locate the appropriate domain tab. The PHAB domain, standard, and measure numbers are listed in the left columns. The 
number of the required documentation for each measure is listed  in rows to the right of the measure number and are 
color coded. 

Color Coding Key:

 For each row containing a color coded required documentation item, are the following columns:

• Assigned to: The health department may wish to assign domains, standards, or measures to department staff. The 
staff person, program, or  organizational group (e.g., office, bureau, division, section, etc.) that has been assigned,  
can be noted in this column.

• Example Document Title: In these columns, the name or title of the document can be listed here. Include specific 
page numbers if applicable. At the initial phases of preparation and documentation selection, staff may want to list 
multiple documents that could serve as supporting evidence for specific documentation requirements and refine 
the list at a later time. Health departments with shared drives may choose to hyperlink the title so the document 
name directly links to the document location.

• Owner: In these columns, the department may identify the “owner” of the document (e.g., office, bureau, division,
section, program, etc.) to which the document "belongs." If the document is housed by a partner outside of the 
health department, it could be specified here. The contact name could be included. This will help identify personnel 
to include during site visit interviews, should the site visit team have questions related to the document.

• Date: In these columns, enter the date that the document was created or last updated and indicate if the 
document meets the date requirement of the measure. Some measures require specific timeframes that may be 
shorter or longer than the basic guideline of dated within five years prior to the date of submission of 
documentation to PHAB (for example, some documents must be updated annually or biennially). Exact timeframe 
requirements are specified in PHAB Standards and Measures Version 1.0. 

• Notes: The department may use these columns to make comments that may be helpful later in the process and list 
any immediate action items for staff. 

 As specified in PHAB Standards and Measures Version 1.0, health departments must submit two examples, unless 
otherwise noted in the list of required documentation or guidance for each measure. There is space for two examples in 
each domain tab. 

 Health departments can modify this spreadsheet to suit their needs. Modifications may include deleting measures that are 
not specific to their health department type (Tribal, state, or local), or re‐naming, deleting, or adding columns to more 
closely match their specific internal documentation review and selection method.

Page 49



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

1.1.1 S
1

2

3

1.1.1 T/L

1 In Progress DHO & DDs

Initial meeting 

attended with 

Renown Health 

10/28/13

2 In Progress DHO & DDs

Planning meetings 

scheduled

3 TBD

1.1.2 S
1a.

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

2

1.1.2 T/L

1a.

Not completed by 

Health District; St. 

Mary's Hospital

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

2 N/A

1.1.3 A
1 N/A

2 N/A

1.2.1 A

1

Statutes and 

regulations 441A Health District

2

HIPAA compliance 

and Permits Plus 

secure server CCHS, AHS

3

Contract with 

answering service AHS

4 TBD

1.2.2 A

1 EPI News mailing list EPHP Current mailing list

2 Sentinel ILI Training EPHP

3

Multiple examples 

eg. Mosquito 

monitoring, air 

quality monitoring, 

communicable 

disease reporting EHS, AQM, EPHP

D
O
M
A
IN
 1

St
an

d
ar
d

1
.1

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 50



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

4

Communicable 

Disease Weekly, EPI 

News, Annual CD 

Summary, Daily AQI EPHP, AQM

1.2.3 A

1

ER Dept. chief 

complaints, 

ambulance chief 

complaint data, OTC 

medications 

purchased, school 

attendance, BRFSS, 

YRBS, SIDWIS

EPHP, CCHS, 

Hospitals, REMSA, 

Schools, Pharmacies, 

State HIV, STD, Title X data CCHS

2

SIDWIS, AQS, 

BioSense

EHS, AQM, EPA, CDC ‐ 

Hospitals

1.2.4 S
1

2

1.2.4 L

1

Immunization 

Registry, NBS, UST, 

Hazardous Waste 

CCHS, EHS, EPHP, 

State

Air Quality 

Monitoring Data AQM, EPA

1.2.4 T
1

1.3.1 A

1a.

Communicable 

Disease Annual 

Summary, Outbreak 

Investigation Report, 

Complaint 

Investigations, STD 

Annual Report, HIV 

Annual Report, 

Family Planning  

Annual Report, 

Annual Air Quality 

Trends Report

AQM, CCHS, EHS, 

EPHP

1b. See Above

2

DBOH Minutes, CBOs, 

CABs, NABs

AQM, CCHS, EHS, 

EPHP

1.3.2 S

1

St
an

d
ar
d

1
.2

St
an

d
ar
d

1
.3

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 51



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

1.3.2 L

1

Website that 

provides docs. listed 

above, Community 

Calendar, EPI News, 

HIV / STD Reports to 

NNOT & PPG

AHS, AQM, CCHS, 

EHS, EPHP

1.3.2 T
1

1.4.1 A

1

Oxy Fuel Regulations 

Suspension AQM

10/24/2013 DBOH 

Meeting Minutes

STD protocol change 

related to antibiotic 

resistance CCHS 2008

1.4.2 S
1

2

1.4.2 T/L

1

Washoe County 

School District BMI 

Data Anually Past 3 

Years CCHS Annual Air Trends Report AQM Annual

2

Obesity Forum, EPI 

News CCHS, EPHP Annual Website, NDEP AQM Annual

1.4.3 S
1

2

3

4

St
an

d
ar
d

1
.4

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 52



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

2.1.1 A

1a.

Outbreak Response 

SOP Version 5.1 EPHP 2013

Air Quality 

Enforcement Policy AQM 2011

1b.

Reporting Food‐

Borne to State and 

CDC, Water‐Borne 

Outbreaks to CDC and 

EPA EPHP, EHS

Enforcement 

Activities in Permits 

Plus and AFS to EPA AQM

2.1.2 S
1

2

3

2.1.2 T/L

1

Fundamental Review, 

Potential for SNHD 

Peer Review Health District February, 2014

2

Outbreak 

Investigation AAR/IP EPHP, EHS, CCHS PRN

2.1.3 A

1

Hazmat 

Investigations EHS

Air Quality 

Investigations AQM

2.1.4 A

1

State Lab, School 

District, EPA EPHP, EHS, AQM

PM2.5 Speciation 

Study AQM 2011

2 Lab Reporting State Lab

EPA TMWRF 

Investigations AQM 2013

3 State Lab Schedule State Lab

2.1.5 A

1 Timeliness Analysis  EPHP Every 2 Years

2 NRS/NAC 441A CCHS, EPHP, EHS

2.1.6 S
1

2.2.1 A

1

TB Policy & 

Procedure CCHS

STD Outbreak 

Response Plan CCHS

2.2.2 A

1

Outbreak Response 

Plan, DEMP, HCAT Health District May, 2013

2

AQM Emergency 

Episode Plan AQM

3

School District 

Absentee Reports, 

Outbreak Response 

Plan EPHP, EHS

2.2.3 A

1

DEMP, Outbreak 

Response Plan WCHD

St
an

d
ar
d

2
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

2
.2

D
O
M
A
IN
 2 Measure

Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 53



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

2

Outbreak Inventory 

can be provided EPHP

3

Hep A 2013 Berry 

Blend  EPHP, EHS Norovirus 2012 EPHP, EHS

2.3.1 A

1

After Hours 

Answering Service All

2 Call Down List All

3

Regional EOC, 

Contract with 

Answering Service All Communicator NXT EPHP

2.3.2 A

1

State Lab, CCHS Lab, 

Vector Lab, AQM Lab

EPHP, CCHS, EHS, 

AQM

2 State Health Lab State Health Lab

3

Division 

Documentation All

2.3.3 A

1

Elements in Place / 

Needs Improvement EPHP STD ORP CCHS

2

Elements in Place / 

Needs Improvement EPHP

3 List provided to REOC Health District, REOC Resource Manager

4

Documentation of ICS 

Training  Health District

5 POD MOUs EPHP

2.3.4 A

1

NBS, Web EOC Fusion 

Server, NDEP Cleanup 

Guidance for 

Hazardous Materials 

Spills EPHP, EHS

Insight populating 

WebIZ, STD MIS CCHS

2 SNS Exercise EPHP BDS Exercise Health District, USPS

2.4.1 A

1

Redundant Comms 

including 800 MHz ‐ 

Needs Improvement Health District 

2

EPI News, Website, 

Press Releases, Info. 

Lines, Social Media Health District

3 Answering Service Health District

2.4.2 A

St
an

d
ar
d

2
.3

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 54



1

Communicator NXT & 

Reverse 911

Health District & 

REOC

Press Releases & 

Social Media Health District

Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

2

Communicator NXT 

Drills Health District

2.4.3 A

1

Hep A & Wildfire 

Smoke Impact Press 

Releases & Social 

Media Health District

2

Same & Media 

Interviews Health District

2.4.4 S
1

2

St
an

d
ar
d

2
.4 Measure

Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 55



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

3.1.1 A

1

Daily AQI, Press 

Releases AQM, PIO

Get Health Washoe 

Website CCHS

2

WCSD & NIAA Smoke 

Impact Outdoor 

Activity Guide AQM Aug‐13

3

Berry‐Blend HepA 

Outbreak EPHP May‐13

SNHD & State Health 

Partners

3.1.2 A

1 Mpowerment CCHS Jun‐13

No Health 

Improvement Plan

Preschool Wellness 

Policies CCHS 2012 ‐ 2013

No Health 

Improvement Plan

2

Team Development ‐ 

MSM CCHS

Assessments across 

19 Preschool sites CCHS

3

Group Activities ‐ 

Concert, Testing, 

Education & 

Outreach, Grant 

Report CCHS

Preschools, Healthy 

Childcare Nevada, 

ACHIEVE CCHS

3.2.1 A

1

Calendar, Website, 

AQM Newspaper 

Insert, Power Point 

Presentations EPHP, CCHS, EHS, AQM

Rotary Club, Summer 

2013

Public Health Week 

Proclamation CCHS

2 Branding Challenges

District vs. 

Department

3.2.2 A
1a. Media Policy

1b.

1c.

Press Release Email 

List PIO

1d. Organizational Chart AHS

1e. Media Policy Intranet

2

On‐going Press 

Releases AHS 2013

Obesity Forum, 

Smoke Impacts

3.2.3 A
1 DEMP ‐ Annex 9 EPHP, Intranet May‐13

3.2.4 A

1a.

24/7 Contact 

Numbers

washoecounty.us/ 

health/contact.html

Lists complaint 

numbers, does not 

provide general 

health emergency 

number

1b.

24/7 Contact 

Numbers

Reportable disease 

number is listed far 

down on page, not 

clear it is 24/7

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 3

St
an

d
ar
d

3
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

3
.2
 

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 56



1c.

Website Data 

Publications & 

Reports

washoecounty.us/ 

health

Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

1d. Regulations

washoecounty.us/ 

health

missing links to 

NRS/NAC 439, 450b, 

440 & 441a

1e. Division Web pages

1f.

Links to CDC in Fact 

Sheets

Should provide 

centrally located URL 

links

2

Face the State 

Interviews, PBA 

Interviews, Social 

Media DHO 2013

RTC Bus Ads, Tobacco 

Bill Boards, Teen 

Health Mall 

Newspaper Ads AQM, CCHS

3.2.5 A
1 Census Data Washoe County

2

Language Line, Bi‐

Lingual Policy Staff 

List HD 2013

3 ADA Protocol CCHS

Need Department 

wide

4

Cough‐Sneeze Videos 

for Hearing Impared EPHP

West Nile Virus Bi‐

Lingual Information EHS

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 57



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

4.1.1 A

1

Immunizations, 

Chronic Diseases CCHS

IHCC‐Healthcare 

Coalition

2 CCHS has Listing

3 Obesity Forum CCHS Bike to Work Week AQM

4.1.2 T/L

1

Renown Public Health 

Assessment DHO, CCHS

MAPP 

Documentation E‐

mailed Fall, 2013

Check with Health 

Education Staff for 

Input

4.1.2 S
1

4.2.1 A
1 Childcare Facilities EHS, CCHS Farm to Fork EHS

4.2.2 A
1 REMSA EMS DHO, EPHP Farm to Fork EHS

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 4

St
an

d
ar
d

4
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

4
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 58



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

5.1.1 A

1 Legislative Tracking DHO Bi‐annual

5.1.2 A

1

Testimony at 

Legislature, Elected 

Bodies ALL

5.1.3 A

1

Legislative 

Testimony, 

Regulatory 

Workshops & Hearing ALL

Legislature ‐ Bi‐

annual, Regulations 

on‐going

5.2.1 S
1a.

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.1 L

1a. N/A

Initiating Community 

Health Assessment 

with Renown 

Partners

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.1 T
1a.

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.2 S
1a.

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.2 L

1a. N/A

Initiating Community 

Health Assessment 

with Renown 

Partners

1b.

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.2 T
1a.

1b.

St
an

d
ar
d

5
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

5
.2

D
O
M
A
IN
 5 Measure

Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 59



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

1c.

1d.

1e.

5.2.3 A
1 N/A

2

5.2.4 A
1a. N/A

1b.

2

5.3.1 A

1a. DD's & Board

Strategic Planning 

Retreat

1b. Needs Improvement DHO & DDs

5.3.2 A
1a. Strategic Plan 2012 ‐ 2015

1b. Not Identified

1c. Strategic Plan  2012 ‐ 2015

1d. Not Identified DHO & DDs

1e. Not Identified

1f. N/A

5.3.3 A

1

Outcome Measures 

provided in Budget 

Process All Annual

County Budget 

Document

5.4.1 A

1

EPC ‐ Emergency 

Preparedness Council 

EPHP ‐ Jeff 

Whitesides LEPC

AHS ‐ Eileen Stickney, 

EHS ‐ Bob Sack

2a. EPHP Drills

EPHP ‐ Jeff 

Whitesides Earthquake Exercise

2b. EPHP Drills

EPHP ‐ Jeff 

Whitesides

3a. DEMP, DEMC All

3b. DEMP

EPHP ‐ Jeff 

Whitesides

3c. DEMP, REOP All

3d. DEMP Revisions All May‐13

5.4.2 A
1a. DEMP, REOP All

1b. DEMP, REOP All

1c. DEMP, REOP All

1d. COOP All

2a. USPS POD Exercise All 2013

2b. USPS POD Exercise All 2013

3a. DEMP Update EPHP June DBOH Meeting

3b. DEMP Revision EPHP June DBOH Meeting

5.4.3 S
1

St
an

d
ar
d

5
.3

St
an

d
ar
d

5
.4

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 60



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

6.1.1 A

1a. Cottage Foods Bill EHS Jun‐13 Needle Exchange Bill  CCHS Jun‐13

1b.

FDA Voluntary Food 

Standards EHS

November 2012 ‐ 

present

Washoe County 

Legislative Review 

Template All

1c.

Cottage Food 

Workshops EHS

Participation in 

Committee on Needle 

Exchange CCHS

2013 Legislative 

Session

6.1.2 A

1

DBOH Legislative 

Updates DHO Feb ‐ May 2013

6.2.1 A

1

Asbestos NESHAP 

Training & 

Certification AQM Annual

Registered 

Environmental Health 

Specialist, McCoy Haz 

Waste Training EHS Annual

2

Enforcement Policy & 

Fine Assessment 

Process and DBOH 

Review AQM Monthly

FDA Voluntary Food 

Standards 

Enforcement & 

Review by DBOH EHS Monthly

6.2.2 A

1

Regulations Posted 

on Website, Permits 

Listed on Website AQM

Regulations Posted 

on Website & hard 

copy available at 

counter EHS

6.2.3 A

1

DBOH Agenda Items 

documenting Public 

Hearings for adoption 

of regulations All

Inspection Process 

includes 

documentation of 

compliance 

education  EHS

6.3.1 A

1

Authority Established 

in Regulations & 

Statutes AQM & EHS

EPA Delegation & 

NRS 445b for AQM, 

NRS 445a for EHS AQM & EHS

2

Enforcement Policy & 

Fine Assessment AQM TB Quarantine Policy CCHS

6.3.2 A

1

Air Quality Permitted 

Facility Inspections AQM Monthly

EHS Permitted Facility 

Inspections EHS Annual

2

Permits Plus 

Database AQM & EHS

6.3.3 A

1

Permits Plus 

Database AQM & EHS

EXAMPLE 2

St
an

d
ar
d

6
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

6
.2

D
O
M
A
IN
 6 Measure

Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1

Page 61



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

2

Air Pollution Control 

Hearing Board 

Minutes AQM

Complaint Tracking 

Module ‐ Permits Plus AQM & EHS

6.3.4 A

1

Monthly DBOH 

Division Reports All

Permits Plus Querry 

Reports AQM & EHS

2

Elected Official 

Inquiry ‐ DBOH 

Minutes AHS & EHS

AQM Fine 

Assessment & MOU 

Improvements, EHS 

Food Condemnation

6.3.5 A

1 No written protocols

Notify community 

partners based on 

subject

2 Boil Water Orders EHS

3

DBOH Agendas & 

Staff Reports  All

Washoe Eats 

inspection Reports EHS

St
an

d
ar
d

6
.3

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 62



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

7.1.1 A

1

Family Planning 

Client Focus Group & 

Community Needs 

Assessment CCHS 2011

2 HIV Planning Council CCHS

7.1.2 A

1 HIV Planning Council CCHS

2 HIV GAP Analysis CCHS

7.1.3 A
1a. Family Planning CCHS

1b. Family Planning CCHS

1c. Limited CCHS

1d. Family Planning CCHS

7.2.1 A

1

Maternal Child Health 

Coalition CCHS Immunize Nevada CCHS

2

MCH website & 

meeting minutes  CCHS

Literature, Press 

Releases, Website, 

Flu Shot Listings & 

Clinics CCHS

7.2.2 A

1

Jan Evans Juvenile 

Detention Interlocal 

Agreement CCHS Increased STD testing  HOPES & WCHD MOE

Agreement for 

transfer of clients 

between services

7.2.3 A

1 WIC Program AHS

Service provision 

accomodating 

language in a 

culturally sensitive 

manner

Family Planning I&E 

Committee CCHS

Development of 

materials to be 

assessed by staff & 

clients for literacy 

level & cultural 

competency.  All 

materials 

English/Spanish

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 7

St
an

d
ar
d

7
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

7
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 63



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

8.1.1 S
1

8.1.1 T/L

1

Career Days, Interns, 

CHS 494, Guest 

Lectures, Adjunct 

Faculty All

8.2.1 A

1a.

Varies by Division 

with Differing 

Degrees of 

Documentation for 

Professional Staff ‐ 

Needs Improvement All

Explore Public Health 

Core Compentencies

1b.

2

8.2.2 A

1

County Leadership 

Training, Great Basin 

Public Health 

Leadership Institute, 

QI Training All

2 Provide List All

8.2.3 S
1

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 8

St
an

d
ar
d

8
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

8
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 64



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

9.1.1 A

1

Fundamental Review 

& QI Initiative 

Sessions All Divisions

2

General Staff Meeting 

& Establishment of QI 

Team All Divisions

9.1.2 A

1 QI Staff Survey All Division

EHS Staff 

Engagement Process EHS

2 N/A

Working to Develop 

through Fundamental 

Review

9.1.3 A

1 N/A

Working to Develop 

through Fundamental 

Review

2 **

** Would like to 

discuss with Review 

Team

3 **

4 **

9.1.4 A

1

Customer Satisfaction 

Survey CCHS Nov‐13

Food Manager 

Instructor Outreach EHS 2013

Convened due to 

comments received 

at Proposed Fee 

Schedule Meetings

9.1.5 A

1

QI Team & ART ‐ 

University of 

Minnesota Graduate 

Course ART, CCHS & EPHP

9.1.6 S
1

9.2.1 A
1 Draft QI Plan ART 2013

9.2.2 A

1

QI Team & Upcoming 

Training All Divisions In‐progress

2

General Staff Meeting 

& QI Team All Division

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 9

St
an

d
ar
d

9
.1

St
an

d
ar
d
 9
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 65



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

10.1.1 A

1a. ACHIEVE

CCHS ‐ Chronic 

Disease 2013

AQM Know the Code ‐

PM2.5 AQI AQM 2013

CASAC Clean Air 

Committee, 

Woodstove Survey

1b.

Board Report on 

PM2.5 revisions to 

the NAAQS & AQI AQM Jan‐13

10.1.2 T/S
1

2

10.2.1 A

1 N/A

Research would be in 

conjuction with 

University

10.2.2 A

1

Professional Sevice 

Contracts ‐ physicians  AHS

Technical Expertise 

on Staff, eg. PhD on 

staff All

10.2.3 A

1

Washoe 

Antimicrobial 

Resistance Reduction 

(WARR) Program  EPHP

2012, periodic 

updates

Gastroeschiesis 

Research Project, 

Peer reviewed 

published papers

EHS, EPHP, CCHS, 

AQM

10.2.4 S
1

10.2.4 T
1

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

D
O
M
A
IN
 1
0

St
an

d
ar
d

1
0
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

1
0
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents

Page 66



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

11.1.1 A

1

Employee Policy 

Manual AHS 24‐Jan‐13 Adopted by DBOH

2 Organizational Chart AHS

annual ‐ March 20, 

2013

Presented during 

Budget Update

3

Delegation of 

Authority to DHO AHS 1/24/2013 Adopted by DBOH

4 Staff Orientation AHS

First Day of 

Employment

available on intranet 

website

11.1.2 A

1

Staff Orientation ‐ 

HIPAA  AHS on‐going

2

Annual Staff Review 

& HIPAA for new 

hires AHS & CCHS on‐going

3

Signed employee 

confidentiality forms AHS on‐going

11.1.3 A

1

Family Planning I&E 

Subcommittee CCHS as needed

Review patient 

education materials 

for literacy

2 WIC  AHS on‐going

Client driven 

education

3 Staff Education Day CCHS 14‐Feb‐13

Annual in‐service 

training

4 N/A

11.1.4 A

1

Human Resources 

Website Washoe County Since 1972

Per Interlocal 

Agreement

2

Human Resources 

Website Washoe County  Since 1972

Per Interlocal 

Agreement

3

Employee Manual & 

Orientation AHS, Washoe County  Since 1972

Per Interlocal 

Agreement

11.1.5 A

1

Bi‐Lingual Required 

Staff for Clinical OAII CCHS

Open Recruitment 

based on merit 

system Washoe County HR

2

Employee 

Engagement Survey All Divisions Apr‐13

APN Succession 

Planning CCHS Sep‐13

Redistribution of 

Staffing Hours

3

Washoe Co HR 

Website Washoe County HR

Nursing Competency 

Checklist

4

Verification of Staff 

Qualifications ‐ 

transcripts & 

licensure, KSA's for 

Individual Positions

AHS, Washoe County 

HR

Nursing Competency 

Checklist AHS, CCHS

EXAMPLE 2

Measure
Required 

Documents

D
O
M
A
IN
 1
1

St
an

d
ar
d

1
1
.1

Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1

Page 67



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

5 Review of licensure  AHS

EHS ‐ annual REHS 

review, CCHS ‐ 2 year 

licensure review

11.1.6 A
1 Permits Plus AQM, EHS, AHS Insight CCHS, AHS

2 Annual Inventory AHS ‐ DCAS

3 Annual Inventory AHS ‐ DCAS

11.1.7 A

1

Moderate Complexity 

Lab Licensure CCHS

Bi‐annual review by 

CLIA & Nevada State 

Health Division

2

Washoe County Risk 

Management Washoe County

3

ADA Compliance 

Audit AHS 2011

11.2.1 A

1 CAFR 

Washoe County 

Comptrollers

June 30, end of fiscal 

year

2 EPA 105 Grant AQM, Ahs Bi‐annual

Safe Drinking Water 

Act Grant EHS, AHS Quarterly

11.2.2 A

1

Fleet Contract with 

UNR AHS yearly

Outreach & 

Education on Fleet 

Emissions

Collaborating 

Physician Contracts  AHS, CCHS annual

11.2.3 A

1 FY 2014 Budget AHS adopted June 1, 2013

2

Monthly DBOH 

Expense & Revenue AHS

Monthly at DBOH 

meetings

Grant 

Reimbursement 

Requests AHS ‐ All Divisions

Monthly 

Reimbursement 

Requests

11.2.4 A

1 FDA Grant EHS, AHS

approved November 

2012 ‐ on going

Master Settlement 

Agreement ‐ Tobacco 

Dollars AHS, CCHS

October 2013 DBOH 

Agenda

2

Regional Permits & 

Licensing Software 

System AQM, EHS Oct‐13

Presented to Reno 

City Council, Washoe 

Co Board of County 

Commissioners, and 

DBOH

Organizational 

Effectiveness 

Presentation DHO 7‐Nov‐13 CEO's of Community

St
an

d
ar
d

1
1
.2

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

EXAMPLE 1 EXAMPLE 2

Page 68



Example 1 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date 
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes
Example 2 

Document Title

Owner 
(Division/Bureau/

Office/Program and 

Contact Name)

Date
(Does Document 

Require updating?)

Notes

12.1.1 A

1

List of Mandated 

Programs for Budget 

Review, DBOH 

Regulations & 

Statute, NRS 439, 

441, 450a, 445a & b All

2

DBOH Monthly Staff 

Reports & Annual 

Reports All

12.1.2 A

1

NRS 439 & Interlocal 

Agreement AHS

2

Interlocal Agreement 

& DBOH Composition AHS & DBOH

12.2.1 A

1

EHS Division 

Overview EHS June ‐ August, 2013

2012 Strategic Plan 

Agenda DHO Dec‐12

12.2.2 A

1

REMSA Franchise 

Agreement & 

Interlocal Agreement 

DBOH Agenda Item DHO 2012

12.3.1 A

1

Berry‐Blend HepA 

DBOH Presentation EPHP Jun‐13

Hand‐Foot‐Mouth 

Outbreak DBOH 

Presentation EPHP

August/September 

2012

12.3.2 A
1 Limited

12.3.3 A

1

Fundamental Review 

and QI Initiative in 

DBOH Minutes DHO

2 Washoe Eats website EHS

Insight Data 

Management Project CCHS

EXAMPLE 2
D
O
M
A
IN
 1
2

Measure
Required 

Documents
Assigned to:

St
an

d
ar
d

1
2
.1

St
an

d
ar
d

1
2
.2

St
an

d
ar
d

1
2
.3

EXAMPLE 1

Page 69



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION

February 14, 2014 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Members, Washoe County District Board of Health 

From: Randall L. Todd, DrPH 
Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Director 

Subject: Report to the District Board of Health, February 2014 

Communicable Disease - 
Influenza 
For the week ending February 8, 2014 (CDC Week 6) eleven of the twelve participating healthcare 
providers reported a total of 94 patients with influenza-like illness (ILI) out of a total of 4,658 patients 
seen for an ILI percentage of 2.0%.  This is below the regional baseline of 2.9%.  During the previous 
week (5) the national ILI percentage was 3.2%.  On a regional level the ILI percentage ranged from 1.7% 
to 5.1%.  Washoe County ILI rates appear to have peaked for the season.  Washoe County’s peak activity 
was earlier than the regional and national trends and the local rates have dropped earlier as well. 

Also, during week 5 eight death certificates were received listing pneumonia (P) or influenza (I) as a 
factor contributing to death.  The total number of death certificates submitted for week 5 was 88.  This 
reflects a P&I ratio of 9.1% which is above the epidemic threshold set by CDC for week 5 at 7.3%.  
Nationally the P&I was 8.6%.  It should be noted that the local P&I ratio normally fluctuates considerably 
from week to week due to relatively small numbers in comparison to national data.  Therefore, it is a 
somewhat crude indicator of influenza-related mortality and only reflects a concern if it remains elevated 
over a period of several weeks.  This being said, there appear to be more excursions above the baseline 
and some extended excursions above the baseline this year compared to previous flu seasons.  This is 
consistent with higher hospitalization and deaths among lab confirmed cases this year. 

If one were to look only at the ILI rates this would appear to be a fairly typical flu season.  However, 
severity of illness indicators based on hospitalization and death are markedly higher this year.  For the last 
three flu seasons the hospitalization rate among lab-confirmed cases ranged from 3.3% to 4.9%.  This year 
the percentage of lab-confirmed cases hospitalized to date is 10.7%.  Also during the last three flu seasons 
the percentage of lab-confirmed cases admitted to an Intensive Care Unit (ICU) ranged from 0.2% to 
1.9%.  This season the percentage of lab-confirmed cases admitted to an ICU to date is 3.0%.  Finally, 
there were no reported deaths among lab-confirmed cases in Washoe County in the previous three flu 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 15.A.

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


seasons.  This year there have been nine lab-confirmed deaths reported to date.  The dominant strain 
identified this year among lab-confirmed cases has been 2009 H1N1.  All of the lab-confirmed cases with 
fatal outcomes were identified with this strain.  This 2009 H1N1 strain has also been associated with 
severe illness in atypically young age groups.   
 
Pertussis 
There has been a significant increase in the number of probable and confirmed cases of Pertussis 
(whooping cough) this year compared to other recent years.  During all of calendar year 2013 there were 
22 cases reported.  Thus far in calendar year 2014 there have been 19.  These cases have been sporadic in 
nature.  In other words, they are not part of a single cluster or outbreak.  Still, the number of contacts 
identified for each case has been significant and required considerable staff effort to assure that adequate 
and timely prophylactic treatment is provided.  Case patients have averaged about 10 contacts each but 
some have had more than 100 contacts.  Case patients have been identified in six different schools. 
 
A recent CDC recommendation that all pregnant women should receive Tdap vaccine during the third 
trimester for each pregnancy is designed to help prevent disease in infants too young to have been fully 
vaccinated.  Anecdotal information from some physicians has suggested that this recommendation may 
not have been universally adopted by local obstetricians.  An issue of the EpiNews has been released that 
contains a survey for obstetricians to identify barriers and potential solutions to achieving a more complete 
implementation of this recommendation. 
 
Public Health Preparedness (PHP) –  
Continuity of Operations (COOP) 
PHP and management from all divisions met and updated WCHD’s Continuity of Operations Plan 
(COOP). PHP staff also worked with division directors to schedule a half-day COOP training and tabletop 
exercise for staff by division. This was prompted by the recommendations that came out of the last COOP 
training and tabletop exercise which was limited to management.  
 
Training 
PHP hosted ICS 300 for Public Health held January 27-29, which had 19 participants, and ICS 400 for 
Public Health held February 20-21, which had 23 participants.  
 
PHP is collaborating with the Northern Nevada Regional Intelligence Center (a Washoe County Sheriff’s 
Office program) to coordinate training on Creating Vigilant, Prepared, and Resilient Communities for 
Homeland Security.  This two-day intensive training will be held April 2 and April 3 at the Regional 
Public Safety and Training Center. This training is part of PHP’s effort to build upon the community 
recovery capability identified by CDC.  
 
PHP is partnering with the Northern Nevada Chapter of the American Red Cross to host a half-day 
Psychological First Aid Training the morning of May 30. This training is part of PHP’s effort to build 
upon the community preparedness and community recovery capabilities identified by CDC.  
 
PHP staff hosted a workshop on January 30 specifically for Public Warning and Public Information as it 
relates to hospital partners.  All regional hospitals were represented.   
 

 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


PHP Staff completed six January make-up Fire Vaccination Administration Training in collaboration with 
the three regional fire agencies and State EMS.  A total of 251 EMTs have been trained to date to assist 
the Health District in the provision of vaccination in the event of a public health emergency, such as 
pandemic influenza or smallpox.  In addition, it should be noted that to date, over 100 City of Sparks 
personnel participated in a full scale POD exercise, and over 100 additional REMSA staff and family 
members participated in a full scale POD exercise with support from PHP staff.  Additional POD trainings 
and exercises also took place over the past year (June 13, 2013 and August 9, 2013) to include Health 
District staff and 25 community partners.  Therefore, within the past year alone, approximately 500 
community partners have been trained and/or exercised POD operations. 
 
On February 13, 2014, PHP staff held a POD Operations training for approximately 70 Health District 
staff members to review job assignments in a public health emergency and to review general POD 
operations. 
 
Community Collaboration 
PHP Staff member Christina Conti was asked to participate on the Washoe County School District 
Emergency Plan review team.  They are focusing on improving their active threat responses, recovery 
operations and family reunification protocols.   
 
PHP staff are participating on the planning team for the Reno-Tahoe Airport triennial exercise.  This is a 
regional exercise that incorporates all partner disciplines relating to an airplane crash.   
 
Grants Management 
PHP staff completed annual Capability Planning Guides for both the CDC and ASPR grant capabilities. 
These Guides will be reviewed by the State and CDC/ASPR to evaluate public health preparedness 
progress in Nevada. 
 
The program received notice of anticipated ASPR/CDC budget allocations for the 2014-2015 grant year. 
As a result, the program will experience significant budget cuts. They are as follows: 
 

2013/2014   2014/2015 Decrease 
ASPR  $438,693  $271,854 -38% 
CDC  $760,946  $659,971 -13% 
 
 
The ASPR decrease is primarily a result of a cut to funding at the federal level of 33%, however, the 
additional 5% ASPR cut and the 13% CDC cut appears to be a result of new Public Health Preparedness 
staff direction at the Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 
 
 
 
 
Randall L. Todd, DrPH, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness Director 

 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

Staff Report 

DATE:  February 27, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH, Division Director 
Community and Clinical Health Services 
(775) 328-6159 skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Community and Clinical Health Services (CCHS) Division Report, 
February 2014 District Board of Health Meeting 

1. Divisional Update
a. Training Day
b. Insight
c. Affordable Care Act
d. Data/Metrics

2. Program Reports

1. Divisional Update
a. Training Day 2014 – CCHS held its sixth Annual Employee Training Day on

February 13, 2014, with the purpose of assuring completion of required
annual trainings in a timely, efficient manner, with the least disruption to
service delivery. Subject matter experts from within CCHS and the community
provided presentations and hands on sessions, allowing for diverse learning
opportunities. Fifty-two staff attended the sessions appropriate for their
position.  Examples of this year’s sessions include: Managing Change by
Veronica Frenkel, HIPAA, Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting, Quality
Improvement, and Emergency Response. Training Day not only provides
necessary training and Continuing Education Units (CEUs), it builds morale,
strengthens relationships, and improves communication between staff.

b. Insight – CCHS plans for 2014 for our primary database and our electronic
health record (EHR) include:

i. Family Planning Program (FPP) module implementation – this module
will allow for easier data collection and reporting

ii. HL7 lab module implementation – this module will allow for
iii. Revenue Cycle Management (RCM) – Netsmart provided a

presentation for the Insight Workgroup regarding the benefits of this
service, which is expected to improve revenue for the CCHS clinical

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 15.B.

mailto:skutz@washoecounty.us


January 23, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 2 of 5 

services. It is expected to have this service in place by the end of FY 
14.    

iv. Benchmarking – participation in Netsmart’s benchmarking initiative will 
allow for the comparison of CCHS metrics to those of other public 
health entities in the Netsmart network, across the United States.  

v. ICD-10 subscription services – Effective October 2014, all billing for 
clinical services will be required to use ICD-10 codes. This is an 
extensive overhaul of existing ICD-9 coding, and is not a one for one 
switch. As an example a single code at this time may now be broken 
out to four different choices of ICD-10 codes.  

 
c. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – CCHS staff have been provided with information 

to share with clients on local events aimed at enrolling individuals into 
Affordable Care, via Nevada Health Link (see last page of report for 
example).  

  
d. Data/Metrics –  

 

 
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community 
demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, resulting in a 
reduction of direct services available.  
 
2. Program  Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

a. Sexual Health – Staff is providing Respect Counseling and Testing Model 
training, an evidence based program, this month for community partners. This 
provides the community with a standardized approach for STD and HIV risk 
assessment and risk reduction plan development that is client based.   

556 

182 198 
506 

96 

1538 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

IZ TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
January 2013 and January 2014 

January 2013 January 2014



January 23, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 3 of 5 

 
An “STD Update” training took place on January 24, 2014.  Staff assisted in the 
planning for this event. This training was promoted to healthcare providers via 
the recent mailing regarding our Syphilis outbreak. The training was well 
attended by 88 professionals including physicians, nurses, physician assistants, 
faith-based providers, community health worker, social workers and those 
working in mental or behavioral health. This high rate of attendance should result 
in an improved response to the increasing STD cases in Washoe County.   
 

b. Immunizations – Eight School Located Vaccination Clinics (SLVCs) were held 
at eight schools in January, in partnership with Immunize Nevada.  A total of 858 
vaccinations were given to 721 students, including 189 Tdap and 669 flu 
vaccinations.  SLVCs continue through mid-February.   
 
A community clinic was held at the Boys and Girls Club on January 14, 2014, in 
partnership with Immunize Nevada.  A total of 264 flu vaccinations were given to 
148 children and 116 adults.  On February 3, 2014 another community flu clinic 
was held at the Cold Springs Community Center where 120 flu and 24 Tdap 
vaccinations were given to a total of 95 children and 36 adults (131 participants).  
Nurses also administered 23 flu vaccinations at the Reno Bighorns game on 
2/9/14.  All of these clinics were held in partnership with Immunize Nevada.   
 
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – In 2013 there were nine 
active TB cases reported in Washoe County. Two of the cases resulted in large 
contact investigations, one with 213 contacts and the other with 149 contacts. 
There were 8 active TB cases reported in 2012.  
 
World TB Day, March 24, 2014 - TB programs around the world commemorate 
Robert Koch’s discovery in 1882 of Mycobacterium tuberculosis, the bacterium 
that causes TB. This day is utilized to increase public awareness that this ancient 
disease remains a leading cause of death around the world.   
 

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Staff completed the Family Planning 
Annual Report, a fourteen table document that provides a comprehensive view of 
the family planning activities within the scope of the grantee’s Title X funded 
project.   
 

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program – Kelli Seals attended a statewide 
tobacco strategic planning session on January 15th in Las Vegas.  CDPP staff 



January 23, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 4 of 5 

also participated in a conference call for the Northern Nevada Advisory Council 
on 1/23/14.   
 
WCHD sent out a press release related to the 50th Anniversary of the Surgeon 
General Report on tobacco and on-camera interviews were provided to KOLO 
Channel 8 and KTNV Channel 2. 
 
Staff continue to work on smoke-free living in multi-unit housing complexes.  
Community partnerships have been established with the Nevada State 
Apartment Association and local fire departments.  Quit Cards have also been 
delivered to six low income providers. Hayley Davis, a new UNR student intern, 
will be conducting a needs assessment and develop a directory of smoke free 
multi-unit housing locations.   
 
Work continues on the menu labelling project, out-of-school time and preschool 
wellness policies. 

 
f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – For 2013, there were 1621 

home visitation encounters conducted by an average of two full time equivalents 
in the program.  
 
Staff attended the Association of Maternal and Child Health Programs (AMCHP) 
conference in Washington DC in late January.  A waiting list continues for high 
risk home visitation referrals. 
 

g. WIC –   Number of WIC Participants Served* - December 2013: 

Women 
Prenatal  

Women 
Postpartum  
Non-breastfeeding  

Women 
Postpartum 
Breastfeeding 

Infants  
0-12 Months 

Children  
1-5 Years  

 
TOTAL 
 

477 354 406 1,245 3,044 5,526 
*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC is open and participants have 30 days to 
purchase their WIC foods.  

 
WIC staff participated in the State sponsored “Bridges Over Poverty” training, a 
unique approach to understanding and working with low income populations.  
WIC also participated in the City of Reno Project Homeless Connect.  
 
 

  



January 23, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 5 of 5 

 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DATE:  February 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM:  Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 

SUBJECT: Environmental Health Services Division Report for February 2014 

Food Program 

• The next visit by the FDA Grant contractor is February 18 through 20.  Mr. Ludwig is
providing very high quality work.

• Special Events Program Inspections
FY  July   Aug   Sep   Oct   Nov   Dec   Jan   Feb   Mar   Apr   May   Jun   Total 

12/13  222  767  481  128  50 11 20 44 30 43 161 435 2,392 

13/14  190  685  225  140  83 34 28       -         -         -         -         -    1,385 
Total Inspections 2013 Calendar Year = 2,090 

Vector-Borne Disease Program 

• Staff has been busy inspecting and signing off building projects at Damonte Ranch.  The
building activity in this area of the Truckee Meadows Community picked up last summer and
into the first month of this year.  Hampton Inn Suites recently submitted building plans to the
Health District to construct a hotel at Sharlands and Ambassador. This project has been in
the planning process prior to the recession and is now moving forward.

• Staff met with Dana Tucker, Battalion Chief for Fire Station #12 at Steamboat and Veterans
Parkway.  The Vector-Borne Diseases Program is looking at this location as a future site to
land the helicopter prior to the build-out of the Damonte Ranch area.  One of the criteria
required by Reno Fire is the helicopter landing zone must have an asphalt surface.

• Staff has been asked to conduct a presentation for the VA Sierra Nevada Health Care
System.  They have had several situations concerning bed bugs and requested we educate
their staff concerning good practices to avoid bed bugs.

• There are a number of existing catch basins at the VA site that the Veterans Administration
has had an interest to modify with our design detail for catch basins.  Our program’s design
detail was presented several years ago and with the renewed interest, staff will present
again to management the benefits in using this detail to modify catch basins.  The timeline
to modify this infrastructure located on Locust Street is the end of summer 2014.

• Garth Oksol from RTC has agreed to send civil/building plans to the Health District for
Vector review. This is something our program has been interested in to ensure infrastructure
being constructed does not pond water.  Vector agreed to RTC parameters that our
participation in this review process will not delay project approval.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 15.C.



Division Director’s Report – Environmental Health Services  
February 14, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
General Environmental 
 
• The workload variety implemented January 1 is still being rolled out.  Initial reaction from 

staff has been positive. 
 

• Staff continues to work with the county on the development of its medical marijuana 
regulations.  The two cities are just getting started and EHS will be working with each of 
them also. 
 

EHS 2014 Inspections 
 JAN 2014 vs. JAN 2013 + / (-) 
Child Care 6  15 (9) 
Complaints 70  144 (74) 
Food 499  239 260 
General 63  103 (40) 
Plans (Commercial Food/Pools/Spas) 14  9 5 
Plans (Residential Septic) 21  18 (3) 
Wells 11  4 7 
WasteMgmt 12  8 4 

  TOTAL 696  540 156 
*General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; 
Pools; Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert O. Sack, Division Director 
Environmental Health Services Division 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Date: February 27, 2014 

To: District Board of Health 

From: Charlene Albee, Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

Re: Monthly Report for Air Quality Management 

The enclosed Air Quality Management Division Report is for the month of 
January 2014 and includes the following sections: 

Air Quality Management Division 
Air Quality Monitoring Activity 
Planning & Monitoring Activity 
Permitting Activity 
Compliance/Inspection Activity 
Permitting & Enforcement Activity 
Enforcement Activity 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM 15.D.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director’s Report 
 

On April 29, 2013 the Air Quality Management Division lost their Director as he 
stepped up to the position of Interim District Health Officer.  Since that day, the 
entire staff has stepped up to ensure not only the continuation of daily 
operations but the advancement of the program.  The Planning Section 
produced major achievements in the distribution of information to the public with 
the launch of the Air Quality  Facebook and Twitter accounts which proved to be 
a key component during the American and Rim Fires.  The Keep it Clean 
branding has grown to include three campaigns – Know the Code, Rack ‘Em Up, 
and nOzone.  The Monitoring Staff successfully completed a Technical Systems 
Audit with EPA.  The Permitting Staff has been able to maintain one of the most 
efficient permitting systems with application turnaround times of 2 – 4 weeks for 
minor sources, while still being able to get the Federal PSD/Title V permit issued 
for the Sparks Energy Park power plant.  The Enforcement Staff continues to 
improve the process of compliance assistance and enforcement by responding 
to complaints within one hour, adapting to the ever increasing construction 
activity is the area, and ensuring permitted sources are operating in compliance 
with all of the regulations. 

 
The culmination of all of these achievements is the reason I feel so privileged to 
be able to accept the position of Air Quality Management Division Director.  The 
depth of technical knowledge and commitment to the protection of the air in 
Washoe County is evident in every staff member.  We have achieved so much 
in the past year working as a team, I can’t wait to see what we can do in the 
future. 

 
 
  

Director’s Report   JANUARY 2014 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t D
iv

is
io

n 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

  

 
AIR QUALITY COMPARISON FOR DECEMBER 

 

Air Quality Index Range # OF DAYS          
JANUARY 2014 

# OF DAYS         
JANUARY 2013 

 GOOD                                                                    0 to 50 3 5 

 MODERATE                                                        51 to 100 26 25 

 UNHEALTHY FOR SENSITIVE GROUPS       101 to 150 2 1 

 UNHEALTHY                                                    151 to 200                                                   0 0 
 VERY UNHEALTHY                                         201 to 300                                                   0 0 
 TOTAL 31 31 
 

 1  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Director’s Report continued    JANUARY 2014 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t D
iv

is
io

n 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

  

Our future challenges include the ever present funding concerns which will be 
addressed by holding my previous Supervisor position open for a period of a 
couple of months to assist with savings of local dollars.  The Regional 
Licensing & Permitting Software Project continues to approach approval and 
subsequent implementation which will be completed with staff members from 
AQMD, Environmental Health Services, and myself serving as Project 
Manager for the Health District at the request of the Health Officer.  And, if that 
wasn’t enough, the strengthening of the National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards will present an entire new set of challenges.  The future does 
present a significant series of challenges but I can’t think of a better staff to 
lead as we meet these challenges together with the ultimate goal being the 
protection of the citizens of Washoe County – Keep it Clean. 
 
 
 
Charlene Albee, 
Division Director 
 

 2  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Washoe County Health District                        JANUARY 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

The particulate matter monitors at the Sparks monitoring station will be upgraded in Spring 2014 
to provide additional monitoring data.  The existing continuous fine particulate matter (PM2.5) 
monitor will be replaced.  It will operate in combination with the existing PM10 monitor and 
provide PM10, PM10-2.5, and PM2.5 data.  The Sparks monitoring station typically monitors the 
highest wintertime PM2.5 levels in the Truckee Meadows.  AQMD was awarded a supplemental 
EPA grant to finance this project. 
 
The EPA is proposing to significantly strengthen its requirements for new woodstoves, while 
establishing emission standards for new pellet stoves and hydronic heaters for the first time.  The 
proposal would phase in particulate matter (PM) emission limits over a five‐year period, 
beginning in 2015.  In summary, the proposed changes are: 
 

• Reducing non-catalytic woodstove PM rates from 7.5 to 1.3 grams per hour.  
• Reducing catalytic woodstove PM rates from 4.1 to 1.3 grams per hour. 
• Establishing a new pellet stove PM rate of 1.3 grams per hour. 
• Establishing a new hydronic heater PM limit of 0.06 pounds per million btu output. 

 
Residential wood combustion accounts for approximately half of the wintertime PM2.5 emissions 
in the Truckee Meadows.  If this proposed rule becomes final, then the new emission standards 
will greatly reduce those emissions and improve our air quality.  It will also require changes to our 
woodstove program including revisions to DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management 
Sections 040.051 (Wood Stove / Fireplace Insert Emissions) and 040.052 (Hydronic Heaters). 
 
Dan Inouye, Branch Chief 
Planning and Monitoring 
 
 

A
ir

 Q
u

a
lit

y 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

HIGHEST AQI NUMBER BY POLLUTANT 
 

POLLUTANT JANUARY 
2014 

YTD 
for 2014 

JANUARY 
2013 

Highest 
for 2013 

CARBON MONOXIDE       (CO) 31 31 24 30 

OZONE 8 hour                   (O3) 42 42 39 93 

PARTICULATES                (PM2.5) 111 111 112 174 
PARTICULATES                (PM10) 85 85 76 97 

 
For the month of January 2014, the highest Air Quality Index (AQI) values 
reported was one hundred eleven (111) for PM2.5. There were no exceedances 
of Carbon Monoxide, Ozone or PM10.  There three (3) days the air quality was 
in the good range, twenty-eight (28) days the air quality was in the moderate 
range, and two (2) days the air quality was unhealthy for sensitive groups.   

  
 
 

 3  



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TYPE OF PERMIT 
2014 2013 

JANUARY YTD JANUARY ANNUAL 
TOTAL 

 Renewal of Existing Air Permits 104 104 105 1356 

 New Authorities to Construct 6 6 7 71 

 Dust Control Permits 9                   
(118.120 acres) 

   9                    
(118.120 acres) 

4                       
(30 acres) 

119                       
(1150 acres) 

     

 Wood Stove Certificates 17 
 

17 
 

17 36 

 WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 6 
  (5 replacements) 

6                      
(5 replacements) 

7                     
(7 replacements) 

99                      
(83 replacements) 

 WS Notice of Exemptions 570 
(8 stoves removed) 

570 
(88 stoves removed)                      

 
633 

 (5 stoves removed) 

 

 
8356 

 (88 stoves removed) 
 

     

Combined Total for both:  
Asbestos Assessments and Asbestos 
Demo and Removal (NESHAP) 

78 
 

78 
 

85 1027 

 Asbestos Assessments 65 65 65 -828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 13 13 20 

 199 

     

 Washoe County Health District                JANUARY 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

Staff reviewed sixteen (16) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or 
Washoe County Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air 
Quality requirements. 

 
Staff conducted forty (40) stationary source renewal inspections and fifty-five (55) 
gas station inspections in January 2014. Staff also conducted inspections on 
asbestos removal and construction/dust projects. 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 &
 

In
sp

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
P

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

 

 4  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Washoe County Health District                 JANUARY 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

P
e

rm
it

ti
n

g
 &

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 

Permitting & Enforcement Report 
 
 
The Permitting Staff has seen a  reduction in the number of applications being 
submitted for new permits to operate but that is typical for the post-holiday 
season.  The encouraging news is that there has been a significant increase in 
the issuance of Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessments which are required 
for the issuance of building permits.  This increase in activity is an indication of 
the continued recovery of the construction industry in the area.  It is important to 
realize this level of activity is by no means an indication of complete recovery, it 
is a positive sign that the region is experiencing a slow and steady recovery. 
 
Another indicator of economic recovery in the area is the continued 
improvement and expansion of the University of Nevada, Reno Campus.  The 
Enforcement Staff has been actively involved in the asbestos abatement and 
demolition of the Getchell Library.  Recently, an additional 300 foot section of 
asbestos piping was discovered and staff was able to coordinate the abatement 
activities without disrupting the student activities in the area.  Additionally, 
notifications of abatement and demolition were recently submitted for five (5) 
residences located north of the University Inn between Virginia and Sierra 
Streets.  These homes will be demolished to allow for the expansion of the 
campus housing.  The Enforcement Staff will be monitoring all of the abatement 
and demolition activities to ensure compliance with the District/Federal 
Regulations in order to maintain a safe environment for the University students, 
faculty, and staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Charlene Albee, Branch Chief  
Permitting & Enforcement  
 
 
 

 

 5  



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

COMPLAINTS 
   2014 2013 

JANUARY YTD JANUARY YTD Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 2 2 0 18 18 

Burning  0 4 0 8 8 

Construction Dust 2 27 0 30 30 
Dust Control Permit 0 11 1 7 7 

General Dust 2 41 2 46 46 

Diesel Idling 0 2 1 8 8 
Odor 2 14 1 16 16 
Spray Painting 0 10 1 5 5 
Permit to Operate 2 25 2 55 55 
Woodstove 1 12 0 16 16 

TOTAL 8 168 8 209 209 

NOV’S JANUARY YTD JANUARY YTD Annual 
Total 

Warnings 2 2 1 45 29 

Citations 5 5 1 41 31 

TOTAL 7 7 2 86 60 

 Washoe County Health District                   JANUARY 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
 

* Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur because of data entry delays. 
 

Notices of Violation (NOVs): 

There were seven (7) Notice of Violations (NOV’s) issued in the month of January 
2014.  There were two (2) NOV Warnings and four (4) NOV Citations.  

  

 6  



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM: Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

DATE: February 27, 2014 

SUBJECT: February 2014 District Health Officer Report 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

REMSA / EMS 
A Concurrent Meeting was held on February 10, 2014.  The City Councils of Reno and Sparks, the 
Board of County Commissioners and the District Board of Health approved moving forward to draft 
an updated REMSA Franchise Agreement based on the Principles of Agreement and an Interlocal 
Agreement to establish that the District Board of Health provide Regional Emergency Medical 
Services System oversight.  A minor modification to the assessment of REMSA’s Oversight Fee was 
included in the approval of the Principles of Agreement. 

Washoe County Manager John Slaughter is assuming the Chairmanship of the EMS Working Group, 
which will continue to work to improve the Regional EMS system and provide final documents for 
the renewed franchise agreement and the interlocal agreement. 

Fundamental Review 
Work continued with the Fundamental Review Team including review and comments provided on 
draft documents and preparation for the Team visit on February 26 and 27 to present the final report. 

Permit Software Project 
Work continues to prepare an interlocal agreement for the Regional Business Licensing and 
Permitting Software project and finalizing a scope of work with Accela.  Numerous meetings of the 
Negotiating Committee and Executive Committee involving the Health District, Washoe County and 
the two Cities have occurred. 

Quality Improvement Initiative  
The QI Team continues to meet to advance the initiative.  The Team members have identified initial 
QI projects in their Divisions and organized project teams to address them.  This initial QI work is 
designed to build staff experience and capacity to implement QI projects. 

Healthy Community Conversation 
Due to the anticipated scheduling of the Health Community Conversation Forum in the fall (rather 
than this spring), I met with Renown Health to discuss collaborating on a Community Health 
Assessment initiative while the planning for the Forum continues rather than waiting until after the 
forum.  Renown is also interested in initiating their Community Needs Assessment sooner rather than 
later.  As a result we have established a Health Assessment/Needs Assessment Subcommittee to the 
Healthy Community Conversation Planning Committee and are exploring potential other 
collaborative partners and a structure for implementing the assessment.  Work on the Healthy 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.F.



February 27, 2014 
District Health Officer Report 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Community Conversation planning continued with discussion of potential neighborhoods with health 
disparities that might be highlighted during the forum. 

Staffing 
I appointed Ms. Charlene Albee to Division Director of the Air Quality Management Division.  Ms. 
Janet Smith was transferred from AHS to AQM to provide needed administrative support and 
assistance.  The Biostatistician position in EPHP was filled by Ms. Elena Varganova and the EMS 
Coordinator position was filled by Ms. Brittany Dayton.  Ms. Latricia Lord filled an Environmental 
Trainee II position in EHS.  Mr. Curtis Splan resigned from the District Computer Application 
Specialist position due to relocation. 

Other Events and Activities 
Division Director Meetings were held on February 3rd and 19th   I conduct individual meetings with 
the Division Directors on a bi-weekly schedule. 

On January 24th I attended Active Shooter Awareness and Situational Awareness De-Escalation 
Trainings, which were proved to Health District Staff and organized by EPHP. 

On February 7th I accompanied County Manager Slaughter and North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection 
District Chief Brown, to attend a Community Meeting in Incline hosted by the Bonanza newspaper.  
In addition to meeting with community members, Chief Brown provided a tour of the North Lake 
Tahoe Fire Protection District facilities and introduced us to staff. 

On February 12th I attended a briefing on the management structure and Board reorganization changes 
being implemented by Renown and an overview of their operations. 

On February 13th I attended the Points of Dispensing (POD) training held for the Health District in 
conjunction with the CCHS training day and the emergency notification exercise. 

On February 18th the Health District participated in “Insuring” Healthy Futures for Nevada Families, 
an event hosted by Senator Reid’s Office at the Boys and Girls Club.  The event provided an 
opportunity for people to receive assistance to apply for coverage under the Affordable Care Act.  
CCHS staff assisted with flu immunizations and staffed an information table.  Mr. Kutz and I attended 
the event. 

On February 20th I attended the Nevada Public Health Foundation Board meeting. 

On February 21st I attended the REMSA Board meeting 

I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit, Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.   

  



February 27, 2014 
District Health Officer Report 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Health District Media Contacts: January 16 - February 14, 2014 

 DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

    2/14/2014 KRXI FOX 11  Matt Rosenberg Flu - Ulibarri 
2/11/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Terri Hendri EMS Working Group - Ulibarri 
2/7/2014 KRXI FOX 11  Matt Rosenberg Food Policy Council - Seals 
2/4/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Marissa Schwartz Flu - Todd 
1/22/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Joe Hart Light Bulbs - Ulibarri 
1/21/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Van Tieu Pertussis - Ulibarri 
1/20/2014 KSNV CH 3 - NBC Las Vegas Maria Mortera Flu - Ulibarri 

1/17/2014 KTVN CH 2 - CBS Reno Gina Martini - Gonzales 
Surgeon General Smoking Report - 
Staff 

    Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 
  

    
2/14/2014 Letter to the Editor PIO Ulibarri 

CVS Halts Tobacco Sales for 
Chairman Smith 

2/10/2014 Press Release Joint Agencies 
EMS Working Group Approves 
Measures 

2/6/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri/Seals 
Food Council Applications Being 
Accepted 

2/6/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri 
Albee named Air Quality Division 
Director 

1/17/2014 Press Release Seals 
Surgeon General's Smoking Report 
50th Anniversary 

1/16/2014 Letter to the Editor PIO Ulibarri 
Surgeon General's Smoking Report 
50th Anniversary 

     

 

 
Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 
 


	Agenda
	5. Minutes
	A. November 21, 2013
	B. January 16, 2014
	C. January 23, 2014

	6. Recognitions
	E.1. Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC)
	IHCC Accomplishments


	7. Proclamation
	World TB Day

	8. Consent Agenda
	A. Air Quality Management Cases
	1.a. DAATA LLC
	Staff Report

	1.b. Lobo Construction
	Staff Report

	1.c. Rilite Aggregate Company
	Staff Report

	2.a. Paul’s Handyman Service
	Staff Report


	C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements
	1. Termination of Interlocal Contract Haz Mat Grant
	Staff Report

	2. Approval of Assistance Amendment
	Staff Report

	3. Approve Amendments VNRFRG
	Staff Report

	4. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award 
	Staff Report

	5. Approval of Subgrant Amendment
	Staff Report

	6. Approval of Subgrant Amendment
	Staff Report

	7. Approval of Subgrant Amendment
	Staff Report

	8. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award
	Staff Report



	10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority
	Operations Reports

	11. Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report
	Staff Report

	12. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Kick-off
	13. Authorization to Approve Adjustments to DHO Contract
	Staff Report

	14. Fundamental Review Presentation
	Fundamental Review Documentation

	15. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. EPHP
	Report

	B. CCHS
	Report

	C. EHS
	Report

	D. AQM
	Report

	E. AHS
	F. DHO
	Report


	ADP189D.tmp
	001




